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The cover is dedicated to Mary Elizabeth Quidley, long-time Town Clerk of the Town of Kill Devil Hiils.
Mary joined the Town of Kill Devil Hiils in 1984 as Tax Collector and was later sworn in as Town Clerk.
She happily and loyally served in this position for 37 years unti! the time of her death. She was
instrumental in envisioning and developing numerous community programs and events. Most gratifying
to her was the Paws Park which opened in June 2019 and was renamed Mary's Paws Park in February
2022 in her honor,
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November 17, 2022

To the Honorable Mayor, Board of Commissioners,
And Citizens of the Town of Kill Devil Hills:

The Local Government Commission of the North Carolina State Treasurer’s Office requires that all
general-purpose local governments publish within six months of the close of each fiscal year a complete set
of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principals (GAAP) and
audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public
accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the annual comprehensive financial report of
the Town of Kill Devil Hills for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022,

The report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the Town of Kill Devil
Hills. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of
the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations,
management of the Town of Kill Devil Hills has established a comprehensive internal control framework
that is designed both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient
reliable information for the preparation of the Town of Kill Devil Hills’ financial statements in conformity
with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the Town of Kill
Devil Hills* comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather
than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As
management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and
refiable in all material respects.

The financial statements contained herein have been audited by Potter & Company, P.A., a firm of licensed
certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that
the financial statements of the Town of Kill Devil Hills for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 are free of
material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence suppoting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an
unmodified, “clean” opinion that the Town of Kill Devil Hills’ financial statements for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2022, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP, The independent auditor’s report is
presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

GAAP requires that management provide a narative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the
basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of
transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The Town of
Kill Devil Hills" MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

102 Town Hall Drive  P.O. Box 1719 ¢ Kill Devil Hifls, NC 27948 & (252) 480-5300
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS

Profile of the Town

The Town of Kill Devil Hills is located in Dare County on Bodie Island on the coast of eastern North
Carolina. This area is approximately 200 miles east of Raleigh, the State capital, and 90 miles south of
Virginia Beach and Norfolk, Virginia, a metropolitan area. The county is named in honor of Virginia Dare,
the first-born child of English parents in America. This area contains much of what are known as North
Carolina's "Outer Banks" resort and vacation areas and is host to suchattractions as the Cape Hatteras
National Seashoreand the North Carolina A quarium. Kill Devil Hills is proud to have included among its
distinguis hing features the Wright Brothers Memorial National Park commemorating man's first flight.

Kill Devil Hills received its municipal charter from the North Carolina General Assembly on March 6,
1953. The Town operates underthe commissioner-manager formofgovernment. Policy making authority
is vested in the governing Board of Commissioners consisting of a mayor and four commissioners,
including the mayor pro temwho is appointed by the governing board. The governingboard is responsible
for, among other things, establishing policy, passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing
committees and appointing the Town's managerand attorney. The manager is responsible for carrying out
the policies and ordinances ofthe governing boardand for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the
Town. Board members, including the mayor pro tem, are elected to four-year staggered terms and the
mayoris currently elected fora two-yearterm, all on a non-partisanbasis. At the expiration ofthe current
mayor’s termin 2023, the mayorwill be elected fora four-year termmoving forward.

The Town provides a fullrange ofservices. These services include planning and ins pections, police, animal
control, fire and beach rescue protection, sanitation, and the constructionand maintenance of streets and
infrastructure. In addition to general government activities, the Town provides water and wastewater
services.

The Board is required to hold at least one public hearing on the proposed budgetand must adopt a final
budgetby nolaterthanJune30, the close ofthe fiscalyear. This annual budgetservesasthe foundation
for the Town of Kill Devil Hills financial planning and control. An annual budget is adopted for the
General and Enterprise Funds. Multi-year project budgets are adopted forall Capital Project and Special
Revenue Funds. Appropriations in the Generaland Enterprise Funds are made at the departmentlevel and
atthe project level forall Capital Project and Special Revenue Funds. The Town Manager may transfer
resources within a department as she sees fit. Transfers between departments, however, need special
approval fromthe Board.

Local Economy. The Town’s economy is based on travel, tourismand relatedservice industries and is
directly tied to national and local economies especially those in the mid-Atlantic region. Revenues
continue to remain strong even during the lingering months ofthe COVID-19 pandemic. Kill Devil Hills
remains one ofthe most desirable destinations in the country. Theresult is that tourists and vacationers not
only come to ourarea during the busy summerseason, but are als o visiting the Outer Banks during the non-
peakmonths. The longertourist season has extended and increased rentalincome and other economic
benefits to local businesses. The Town’s travel and tourismindustry notonly encompasses thoserevenues
that have a direct relationship, suchas sales and occupancy taxes, but alsorevenues related to property
transactions and construction, suchas land transfer tax, as the majority ofthose activities come from non-
residents and residential construction forrental purposes. Thissteadystream of income has helped to
maintain a healthy balance in the taxbase that has enabled the Town to keep property taxrates at moderate
levels while providing theinfrastructure and highlevel of services demanded by citizens. In planning for
the future, the Town continues to maintain a high priority onboth the delivery of quality services and
financial stability.

Land Where Flight Began
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ong-term financial planning and major initiatives.  Funding the Capital Reserve fund for Streets in
the amount $886,000, and Powell Bill in the amount $250,000 in the FY 2023 budget will provide funds for
the necessary annual street projects. The Capital Reserve fund for sidewalk and multi-use paths will
receive funding in the amount $300,000 for future construction of new infrastructure. The Capital Reserve
fund for Shoreline and Recreational Facilities will each receive $75,000 for future projects. Updates to the
Shoreline Accesses and Recreational Facilities Plan will begin in FY 2023. Maintenance and repair of
existing sidewalks will receive $30,000 and $150,000 is budgeted for general maintenance and repairs to
streets. Enhancements to Aviation Park and Meekins Field Park will continue with improvements to park
aesthetics and grounds. Direct borrowing installment financing budgeted at $2,067.818 will include
purchase of three pickup trucks, five police vehicles, police utility vehicle, record keeping and reporting
integration package, a fire Pumper, a compact utility tractor, three commercial garbage trucks and a grapple
attachment.

A grant project ordinance was adopted to receive the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021: Coronavirus
State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds. The total allocation and amount authorized is $2,337,008. The
Town has elected to take the standard allowance as authorized and the funds will be used for law
enforcement services through December 31, 2024,

In fiscal year 2022, a ten year Water System Master Plan update was adopted that provides a detailed
analysis of all aspects of the Town Water System including: water quality analysis including population
projections, usage trends and contractual capacity limitation, water quality analysis including testing and
EPA requirements, capital improvement plan to guide the next decade’s worth of necessary improvements
and budget decisions and finally rate and fee analysis to guide future rate and fee decisions. Plant
improvements and equipment for the upcoming year are estimated at $332,000 and $6,200. Waterlines are
scheduled to be replaced along with street and drainage projects and are budgeted at $505,000. These
improvements, equipment, and projects, are funded on the pay as you go basis. The Capital Reserve Fund
for Water and Wastewater System Development fees will account for system development fee proceeds in
order to provide funds for capital projects related to the Water System. System development fees are
expected to pay for $342,750 in water system expansion and replacements. Various other water line and
system maintenance is funded on a pay as you go basis form of operations.

Operation and maintenance of the wastewater collections system for the Southern Sanitary District (Ocean
Acres) as well as the disposal of the effluent continues to be a contracted service. The results and
implementation of a rate and CIP study has allowed for sustained reliable operations and fund needed
capital improvements. System development fees will aid in the repayment of a long-term loan issued by
the Water Fund.

A collaborative effort and cost-sharing plan was developed with other municipalities as well as Dare
County for costs associated with a beach nourishment project. Construction bids were opened August 31,
2021 for a 2022 re-nourishment project. The project in Kill Devil Hills began in the summer of 2022 and
nourished approximately 2.6 miles of northern Kill Devil Hills’ beaches. The cost to Kill Devil Hills is
estimated to total $6,373,451. Funding for the project comes in part from a North Carolina Division of
Water Quality grant ($1,450,921), Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) grant ($3,638,169),
Dare County grant ($691,137) and the Town of Kill Devil Hills ($593,224). A special obligation bond was
issued for the Town’s portion of the project and for the FEMA portion of the project. The FEMA bond will
be repaid once the grant proceeds are received. The Town’s portion of the debt will be amortized over five
years, with mainly land transfer tax revenue being pledged as collateral. A Municipal Service District was
created to include those properties that receive a direct benefit from the beach nourishment project with
MSD tax assessment sufficient to cover the annual debt payment and related expenses. The final payment
of the five-year amortization of the special obligation bond will occur in December 2026. A beach
maintenance plan will continue to measure the beach profile in order to establish future re-nourishment

needs.
Land Where Flight Began
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Other collaborative efforts with Dare County includediscussions of operationand construction of a joint
Fire and EMS station. Currentplans andspecifications are underway at this time.

Awards and Acknowledgements. The Government Finance Officers Association ofthe United States and
Canada (GFOA)awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting tothe Town
of Kill Devil Hills for its Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (A CFR) forthe fiscal yearended June
30, 2021. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious nationalaward that recognizes conformance with
the highest standards for preparation of state and local government financialreports.

In orderto be awardeda Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, whose contents conform to program
standards. Such ACFR must satisfy both generally acceptedaccounting principles and applicable legal
requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. Kill Devil Hills has received a
Certificate of Achievement for the last thirty-four consecutive years. We believe our current repoit
continues to conformto the Certificate of A chievement programrequirements, and we are submitting it to
GFOA.

We wish to express ourappreciationto each member ofthe Finance Department who has assisted in the
preparationofthis report. Wealso thank the Mayorand the Board of Commissioners fortheir continued
support formaintaining the highest standards of professionalismin the management of the Town of Kill
Deyvil Hills’ finances.

Respectfully submitted,

AP oty Sparrge

ebora P. Diaz Beverly B. K¥singer, CPA
Town Manager Director of Tax and Finance

Land Where Flight Began
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POTTER&COMPANY, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor
and Members of the Town Council
Town of Kill Devil Hills, North Carolina

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Kill Devil Hills,
North Carolina, as of and for the year then ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Kill Devil Hills’ basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

In our opinion, based upon our audit, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in
all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Kill Devil Hills, as
of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and
the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of the Town of Kill Devil Hills, and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In' preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raises substantial doubt about the Town of Kill Devil Hills” ability to
continue as a going concern for the twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently
known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

106 Welton Way = Mooresville, NC 28117 = 704.662.3146 = 704.662.8435 fax = www.gotopotter.com



Auditors® Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free of
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Govermmental Auditing Standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that , individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
Jjudgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an andit in accordance with GAAS, and Governmental Auditing Standards, we

. exercise professional judgment and maintained professional skepticism throughout the audit.

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsible to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

. obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Town of Kill Devil Hills’ internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is

expressed.

. evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policiés used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

. conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that

raise substantial doubt about the Town of Kill Devil Hills* ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasopable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Reguired Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 17, the Local Government Employees® Retirement System’s
Schedules of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Confributions, on pages 84
through 87, and the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance Schedules of Changes in Total
Pension Liability and Total Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll on pages 88
through 91, and the Other Post Employment Benefits Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and
Related Ratios on page 92, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Govermmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of the financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
and the other auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consist of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information becanse the limited procedures do not provided us will sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance,



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Kill Devil Hills’ basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund
financial statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules, as well as the accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, as required by Title 2 ULS. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part
200, Uniforin Administrative Reguirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and
the State Single Audit Implementation Act are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America by us and the other auditors. In our
opinion, based on our audit, and the procedures performed as described above the combining and individual
fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules, and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
and State Awards, are fairly stated, in all material Tespects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole, -

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information inchided in the annual report. The other information
comprises the introductory information and the statistical sections but does not include the basic financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the
other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance on thercon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic
financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are
required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 17, 2022,
on our consideration of Town of Kill Devil Hills* internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Town of Kilk
Devil Hills’ internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Town of Kiil Devil Hills?
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Potter & Company, P.A.

November 17, 2022
Mooresville, North Carolina



TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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As management of the Town of Kill Devil Hills, we offer readers of the Town’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis ofthe financial activities ofthe Town of Kill Devil Hills for the fiscalyear
ended June 30, 2022, We encourage readets to read the information presented here in conjunction with
additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal which can be found on pages v —
viii ofthis report.

Financial Highlights

e Theassets and deferred outflows ofthe Town of Kill Devil Hills exceeded its liabilities and defened
inflows of resources at the close of the fiscal year by $68,528,072 (nef position). Ofthis amount,
$10,059,105 may beused to meet the government’s ongoing obligations tocitizens and creditors.

» The government’s total net positionincreased by $8,909,790 primarily because revenues exceeded
expenses in governmentaltype activities.

+ Asoftheclose ofthecument fiscal year, the Townof Kill Devil Hills governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances 0$32,817,637, an increase 0f$9,888,245 overthe prioryear. The
increase resulted from:

o General Fund increase of $7,128,377 primarily from increased tourism and realty related
revenue, accrual of FEMA grant revenue, sale ofa piece of land, and delayed expenditures.

o 2022 Beach Nourishment Capital Project Fund increaseof $2,168,646 primarily from receipt
of unexpended direct borrowing proceeds

o American Rescue Plan Special Revenue FFund increase of $1,126,376 from receipt of
unexpended grant funds

e Afterrestrictions and assignments, approximately 49.3% of the total fund balances or $16,168,197
is available forspending at the government’s discretion (unassigned fund balance.) This amountis
74.1% of total general fund expenditures forthe fiscal year,

s The Town of Kill Devil Hills” totaldebt for direct borrowing installment notes and direct placeiment
debt increased by $2,701,701. Principal payments for the fiscal year were $3,130,295. New debt
issuances consisted ofa direct borrowing installment financing 0£'$1,600,603 and direct placement
installment purchase of$4,231,393.

Overview ofthe Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of Kilt Devil Hills’ basic
financial statements. The Town’s basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements and 3) notes to the financial statements (see Figure
1). The basic financial statements present two different views ofthe Town through the use of government
wide statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this repot
contains other supplemental information that will enhance the reader’s understanding of the financial
conditionofthe Town of Kill Devil Hills.
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Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements (Exhibits 1 and 2) in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide
Financial Statements. They provide both short and long-term information about the Town’s financial status,

The next statements (Exhibits 3 through 10) are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the
activities of the individual parts of the Town’s government, These statements provide more detail than the
government-wide statements. There are four parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental
funds statements, 2) the budgetary comparison statements, 3) the proprietary fund statements and 4) the
fiduciary fund statements.

The last section of the basic financial statements are the Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes to
the financial statements explain in detail some of the data contained in the statements. After the notes,
supplemental information is provided to show details about the Town’s individual funds. Budgstary
information required by North Carolina General Statutes can also be found in this part of the statements.

Governmenf-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the
Town’s finances and are similar in format fo a financial statement of a private-sector business. The
government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about the Town’s financial statusasa .
whole.

The two government-wide statements report the Town’s net position and how they have changed during the
most recent year. Net Position is the difference between the Town’s total assets and total liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources. Measuring net position is one way to gauge the Town’s financial condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into two categories: 1) governmental activities and 2) business-
type activities. The governmental activities include most of the Town’s basic services such as public safety,
fransportation, environmental protection and general administration. Property taxes, intergovernmental
revehues (governmental activities) and state and federal grant funds finance most of these activities, The
business-type activities are those that the Town charges customers to provide. These include the water and
wastewater services offered by the Town of Kill Devil Hilis,

Fund Financial Statements

The fund {inancial statements provide a more detailed look at the Town’s most significant activities. A fund
is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or objectives. The Town of Kill Devil Hills, like all other governmental entities in North
Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-comypliance) with finance-related
legal requirements, such as the North Carolina General Statutes or the Town’s Budget Crdinance. All of the
funds of the Town of Kill Devil Hilis can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary
funds and fiduciary funds.
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Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as governmentai
activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the Town’s basic services are accounted for
in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out,
and what monies are left at year-end that will be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds
are reported using the modified accrual accounting method, which provides a short-term spending focus, As
a result, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him
or her determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the Town’s programs, The
relationship between government activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial
statements,

The Town of Kill Devil Hills maintains four individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund which is considered a major fund. Data
from the non-major governmental funds are also presented separately.

The Town of Kill Devil Hills adopts an annual budget for its General Fuad, as required by North Carolina
General Statutes, The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the
Town, the management of the Town and the decisions of the Board about which services to provide and how
to pay for them. It also authorizes the Town to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these cumrent
period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the Town
complied with the Budget Ordinance and whether or not the Town succeeded in providing the services as
planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of
accounting and is presented using the same format, language and classifications as the legal budget document.
The statement shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the Board, 2) the final budget as
amended by the Board, 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations and ending balances in the General
Fund and 4) the difference or variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges. To
account for the difference between the budgetary basis of accounting and the modified accrual basis, a
reconciliation showing the differences in the reported activities is shown at the end of the budgetary
statement. The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 24-29 of this report.

Proprietary Fund. The Town of Kill Devil Hills has one type of proprietary fund, Enterprise Funds, which
are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The Town of Kill Devil Hills uses enterprise funds to account for s water and wastewater
activity. These funds are the same as those functions shown in the business-type activities in the Statement
of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. Proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages
30-34 of this report.

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary Funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the Town. Fiduciary Funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the Town’s own programs. The Town has two fiduciary
funds, one of which is an OPEB trust fund for reporting purposes and the other is a custodial fund, the
Firemen’s Relief Fund. The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 35-36 of this
report.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements, The notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages 37-82 of this report.

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report
includes certain required supplementary information concerning the Town of Kill Devil Hills* progress in
funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary information can
be found on pages 84-92 of this report.
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Interdependence with Other Entities. The Town depends on financial resources flowing from, or
associated with, both the Federal Government and the State of North Carolina. Because of this dependency,
the Town is subject to changes in specific flows of intergovernmental revenues based on modifications to
Federal and State laws and Federal and State appropriations. It is also subject to changes in investment
earnings and asset values associated with U.S. Treasury Securities because of actions by foreign government
and other holders of publicly held U.S, Treasury Securities.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

Town of Kill Devil Hills Net Position

Figure 2
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Cumment and odherassels $ 37007876 5 24128783 § 10606672 § 998618 § 47614548 § 34113461
Capital assels 33,444,248 33,173.648 16,338,692 15,541,397 49,762,940 48,715,045
Total assets 70,452,124 57,302,431 26,945,364 25,526,075 47,397,488 82,828,506
Deferred outflows of resources 1,671,563 3434115 429,309 388,019 4,100,874 382,734
Long-term liabilities outstanding 17,243,428 19,398,570 1,328,661 1,622,640 18,572,089 21621210
Other liabilities 10,019,177 4,241,686 1,119,367 1,287,085 11,138,544 5,528,771
Totat iabilitics 27,262,605 23,640,256 2448028 2509725 29,710,633 26,549,981
Deferred inflows of msources 2,805,500 447,158 364,148 35819 3,259,657 482,977

Net position:
Net investoent in capital assels 27,961,849 26,266,869 16,316,188 15,516,079 44278037 41,722,948
Restricled 14,198,930 6,462,727 - - 14,190,930 6,462,727
Unrestricted 1,812,79% 3,980,136 8,246,309 TA52471 10,059,165 11,432,607
Total net position $ 43905575 § 36649732 § 24562497 § 22968550 § 68528072 § 55,618282

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government’s financial
condition, The assets of the Town of Kill Devil Hills exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by
$68,528,072 as of June 30, 2022. The Town’s net position increased by $8,909,790 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2022.

The larger portion of net position $44,278,037 (64.6%) reflects the Town’s net investment in capital assets
(e.g. land, buildings, machinery and equipment). The Town of Kill Devil Hills uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
Town of Kill Devil Hills' net investment in capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the
resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used
to liquidate these liabilities.
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An additional portion of the Town of Kill Devil Hills* net position, $14,190,930 (20.7%), represents
resources thatare subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining portion, which is
the remaining balance 0£$10,059,105 (14.7%) is unrestricted and may be usedto meet the Town’s ongoing

obligationsto citizens and creditors.

As ofJune 30,2022, the Town of Kill Devil Hills is able to report positive balances in all three categories of
net position, for the governmentas a whole, as well as its govermnmental activities and net effect of its
business-typeactivities. The same situationheld true forthe prior fiscal year.

Town of Kill Devil Hills Changes in Net Position

Figure 3
Govemmental Business-type
Activilies Aclivi{ies Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Revetiues:

Programrevenues:
Charges for Services $ 42042 % 556,719 § 6028722 $ 5166372 % 6770764 § 5,723,091
Operating grants and contributions 1,158.912 184,629 . 6,369 1,198912 120,998
Capital grants and contobutions 4,491,675 771,674 - 319,819 4,491,675 1,091,493

General revenues:
Property taxes 10,161,974 10,029,603 - - 10,161,974 10,029,663
Other {axes 10,457,008 9,488,941 - - 10,457,008 9,488,941
Other (277.012) 1,380,488 (312,716) (29,737) (589,728) 1,350,75!
TFotal Revenues 26,774,599 22,342,114 5,716,006 5,462,823 32 490,605 27,804,937

Expenses:

General government 6,855,333 7,182,255 - - 6,855,333 7,182,255
Public safety 7,309,069 7,043,759 - - 7,308,069 7,043,759
Transportation 1,724,607 1,735,100 - - 1,724,607 1,735,100
Environmental protection 2,878 474 2,738,733 - - 2,878 474 2,138,133
Public works 431,126 407,423 - - 431,126 407423
Irterest on long-ienn debt 260,147 274,957 - - 260,147 274957
Water - “ 3,959,977 4,156,200 3,959.977 4,156,206
Wastewater - - 162,082 271,283 162,082 271,283
Total Expenses 19,458,756 19,382,227 4,122,059 4427489 23,580,815 23,809.716
Increase {decrease) in net position 7,315,843 2,959 887 1,593,947 1,035,334 8,900,790 3,995,221
Net position, July | 36,649,732 33,689,845 22,968,550 21433216 59,618,282 55,623,061
Net position, June 30 $ 43965575 5 36649732 § 24562497 § 22968550 $ 68528072 § 59618282
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Governmental activities. Governmentalactivities increased the Town’s netposition by $7,315,843.

Key highlights ofthe changes were:

Revenues:

e QOccupancy tax revenues increased $358,142 (8.5%), sales taxes revenues increased
$470,368 (13.0%), and realty taxrevenues increased $139,293 (8.5%) over prior year
revenues asaresult ofa strongtourismeconomy.

o Building permit revenues increased $193,606 (54.3%) as a result of an increased
numberofnewand larger houses being built.

e Capital grants and contributions increased $3,728,463 mostly due to FEMA grant
revenue accrual forthe beachnourishment project.

e  Operating grants and contributions increased $1,112,899 over the prior year mostly
due to receipt of American RescuePlan funds.

e A netinvestment loss 0f$880,528 decreased netposition. This loss was the result of
a fair market value adjustment of -$978,361, which reflected the rising interest rate
market conditions as of June 30, 2022. No investments were called so this loss was
unrealized.

Expenses:
e Management’s proactive stance and emphasis on monitoring spending to ensure
budgetcompliance.
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Business-type activities. The Town ofKill Devil Hills’ net position for Business-type activities increased
by $1,593,947.

Key highlights ofthe effects of business type activities on thechange in net position include:

e Systemdevelopment fees totaled $893,200 in the Water Fund and $13,295 in the Wastewater Fund.
e Operating revenues exceeded operating expenses in both the Water Fund and Wastewater Fund
resulting in an increase in net position.
Water rates increased 4%.
Increased consumptionrelated to growth in local tourismindustry contributed to the increase in net

position.
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Financial Analysis ofthe Town’s Funds

As noted earlier, the Town of Kill Devil Hifls nses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legalrequirements.

Governmental Funds, The focus of the Town of Kill Devil Hills® govemnmental funds is to provide
information on near-terminflows, outflows and balances ofusable resources, Such information is usefulin
assessing the Town of Kill Devil Hills* financing requirements. Specifically, unassigned fund balance can
bea usefulmeasure ofthe Town’s net resources available for spendingat the end ofthe fiscal year.

The General Fund is the chiefoperating fund ofthe Town of Kill Devil Hills. Attheendofthe curentfiscal
year, the unassigned fundbalance ofthe General Fund was $16,168,197 while total fund balance increased
10 $29,116,423. The Goveming Body ofthe TownofKill Devil Hills has determined that the Town shoukd
maintain an available fund balance 0f 35% of general fund expenditures in case of unforeseen needs or
oppottunities, in addition to meeting the cashflowneeds ofthe Town. Asameasure ofthe General Fund’s
liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 74.1% of total General Fund expenditures, while total
fund balancerepresents 133.5% ofthat same amount.

At June 30,2022, the governmental funds ofthe Town ofKill Devil Hills reported a combined fund bahnce
of$32,817,637 a $9,888,245 (43.1%) increase over last year. The primary reasons are:

¢ ThePublic Works Final Phase Capital Project Fundbalance 0f$535,154 was closed and funds were
trans ferred to the general fund for future debt payments related to the project.

s The 2022 Beach Nourishment Capital Project increased by $2,168,646 as a netresult from receipt
of direct borrowing proceeds of $593,224; special obligation bond proceeds of $3,638,169; grant
revenues of'$1,160,749; net investmentloss 0'544,406 and expenditures 0f$3,179,090.

¢ The American Rescue Plan Special Revenue Fund balance increased by $1,126,376 as a result of
the receipt ofunspent grant funds

¢ Anincrease of $7,128,377 in the General fund balance as result of revenue and other financing
sources exceedingexpenditures.

Proprietary Funds. The Town of Kill Devil Hills® proprietary funds provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide statements but in more detail. Unrestricted net position of the Water Fund
and Wastewater Fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to $8,246,309, a $793,838 (10.66%) increase
over last year. Other factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed in the
discussionofthe TownofKill DevilHills business-type activities.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights, During the fiscal year, the Town revised the budget on several
occasions. Generally, budget amendments fall into one of three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust
the estimates used to prepare the original budget ordinance once exact information is available, 2)
amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from exiernal sources, such as Federal and State grants
and 3} increases in appropriations that become necessary to maimtain services. Total amendments to the
General Fund increased revenues and expenditures by $4,932,067. The following are the main components
of the increase:

358,951 appropriate fund balance and grant funds for recreation improvements
233,155 installiment financing funds for purchase of body cameras
229,409 Assistance to Firefighters Grant funds for purchase of radios
38,984 appropriate funds for roof replacement at the fire station
373,892 appropriate funds for 2021-22 street improvement projects
922,763 appropriate FY "21 encumbrances
8,950 appropriate drug funds for the installation of new camera systems
2,500 NCLM wellness grant funding
533,970 transfer from capital project fund for debt payment of public works complex
332,978 contribution to capital reserve fund
950 contributions to fire and police departments
5,000 Government Access Channel Grant funds
261,468 appropriate funds for Meekins Field project
1,367,448 lease proceeds for vehicles and equipment
46,950 appropriate funds to purchase fuel
21,765 appropriate funds for purchase of dumpsters
47,856 appropriate funds for lease of equipment
26,123 PEG channel support funds
82,400 appropriate funds to capital reserve fund for Seminole and Indian street projects
14,280 insurance proceeds
20,000 appropriate funds for purchase of fleet maintenance supplies
2,275 NCLM safety grant funds
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The increases were possible because of local grant funding ($231,123), lease purchase financing
($1,367,448), contributions ($950), Assistance to Firefighters Grant funding ($229,409), transfer from the
Public Works Complex — Final Phase capital project fund ($533,970), appropriations for increases in
dumpster and roll-out cart sales ($21,765), appropriations from the restricted Sidewalks, Streets and
Recreation Capital Reserve fund balance ($147,373), appropriations from the state drug fund ($8,950),
appropriations for NCDEQ grant funding ($89,769), leases and installment purchases ($281,011)
appropriations for NCLM wellness grant funding ($4,775), insurance proceeds funding ($14,280), and
additional fund balance appropriations ($1,078,481).

Revenues were $3,588,018 over budget. This is mainly due to higher collections of sales and use taxes and
occupancy taxes due to increased tourism as well as a Jarge grant from FEMA. Expenditures were $3,920,279
under budget mainly due to the delay of expenditures in response to supply-chain issues and rising cost of
goods.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The Town of Kill Devil Hills’ investment in capital assets for its governmenta] and business—
type activities as of June 30, 2022, total $49,782,940 (net of accunmulated depreciation). This investment in
capital assets includes land, construction in progress, water rights, buildings, plant, improvements, vehicles,
furniture, equipiment, animals, streets and meters. The total increase for the current fiscal year was 2.2%
(0.01% increase for governmental activities and 5.1% increase for business-type activities).

Major capital asset transactions during the year include the following:

s Activity for construction in progress for Governmental activities includes $930,098 for Meekins
Field Park Development, $3,517,027 for FY 2022 beach re-nourishment project, $1,556,700 for
West Third Street sidewalk and street project, $51,509 for construction of a pavilion at Aviation
Park, and $71,085 for Seminole, Indian and 158 streets drainage project. Business activities include
$111,966 for the KDH water master plan project and $1,237,011 for W Third St drainage projects.

¢ Land located at 2011 S Croatan Hwy that was previously purchased for $2,207,792 was sold.

s  Building additions in governmental funds include new HVAC units for Administration and Finance
departiments for $7,000 and $15,625, remodel of the Planning department offices for $46,090, roof
replacement at the Fire Department for $39,656, a new concrete apron at the Fire Department for
$32,654, and a final survey on the public works complex-final phase for $1,210. Building additions
in business-type activities include $19,542 for new siding on the 8" St Water Systems shed.

+  Other improvements in governmental activities include $51,721 for completion of Hayman Park
playground equipment, $66,800 for a new generator for Town Hall, $12,078 for a sidewalk outside
the Planning department, $29,050 for a new deck at the Clark St beach access, and $68,686 for
completion of the Moor Shores Soundside Access. The old Hayman Park playground equipment
was taken apart and disposed of. Other improvements in business-type activities include $30,305
for completion of the W Third St drainage design, $55,320 for the KDH/Dare County water system
interconnection project, and $3,404 for completion of the 2020/21 Fall/Spring Streets and Water
project.

s  Eguipment for governmental activities included a new John Deere backhoe for $109,799. A voll-off
container was sold.

s Vehicles purchased for Governmental activities include five Chevrolet Tahoes for $186,362, One
garbage truck was sold.

s Office furniture and equipment for governmental activities included body cameras for the police
department for $247,510. Office furniture and equipment for business-type activities include
$19,000 for Trimble Rangers/Orions/M25 Registers/Splice kits.

*  Street projects included $103,417 for completion of the 2020/21 Fall/Spring Street projects.

«  Business type activities in plant included $32,440 for completion of the 8 St 200k GS Tank intetior
rehabilitation.

¢ In Governmental activities, $1,311,214 from fiscal year 202} construction in progress projects were
completed and transferred. $1,295,274 was transferred into Streets for completion of the 2020/21
Fall/Spring St construction project and $15,940 was transferred into Other Improvements for
completion of the Moor Shores Estuarine Access. In Business-type activities, $107,094 was
completed and transferred. $9,984 was transferred to plant for rehabilitation of the 8™ St 200k tank,
$82,414 was wansferred to Other Improvements for completion of the 2020/21 Fall/Spring St
project, and $14,698 was transferred to Other Improvements for completion of the 3™ St water main
improvenients.
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Town of Kill Devil Hills Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)
Figure 4
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Land $ 756,729 § 2,964,521 § 224,814 % 224,814 § 981,543 $ 3,189,335
Construction in progress 6,126,419 1,884,335 1,348,977 108,112 7,475,396 1,992,447
Plant - - 5,016,075 5,125,898 5,016,075 5,125,898
Water rights - - 713,885 804,151 713,885 804,151
Building 10,137,415 10,346,701 38,485 20,810 10,175,500 10,367,511
Other improvements 4,232,867 6,016,652 7,840,393 7,966,194 12,073,260 13,982,846
Equipment 357,600 353,189 143,599 190,993 501,199 544,182
Vehicles 2,259,652 3,003,282 34,058 53,078 2,293,710 3,056,360
Office equipment 393,994 173,744 44,134 39,995 438,128 213,739
Animals 3,191 7,446 - - 3,191 7,446
Meters - - 934,272 1,007,352 934,272 §,007,352
Streets 9,176,381 8,423,778 - - 9,176,381 8423778
Fotal $ 33444248 $ 33,173,648 $ 16338692 § 15,541,397 § 49,782,940 3 48,715,045

Additional information on the Town’s capital assets can be found in the notes of the Basic Financial
Statements on pages 56-57.

Long-term Debt. The Town of Kill Devil Hills’ total debt increased by $379,071 during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2022 primarily due to the net effect of new direct installment financing larger than principal
payments and a decrease to the net pension liability.

North Carolina General Statutes Hmit the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can
issue to 8% of the total assessed value of taxable property located within the Town’s boundaries. The legal
debt margin for the Town of Kill Devil Hills is $230,024,306. The Town had no outstanding bonded debt
subject to the limitation.

Additional information can be found in the notes of the Basic Financial Statements located on pages 74-78.
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates
The following key economic indicators reflect the economic condition ofthe Town:

¢ Theaverage unemployment rate 0f4.8% is higherthan the State of North Carolina’s 2022 aveiage
013.9%. Dare County experiences significant seasonality in the rates with a high 0£7.0% in January
and alow 0f3.6% in September2021.

s The Town’s economic and tourismrelated revenues resulted in an 8.5% increase in occupancy tax
collections overthe prioryear

s TheTown’s shareofthe Stateand local sales taxes resulted ina 13.0% increase overthe prior yeat
Building permits and related revenues increased 38.3% despite the rising cost of materials created
by the demand for building materials.

e  Watersales increased 6.2% due to a 4% increase in water rate and 7.0% increase in consumption,

s A beach re-nourishment construction project is scheduled to be completed in FY 2023. Repayment
ofthe special obligation bond for the FEMA funded portionofthe project is scheduled to be repaid
using FEMA grant proceeds.

¢  The Town of Kill Devil Hills* year-round population is 7,777 while the summer season population

exceeds 35,000 persons a day, requiring twenty-four hour services for residents and non-residents
alike.

Governmental Activities. The General Fund property tax rate will remain $.32 per $100 of valuation for
FY 2022-23. The Municipal Service District (MSD) property taxrate will remain $.24 per$100 of valuation.
State and localsales taxand localtases are distributedbased on thepercentage ofthe government’slevy in
relation to other municipalities in the county. A decrease in the levy percentage will decrease the Town’s
share ofthoserevenues in the coming year. Cccupancy taxrevenues are expected toremain at the FY 2021-
22 levels during thefirst halfofFY2022-23 and decline 12% in the second half of FY 2022-23 with updated
levy percentages. Sales taxes are projected to increase 3.75% over FY 202122 with updated levy
percentages. Land transfer taxes are projectedat the 5 yearactual average of$1,000,000.

Budgeted expenditures are anticipated to be $27,767,380, which is a 28.6% increase over the prior year
original adopted budget. Part of this increase is due to the one-time repayment of the beach nouris hrrent
special obligation bonds 0£$3,639,686 to be paid with FEMA grant funds. Personnel cost increases include
a 7.5% COLA to maintain the cost of living and a 7.5% increase in health insurance premiums. Capital
improvement items include annualstreet and sidewalk projects, identification and implementation of ADA
compliance improvements, beach access improvements, and improvements to Meekins Field and Aviation
Park. Equipment and vehicle replacements include a mower, 3 pickup trucks, 5 police vehicles, utility
vehicle, fire truck, utility tractor, 2 garbage trucks, and a grapple attachment for the roll-off.



TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

Business-type Activities. Theretail water rates in the Town willincrease by 4%, primarily to cover increased
operating costs and waterline and systemimprovements that are associated with the newly developed 2022
Water System Master Plan. Watertap fee increases are also in accordance with the recommendation ofthe
plan. WaterFund operating expenses are budgeted to increase 8.4% overthe prior year budget. Pay as you
go funding includes water main adjustments associated with street and drainage projects, a generator and
auto transfer switch, plant improvements and a spectrophotometer. A Capital Reserve Fund to account for
systemdevelopment fees is projected to accumulate and fund a total 0£$324,000 for systemexpansion and
replacement. The Wastewater fund is guided by a capital improvements program developed in 2022 and
includes a schedule ofrates and fees to provide forsustained reliable operationand enable repayment of the
long-termloan that was provided by the Water Fund. $18,750is projected in the Wastewater Capital Reserve
Fund forsystemexpansionand repaymentofdebt. The Adopted Budget maintains the base quantity, curtent
rate structure of base charge, and commodity charge as outlined in the capitalimprovements program.

Requests for Information

This report is designed to providean overview ofthe Town’s finances for those with an interestin this area.
Questions concerning any ofthe information found in this report orrequests for additional information
should be directed to the Director of Finance, Town ofKill Devil Hills, P.O. Box 1719, Kill Devil Hills,
NC 27948. You canalso call (252) 449-5338, visit our web site www.kdhnc.comorsendan email to
Beverly@kdhnc.com for more information.
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EXHIBIT 1
TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page [ of2

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30,2022

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 20,356,718 $ 8,063,107 $ 28,419,825
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 10,996,690 1,340,159 12,336,849
Taxes receivables {net) 61,758 - 61,758
Accrued interest receivable (net) 5,760 2,096 7,856
Accounts receivable (net) 10,446 1,038,068 1,048,514
Due fromother governments 5,332,793 - 5,332,793
Inventories 203,164 161,111 364,275
Prepaid items 1,037 - 1,037
Total current assets 36,968,366 10,604,541 47,572,907
Non-current assets:
Right to use leased assets, net of amortization 39,510 2,131 41,641
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 6,883,148 1,573,791 8,456,939
Water rights, net of accunulated amortization - 713,885 713,885
Other capital assets, net ofaccumulated depreciation 26,561,100 14,051,016 40,612,116
Total capital assets 33,444,248 16,338,692 49,782,940
Total non-current assets 33,483,758 16,340,823 49 824 581
Total assets 70,452,124 26,945,364 97,397,488
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOQURCES
Pension deferrals 2,561,113 281,030 2,842,143
OPEB deferrals 1,110,452 148,279 1,258,731
Total deferred outflows of resources 3,671,565 429,309 4,100,874
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 4,082,151 316,787 4,398,938
Accrued interest payable 77,872 - 77,872
Unearned revenue 6,820 - 6,820
Other liabilities - 1,551 1,551
Customer deposits - 726,085 726,085
Current portion of long-term liabilities: 5,852,334 74,944 5927278
Total current liabilities 10,019,177 1,119,367 11,138,544
Long-term liabilities:
Net pension liability LGERS 1,303,421 27,209 1,330,630
Total pension liability (LEO) 1,536,899 - 1,536,899
Net OPEB Hability 8,295,650 174,045 8,469,695
Due in more than one year 6,107,458 1,127,407 7,234,865
Total long-term liabilities 17,243,428 1,328,661 18,572,089
Total liabilities 27,262,605 2,448,028 29,710,633

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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EXHIBIT 1
TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page 2of2

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2422

|

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension deferrals $ 2,030,629 $ 248,659 $ 2,279,288
OPEB deferrals 864,880 115,489 980,369
Total deferred inflows of resources 2,895,509 364,148 3,259,657
NET POSITION
Net investiment in capital assets 27,961,849 16,316,188 44,278,037
Restricted for:
Streets - Powell Bill 80,977 - 80,977
Public safety 15,359 - 15,359
Stabilization by State Statute 7,370,707 - 7,370,707
ARP 1,126,376 - 1,126,376
Capital Reserve Fund 3,022,673 - 3,022,673
Beach Nourishment 2,574,838 - 2,574,838
Unvestricted 1,812,796 8,246,309 10,059,105

Total net position 3 43,965,575 $ 24,562,497 $ 68,528,072
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Program Revenues

Charges for

Operating Grants
and

Capital Grants
and

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary Government:
Governmental activities:
General government $ 6,855,333 8§ 634411 3 1,194,528 % 4,216,149
Public safety 7,309,669 14,835 4,384 -
Transportation 1,724,607 - - 275,526
Environmental protection 2,878,474 92,796 - -
Public works 431,126 - - -
Interest on fong-term debt 260,147 - - -
Total governmental activities 19,458,756 742,042 1,198,912 4,491,675
Business-type activities:
Water fund 3,959,977 5,815,612 - -
Wastewater fund 162,082 213,110 - -
Total business-type activities 4,122 059 6,028,722 - -
Total primary government $ 23,580,815 8 6,770,764 $ 1,198,912 $ 4,491,675

General revenues:
Taxes and Licenses:

Property taxes levied for general purpose

Municipal service district taxes

Sales taxes
Occupancy taxes
Other taxes and licenses

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
Net unrestricted investment eamings
Miscellaneous
Total general revenues

Change in net position

Net position, previously reported
Net position-ending

The accompany ing noles are an infegral part of the financial statements.



EXHIBIT 2

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals

3 (810,245) $ -3 (810,245)
(7,289,850) - (7,289,850)
(1,449,081) - (1,449,081)
(2,785,678) - (2,785,678)
{431,126) - (431,126)
(260,147) - (260,147)
(13,026,127) - (13,026,127)
- 1,855,635 1,855,635

- 51,028 51,028

- 1,906,663 1,906,663
(13,026,127} 1,906,663 (11,119,464)
9,666,758 - 9,666,758
495,216 - 495,216
4,086,094 - 4,080,094
4,587,045 - 4,587,045
1,783,809 - 1,783,869
1,087,125 - 1,087,125
(880,528) (312,716) (1,193,244)
(483,609) - (483,609)
20,341,970 (312,716) 20,029,254
7,315,843 1,593,947 8,909,790
36,649,732 22,968,550 59,618,282

% 43,965,575 § 24,562,497 $ 68,528,072




TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2022

EXHIBIT 3
Pape 1 0f2

I A
Major Fund Total Total
2022 Beach ARP Non-Major Governmental
General Nourishment CPI? SRF Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 20356718 § - 8 - % - 8 20,356,718
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 4,390,746 5,479,819 1,126,125 - 10,996,690
Receivables (net)
Taxes 61,758 - - - 61,758
Accounts 10,446 - - - 10,446
Interest on investments 5,231 278 251 - 5,760
Due fiom other governments 5,265,497 67,296 - - 5,332,793
Inventories and prepaid items 204,201 - - - 204,201
Total assets $ 30294597 % 5,547,393 $ 1,126,376 $ - % 36,968,366
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 5 518,176 % 2,972,555 § 3 - % 3,490,731
Accrued liabilitics 591,420 - - - 591,420
Unearned revenue 265 - - - 265
Total abilities 1,109,861 2,972,555 - - 4,082,416
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property taxes receivable 61,758 - - - 61,758
License receivable 6,555 - - - 6,555
Total deferred inflows of resources 68,313 - - - 68,313
FUND BALANCES
Non-S pendable:
Inventories and prepaids 204,201 “ - - 204,201
Restricted:
Stabilization by State Statute 7,370,707 - - 7,370,707
Public Safety 15,359 - - - 15,359
Streets - Powell Bill 80,977 - - - 80,977
Capital reserve fund 3,022,673 - - - 3,022,673
ARP funds - - 1,126,376 - 1,126,376
Beach Nourishment - 2,574,838 - - 2,574,838
Assigned:
Subsequent year's expenditures 2,254,309 - - - 2,254,309
Unassigned 16,168,197 - - - 16,168,197
Total fund balances 29,116,423 2,574,838 1,126,376 - 32,817,637
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances $ 30,204,597 % 5547393 % 1,126,376 $ - 8 36,968,366

The accompany ing notes are an integral past of the financial statements.
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EXHIBIT 3

TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page 2 of2
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2022
L LIRS M———
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position
(Exhibit 1) are different because:
Total fund balances-governmental funds {page 24) $ 32,817,637
Capital assets used in govemmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds. 33,444,248
Right to use leased assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Right to use assets at historical cost b 42,533
Accumilated amortization {3,023) 39,510
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are not reported in the funds 2,561,113
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB are not reported in the funds 1,110,452
Liabilities for earned revenues considered deferred
inflows of resources in fund statements 61,758
Long-term labilities, including Pension and OPEB obligations and accrued compensation, are not
due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds, (23,095,762)
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are not reported in the funds (2,030,629)
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB are not reported in the funds {864,880}
Other long-term liabilities (accrued interest) are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds (77.872)
Net position of governmental activities. $ 43,965,575

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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EXHIBIT 4

TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page 1 of 2

GOVERNMENTAIL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 304, 2022

Major Funds Total Total
2022 Beach AR? Non-Major Governmental
General Nourishment CPF SRF Funds Funds
REVENUES
Ad valoremtaxes $ 10,174,622 % -3 - % - $ 10,174,622
Other taxes and licenses 10,464,975 - - - 10,464,975
Unrestricted intergovernmental 1,087,125 - - ~ 1,087,125
Restricted intergovernmental 3,361,333 1,160,749 1,168,504 - 5,690,586
Permits and fees 634,371 - - - 634,371
Sales and services 99,703 - - - 99,703
Net investment earnings (loss) (794,020) {(44,400) (42,128) 26 {880,528)
Miscellaneous 202,401 - - - 202,401
Total revenues 25,230,510 1,116,343 1,126,376 26 27,473,255
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 5,722,980 3,179,090 - 1,210 8,903,280
Public safety 7,181,257 - - - 7,181,257
Transportation 2,713,957 - - - 2,713,957
Environnental protection 2,366,274 - - - 2,366,274
Public works 415,905 - - - 415,905
Debt service:
Principal 3,135,937 - - - 3,135,937
Interest and other charges 272,702 - - - 272,702
Total expenditures 21,809,012 3,179,090 - 1,210 24,989,312
Excess revenues
over (under) expenditures 3,421,498 (2,062,747) 1,126,376 {1,184) 2,483,943
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Direct borrowing 1,367,448 593,224 - - 1,960,672
Special Obligation Bond - FEMA - 3,638,169 - - 3,638,169
Body Camera Financing 233,155 - - - 233,155
Sale of capital assets 1,524,446 - - - 1,524,446
Lease liabilities issued 47,860 - - - 47,860
Transfer from capital project fund 533,970 - - (533,970) -
Total other financing sources 3,706,879 4,231,393 - (533,970) 7,404,302
Net change in fund balance 7,128,377 2,168,646 1,126,376 {535,154) 9,888,245
Fund balances - beginning 21,988,046 406,192 - 535,154 22,929,392
Fund balances - ending $ 29116423 § 2,574838 % 1,126,376 § - 3 32,817,637

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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EXHIBIT4
TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page 2 of2
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Yiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governimental funds (page 26) $ 9,888,245

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the Statement of Activities the cost ofthose assets
is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense, This is the amount by which capital outlays
exceeded depreciation in the current period.
Capital outlay expenditures which were capitalized $ 6,570,956
Depreciation expense for governmental assets (4,092,563) 2,478,393

Right to used leased asset capital outlay expenditures

which were capitalized 47,860
Depreciation expense for governmental assets (5,687)
Transfer of leased asset to proprietary fund (2,663) 39,510

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
(i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is lo decrease net assets. (2,207,792)

Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year
are not included on the Statemeni of Activities
LGERS A 832,396
LEOSSA 48,707 881,103

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.
Change in taxrevenue (12,647} {12,0647)

The issuance of long-temm debt provides current financial resources

10 governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of
long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of
governmental funds. Neither transaction has any effect on net position.
This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of
long-term debt and related items.

New fong-tern debt issued (5,879,856
Principal payments on long-term debt 3,135,937
Debt transferred to proprietary fund 2,668
Accrued interest payable 12,555 (2,728,696)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
expenditures in govermnmental funds.

Compensated absences (62,737}
Pension expense - LEOSSA (177,233)
Pension expense - LGERS (583,750)
OPEB plan expense {198,553) {1,022,273)

Total changes in net position of governmental activities $ 7,315,843



EXHIBIT 5
TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Page 1 of2
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENULES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
[T ——— -
General Fund
Variance
Original Revised Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes $  9961,049 $§ 9961049 § 10,174,622 § 213,573
Other taxes and licenses 7,167,644 7,167,644 10,464,975 3,297,331
Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues 1,029,000 1,055,123 1,087,125 32,002
Restricted intergovernmental revenues 253,125 782,078 3,361,333 2,579,255
Permits and fees 408,400 408,400 634,371 225,971
Sales and services 82,540 104,305 99,703 (4,602)
Net investient earnings 100,600 100,000 (687,364) (787,364}
Other revenues 155,319 170,549 202,401 31,852
Total revenues 19,157,077 19,749,148 25,337,166 5,588,018
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 5,918,555 7,361,008 5,722,980 1,638,028
Public safety 7,216,471 7,922,869 7,181,257 741,612
Transportation 2,177,055 3,075,977 2,713,957 362,020
Enviromental protection 2,426,410 3,340,548 2,366,274 974,274
Public works 442,944 509,394 415,905 93,989
Debt service:
Principal retirement 2,676,066 3,246,292 3,135,937 110,355
Interest and other charges 272,702 272,702 272,702 -
Total expenditures 21,130,203 25,729,290 21,809,012 3,920,278
Revenues over (under) expenditures $  (1,973,126) $ (5980,142) § 3,528,154 § 9,508,290

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



EXHIBIT 5
TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page 2 of 2
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

General Fund
Variance
Original Revised Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Direct borrowing $ - % 1,367448 $  1,367448 § -
Transfer from Capital Reserve Fund - 147,373 - (147,373)
Transfer to Capital Reserve fund - (332,980) {216,136) 116,844
GASB 87 Lease Financing - 47,856 47,860 4
Body Camera Financing - 233,155 233,155 -
Transfer from capital project fund - 533,970 533,970 -
Sale of capital assets 20,000 20,000 1,524,446 1,504,446
Appropriated fund balance - undesignated 1,953,126 3,031,607 - (3,031,607)
Appropriated fund balance - encumbrances - 922,763 - (922,763)
Appropriated fund balance - Pdrug Forfiet - 8,950 - (8,950)
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,973,126 5,980,142 3,490,743 {2,489,399)
Revenues and other sources over
expenditures and other uses 3 - % - 7,018,897 § 7,018,897
TFund balance, beginning 19,074,853
Fund balance, end of year $ 26,093,750
A legally budgeted Capital Reserve Fund is consolidated
into the General Fund for reporting purposes:
Net investment earnings $ (106,656}
Transfer to/from General Fund 216,136
Fund balance, beginning of year 2,913,193
Total Capital Reserve Fund 3,022,673
Fund balance, end of year $ 29,116,423

The accompany ing notes are an integral parl of the financial statements.
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EXHIBIT 6

TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page 1 of2

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION
June 30, 2022

Total
Business-type Activities Enterprise Funds
Water Wastewater June 30, 2022
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,063,107 % - % 8,063,107
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,279,597 60,562 1,340,159
Accrued interest receivable 2,076 20 2,096
Customer accounts receivable (net) 087,081 50,987 1,038,068
Due fromother governments - . -
Inventories 161,111 - 161,111
Total current assets 10,492,972 111,569 10,604,541
Non-cunent assets:
Due from other funds 450,543 (450,543) -
Right to use lease asset, net of amortization 2,131 2,131
Capital assets:
Land and other non-depreciable assets 1,526,446 47,345 1,573,791
Water rights (net of accumulated
amortization) 713,885 - 713,885
Other capital assets (net of accumulated
depreciation) 13,992,761 58,255 14,051,016
Total capital assets 16,233,092 105,600 16,338,692
Total non-current assets 16,685,766 (344,943) 16,340,823
Total assets 27,178,738 (233,374) 26,945,304
DEFERRED QUTFLOW S OF RESOURCES
Pension deferrals 281,030 - 281,030
OPER deferrals 148,279 - 148,279
Total deferred outflows of resources 429,309 - 429,309
LIABILITIES
Cuirent liabilities:
Accounts payable 261,964 685 262,649
Salaries payable 54,138 - 54,138
Other fiabilities 1,551 - 1,551
Customer deposits 698,293 27,792 726,085
Current portion of long-term liabilities:
Compensated absences 70,000 - 70,300
Note payable 2,813 - 2,813
Lease liability 2,131 - 2,131
Total current liabilities 1,090,890 28,477 1,119,367
Non-current Habilities:
Compensated absences,
net of current portion 27,209 - 27,209
Net Pension Liability 174,045 - 174,045
Net OPEB Liability 1,107,716 - 1,107,716
Note payable, net of cutrent portion 19,691 - 19,691
Total non-current liabilities 1,328,661 - 1,328,661
Total liabilities 2,419,551 28,477 2,448,028

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



EXHIBIT ¢

TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page 2 of 2

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION
June 30,2022

Total
Business-type Activities Enterprise Funds
Water Wastewater June 30, 2022
DEFERRED INFLOWS QF RESOURCES
Pension deferrals $ 248,659 § - % 248,659
OPEB deferrals 115,489 - 115,489
Total deferred inflows ofresources 364,148 - 364,148
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 16,210,588 105,600 16,316,188
Unrestricted 8,613,760 (367,451) 8,246,309
Total net position b 24,824348 § (261,851) $ 24,562,497

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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EXHIBIT 7
TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Total
Business-type Activities Enterprise Funds
Water Wastewater June 30, 2022
OPERATING REVENUES
Water sales 3 4,731,694 % - 8 4,731,694
Wastewater sales - 195,300 195,300
Connection fees 129,825 3,000 132,825
System development fees 893,200 13,295 906,495
Late payment penalties and
interest 35,435 1,515 36,950
Other operating revenues 25438 - 25,458
Total operating revenues 5,815,612 213,110 6,028,722
OPERATING EXPENSES
Water administration 1,286,128 - 1,286,128
Water treatment plant 1,442,283 - 1,442,283
Water systems 524,357 - 524,357
Wastewater - 158,081 158,081
Depreciation and amortization 707,209 4,001 711,210
Total operating expenses 3,959,977 162,082 4,122,059
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 1,855,635 51,028 1,906,663
NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Net investment earnings (foss) (309,728) (2,988) {312,716)
Total non-operating revenues (309,728) (2,988) (312,716)
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
TRANSFERS 1,545,907 48,040 1,593,947
Transfers from(to) other funds 18,750 (18,750} -
Changes in net position 1,564,657 29,290 1,593,947
Total net position previously reported 23,259,691 (291,141) 22,968,550
- Total net position, ending 8 24,824348 § (261,851) $ 24,562 497

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of the financial statements.




EXHIBIT 8
TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page 10f2

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Total
Business-type Activities Enterprise Funds
Water Wastewater June 30, 2022
CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers 3 5,807,775 § 214918 § 6,022,693
Cash paid for goods and services (2,116,411} (157,723) (2,274,134)
Cash paid to employees (1,326,504) - (1,326,564)
Customer deposits received 73,155 2,592 75,747
Customer deposits returmed (57,074) (2,016) (59,090)
Other operating revenues 136,625 - 136,025
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,517,506 57,771 2,575,277
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from ofher funds 42,105 - 42,105
Cash paid to other funds - (42,105) (42,105)
Net cash provided (used) by non-capital
financing activities 42,105 (42,105) -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital
assets (1,507,970} - (1,507,970)
Principal paid on capital debt (2,813) - (2,813)
Net cash (used) by capital
related financing activities {1,510,783) - (1,510,783)
CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Net investment eamings (loss) {303,623) (2,946) (306,569)
Net cash used by investing activities (303,623) (2,946) (306,509)
Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents 745,205 12,720 757,925
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 8,597,499 47,842 8,645,341
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 9,342,704 $ 60,562 § 9,403,266

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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EXHIBIT 8
TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page 2 0f 2

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Total
Business-type Activities Enterprise Ffunds
Water Wastewater June 30, 2022
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING
INCOME TO NET CASH USED BY
OPERATINGACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) $ 1,855,635 $ 51,028 § 1,906,663
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
loss to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 707,209 4,001 711,210
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (7,806) 1,808 (5,998)
Decrease in due from other government 136,967 - 136,967
Decrease in inventories 944 - 944
Increase in defemed outflows of resources - pensions (38,703) - {(38,703)
Increase in deferred outflows ofresources - OPEB (2,587) - (2,587)
Decrease in net pension liability (243,158) - (243,158)
Increase in salaries payable 14,077 - 14,077
Decrease in lease lability (532) - (532}
Decrease in other liabilities (375) (375)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (200,568) 358 (200,210)
Increase in customer deposits 16,081 576 16,657
Increase in accrued vacation payable 2,563 - 2,563
Increase in deferred inflows of resources - pensions 248,659 - 248,659
Increase in deferred inflows ofresources - OPEB 79,670 - 79,670
Decrease in OPEB liability {50,570 - (50,570)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 2,517,506 % 577171 % 2,575,277
Schedute of non-cash financing activifies:
Transfer of GASB 87 capitalized lease from :
General Fund $ 2,664 % - % 2,664

The accompany ing noles are an integral part of the financial statements.



EXHIBIT 9

TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

FIDUCIARY FUND
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
June 30, 2022

Custodial
Pension (and Fund
Other Employee
Benefit) Trust Firemen's
Fund Relief
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 275,652 § 239,638
Accrued interest receivable - 53
Due from other governments - 13,344
Total assets 275,652 253,035
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
Liabilities:
Due to Firemen's Relef Fund - 253,035
Total Liabilities - 253,035
NET POSITION
Postemployment benefifs other than pensions 275,652 -
Total Net Position $ 275652 % -

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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EXHIBIT 10
TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Pension (and Custodial
Other Employee Fund
Benefit) Trust Firemen's
Fund Relief
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer $ 18,000 $ -
Total contributions 18,000 -
Investment eamnings:
Interest 54 874
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investiments (47,447) (8,693)
Total investment eamings (47,393) (7,819
Less investment expense - -
Net investment earnings (47,393) {7,819
Collections for participants or beneficiaries - 13,344
Total additions (29,393) 5,525
DEDUCTIONS
Administrative expenses 72 -
Benefits paid to participants or beneficiaries 16,250
Payments on behalf of beneficiaries - -
Intergovernmental payable - Firemen's Relief Fund - (10,725)
Total deductions 72 5,525
Net change in net position (29,465) -
Net position:
Beginning of year 305,117 -
End of year $ 275,652 § -

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Town of Kill Devil Hills have been prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units.  The more significant of the Town’s
accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

The Town of Kill Devil Hills, North Caroling, is a municipal corporation that is governed by an elected
mayor and a four member council. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these
financial statements present the Town of Kill Devil Hills (primary government). Component units are
organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable or for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the
reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The Town has determined that no
entities met the required GASB-39 criteria of component units.

B. Basis of Presentation — Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements and Financial
Statement Presentation

Govermment-wide Stafements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities display
information about the primary government of the Town. These statements include the financial activities
of the overall government., Separate financial staternents are provided for governmental funds, proprietary
funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal
activities., These statements distinguish between the govermmental and business-type activities of the
Town. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and
other non-exchange transactions, Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged
to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the
different business-type activities of the Town and for each function of the Town’s governmental activities.
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are
clearly identifiable to a particular funciion. Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds
have been reversed for the statement of activities. Direct expenses are not eliminated in the process of
consclidation from the various functional categories, whereas indirect expenses are, so direct costs and
program revenues are not distorted. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients
of goods or services offered by the programs and (b} grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting
the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the Town’s funds
including its fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental, proprietary,
and fiduciary - are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and
major enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds are
aggregated and reported as non-major funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and investment
earnings, result from non-exchange fransactions/non-operating or ancillary activities.
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

The Town repoits the following major governmental flinds:

General Fund, The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Town. The General Fund
accounts for all financial resources except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund.
The primary revenue sources are ad valoremtaxes, sales taxes, state-shared revenues, occupancy taxand
various othertaxes and licenses. The primary expenditures are forgeneral government services, public
safety, transportation, public works and environmental protection. Additionally, the Town has legally
adopted a Capital Reserve Fund, a fund that is designated for future capital projects, and is consolidated
into the General Fund.

2022 Beach Nourishment Capital Project Fund. This fund is used to account for the beach nouris hment
project that began in FY 2022,

ARP Special Revenue Fund. This fund is usedto account for American Res cue Plan Funds distributed
by the Coronavirus State and Local FiscalRecovery Funds program.

The Town repotts the following non-major governmental fund:

Public Works Final Phase Capital Project Fund. This fund is used to account for the Public W orks
Complex additions ofthe new solid waste building and renovation ofthe animal control facility.

The Town reports the following majorenterprise funds:

Water Fund. This fund is usedto accountforthe Town’s water operations. The Water Capital Resetve
Fund has beenconsolidated into the Water Fund forrepoiting purposes.

Wastewater Fund. This fund is used to account forthe Town’s wastewater operations, The Wastewater
Capital Reserve Fund has been consolidated into the Water Fund for reporting purposes.

The Town reports the following fiduciary funds:

Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trust Fund. The Town maintains one Pension (and Other
Employee Benefit) Trust Fund, the Other Post-employment Benefit Fund. Pension (and Other Employee
Benefit) Trust Funds are used to report fiduciary activities for pension plans and OPEB plans that are
administered through trusts thatmeet certain criteria. The Other Post-employment Benefit Fund accounts
for the Town’s contributions for health care coverage provided to qualified retirees (the Healthcare
Benefits Plan) and for contributions made to finance future benefits, which are held in a qualifying
irevocable trust.

Custodial Fund. Custodial funds are used toreport fiduciary activities that arenot required to be reported
in Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trust Funds, Investment Funds or Private-Purpose Tiust Funds.
Custodial funds are used toaccount forassets the Town holds on behalfofothers that ineet certain criteiia.
The Town maintains one Custodial find, the Firemen’s Relief fund, that accounts for funds received by
the Firemen’s Relief Board to be used in accordance with G.S. 58-84 and G.S. 58-85,

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds ofthe Townare maintained during the year
using the modified accrual basis of accounting.



TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciory Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide,
proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus. The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time the
liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in
which the Town gives (or receives} value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange,
include property taxes, grants and donations. On an acerual basis, revenue from property laxes is recognized
in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the
fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and confributions, including
special assessments, Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than program
revenues., Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprictary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
Town’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The Town also recognizes as
operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the
water and wastewater systems. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements, Governmenta! funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are
recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated
absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and
acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

The Town considers all revenues available if they are collected within ninety days after year-end, except for
property taxes. Ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as a revenue because the amount is not
susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable for property other than motor vehicles are materially past
due and are not considered to be an available resource to finance the operations of the current year. Also, as
of September 1, 2013, North Carolina stafe law altered the procedures for the assessment and collection of
property taxes on registered motor vehicles in the state. Effective with this change in the law, the State of
North Carolina is responsible for billing and collecting the property taxes on registered motor vehicles on
behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts, including the Town of Kill Devil Hills. Property taxes
are due when vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in which they are
received. Uncollected taxes that were billed during this period are shown as a receivable in these financial
statements and are offset by deferred inflows of resources.

Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as the beer and wine tax, collected and held by the
State at year-end on behalf of the Town are recognized as revenue. Sales taxes are considered a shared
revenue for the Town of Kill Devil Hills because the tax is levied by Dare County then remitted to and
distributed by the state. Intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual
because generally they are not measurable until received in cash. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized
as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been
satisfied.



TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

D. Budgetary Information

The Town’s budgets are adopted as required by North Carolina General Statutes. An annual budget is
adopted for the General Fund and the Enterprise Funds. All annual appropriations lapse at the fiscal year
end. Capital Reserve ordinances have been adopted for the Capital Reserve Fund, and a revised budget is
amended as reserve funds have been used. A project ordinance has been adopted for the Public Works Final
Phase Capital Project Fund, the 2022 Beach Nourishment in the Capital Project Fund, and the American
Rescue Plan Special Revenue Fund. All budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting,
Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the departmental level for all annually budgeted funds
and at the project level for the multi-year funds. Amendments are required for any revisions that alter total
expenditures of any fund or that change departmental appropriations. All amendments must be approved by
the governing board. During the year, several amendments to the original budget were necessary. The budget
ordinance must be adopted by July 1 for the fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an interim budget
that covers that time until the annual ordinance can be adopted.

The Town Manager by law is the budget officer in the council-manager form of government. On or before
April 30 of each year, department heads must submit proposed budget requests to the Town Manager for
budget preparation. The budget is presented by fund and department. As specified in the budget ordinance,
the budget is adopted on a departmental level with line items or object of expenditures being presented for
detail purposes only. The budget includes information for the past year, estimates for the current year, and
requested appropriations for the next fiscal year.

The budget officer is authorized to transfer amounts between objects of expenditures within a department
without limitation and without a report being requested. The budget officer may not transfer any amounts
between departments of the same fund, with the exception of those departments presided over by the same
department head; for example, amounts may be transferred from the Police department to the Animal Control
department because they are presided over by the same department head. Any transfers such as these shall
be reported to the governing board at its next meeting and shall be entered into the minutes. The budget
officer may not transfer any amount between funds or from any contingency appropriation within any fund.

Revenues may be amended during the year for unforeseen revenues such as grant monies. These amendments
must meet board approval. Revenues from taxes levied may not be amended once the tax rate is set. During
the year several amendments to the original budget were necessary.

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the departimental level. The budget as
presented in the General Fund is at the departmental level. Several departmental budgets may exist within
each function of the General Fund. Debt service expenditures are budgeted annually within each department.

As required by G.5.159-26 (d), the Town maintains encumbrance accounts that are considered fo be
"budgetary accounts". Encumbrances outstanding at year-end represent the estimated amounts of the
expenditures ultimately to result if open purchase orders and unperformed contracts in progress at year-end
are completed. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.



TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Ii. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity
1. Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the Town are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as
required by State law [N.C.G.S. 159-31]. The Town may designate, as an official depository, any
bank or savings association whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the Town
may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and SupearNOW accounts, money market
accounts, and certificates of deposit.

North Carolina state law [N.C.G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the Town to invest in obligations of the
United States or obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States;
obligations of the State of North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local govermment
or public authority; obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain prime quality
issues of commercial paper and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT).

The Town’s investments with a maturity of more than one year at acquisition and non-money nrarket
investments are reported at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. The NCCMT
Government Portfolio, a SEC - registered (2a-7) external investment pool, is measured at fair value.
Because the NCCMT Government Portfolio has a weighted average of maturity of less than 90 days,
it is presented as an investment with a maturity of less than 6 months. Money market investments
that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less and non-participating
interest earnings and investment contracts are reported at fair value as determined by quoted market
prices.

G.S. 159-30.1 allowed the Town to establish an irrevocable Other Post Employment Benefit
(OPEB) Trust Fund managed by the Department of the State Treasurer and operated in accordance
with state laws and regulations. It is not registered with the SEC. The State Treasurer, in his
discretion, may invest the proceeds in equities of certain publically held companies and long or
shott term fixed income investments as allowed by G.S. 147-69.2(1-6) and (8). Funds submitted
are managed in three different sub-funds, the State Treasurer's Short Term Investment Funds
(STIF) consisting of short to intermediate treasuries, agencies and corporate issues authorized by
G.S. 147-69.1, the State Treasurer's Bond Index Fund (BIF) consisting of high quality debt
securities eligible under G.S. 147-69.2(b)(1)-(6), and BlackRocks's MSCI ACWI EQ Index Non-
Lendable Class B Fund authorized under G.S. 147-69.2(b)(8).

At June 30, 2022 the Town’s OPEB Trust had $275,652 invested in the State Treasurer’s Local
Government Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Trust pursuant to G.S. 159-30.1, The State
Treasurer's OPEB Trust may invest in public equities and both long-term and short-term fixed
income obligations as determined by the State Treasurer pursuant to the General Statutes. At year-
end, the Town’s OPEB Trust was invested as follows: State Treasurer’s Short Term Investment
Fund (STIF) .08%, which is reported as cash and cash equivalents; and BlackRock’s MSCI ACWI
EQ Index Non-Lendable Class B Fund (EIF) 99.92% (the equities were split with 58.82% in
domestic securities and 41.18% in international securities).

Ownership of the STIF is determined on a fair market valuation basis as of fiscal year end in
accordance with the STIF operating procedures, STIF investments are valned by the custodian using
Level 2 inputs which in this case involves inputs, other than quoted prices, inclided within Level 1
that are either directly or indirectly observable for the asset or Hability. The STIF is valued at $1
per share. The STIF portfolio is unrated and had a weighted average maturity at June 30, 2022 of
0.9 years,



TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

The BIF is measured at fair value using Level 2 inputs and is based upon units of participation,
Units of participation are calculated monthly based upon inflows and outflows as well as allocations
of net earnings. BIF does not have a credit rating, was valued at $§1 per unit and had an average
maturity of 8.75 years at June 30, 2022,

The BlackRock MSCI ACWI EQ Index Non-Lendable Class B fund, authorized under G.S. 147-
69.2(b)(8), is a common trust fund considered to be commingled in nature. The Fund's fair value is
the number of shares times the net asset value as determined by a third party. At June 30, 2022
the fair value of the funds was $27.230307 per share. Fair value for this BlackRock fund is
determined using Level 1 inputs which are directly observable, quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Town pools money from several funds except the Post-employment Benefit (Pension and Other
Employee Benefit trust) Fund to facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize investment
income, The Town's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on-hand, demand deposits
and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition. Certificates of deposit are deemed cash equivalents regardless of their maturity because
they are convertible to known amounts of cash and present no significant risk of changes in value.

3. Restricted Assets

The unexpended installment financing proceeds of the General Fund are classified as restricted
assets for the General Fund., Their use is completely restricted to the purpose for which the
installment financing was obtained. Money in the Capital Reserve Fund is also classified as
restricted assets because its use is restricted to the Capital Reserve Fund per NC G.8. Chapter 159,
Article 3, Part 2. Powell Bill funds are also classified as restricted cash because they can be
expended only for the purposes of maintaining, repairing, construeting, reconstructing or widening
of local streets per G.S. 136-41.1 through 136-41.4. Federal Forfeiture Funds are classified as
restricted cash because they can be expended only for the purposes of Police criminal matters.
Finally, North Carolina unauthorized controlled substance excise taxes are classified as restricted
assets for the General Fund. Their use is completely restricted for Police drug related training.
Unexpended installment financing proceeds and unexpended grant funds are classified as restricted
assets in the 2022 Beach Nowrishment Capital Project Fund because they must be expended for the
purpose of completing this project. American Rescue Plan (ARP) Funds are classified as restricted
in the ARP Special Revenue Fund because they must be expended following the guidance set forth
in the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds program. In Business-type activities,
certain assets of the Capital Reserve Fund are classified as restricted assets as their use is restricted
per Session Law 1985-716. Water Fund and Wastewater Fund customer deposits held by the Town
(before any services are supplied) are restricted 1o the service for which the deposit was collected.
Water and Wastewater Fund System Development Fees are restricted assets for extension and
replacement for the water and wastewater system.
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Restricted Cash

CGovernmental Activities
General Fund
Unexpended lease proceeds
Capital Reserve Fund
Powell Bill
Unauthorized controlled substance excise tax
Federal forfeiture funds

Beach Nourishment Capital Project Fund - Unexpended Lease Proceeds
Beach Nourishment Capital Project Fund - Unexpended Grant Proceeds

ARP Special Revenue Fund - Unexpended Grant Proceeds

Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities
Water Fund
Customer deposits

Extension and Replacement

Wastewater Fund
Customer deposits
Extension and Replacement

Total Business-type Activities

Total Restricted Cash

1,271,737
3,022,673
80,977
11,117
4,242

4,390,746

4,233,133
1,246,686

5,479,819

1,126,125

10,996,690

698,293
581,304

1,279,597

27,792
32,770

1,340,159

12,336,849
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

4. Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

In accordance with State law [N.C.G.S. 105-347 and N.C.G.S. 159-13(a}], the Town levies ad
valorem taxes on property other than motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The
taxes are due on September 1 (lien date); however, interest does not accrue until the following
January 6. These taxes are based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2021, The taxes were
collected throughout the fiscal year, from August through June,

5. Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for
doubtful accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were
written off in prior years.

6. Inventories and Prepaid Items

The inventories of the Town are valued at weighted average cost, which approximates market. The
Town's General Fund inventory consists of expendable supplies that are recorded as expenditures
as used rather than when purchased.

The inventories of the Town's Enterprise Funds consist of materials and supplies held for subsequent
use. The cost of these inventories is expensed when the inventory is consumed.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded
as prepaid items in both government—wide and fund financial statements and expensed as the items
are used.



TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2622

7. Capital Assets

Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than a certain cost and an
estimated useful life in excess of three years. Minimum capitalization costs are as follows: land, $1;
office furniture and equipment, $5,000; vehicles, $5,000; machinery and equipment (non-
computer), $5,000; computer equipment and software, $5,000; buildings and improvements,
$5,000; animals, $5,000; meters, $5,000; and infrastructure, $100,000. Purchased or constructed
capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets received prior
to June 15, 2015 are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Donated capital
assets received after June 15, 2015 are recorded at acquisition value. The cost of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives
are not capitalized.

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. The other property, plant, equipment, and
infrastructure are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful

lives:
Estimated
Asset Class Useful Lives
Buildings and Plant 20 — 40 years
Improvements 10 —40 years
Machinery and Equipment (non-computer) 5 — 10 years
Vehicles 5 — 7 years
Office furniture and equipment 5— 10 years
Computer equipment 3 — 5 years
Animals 5 years
Streets 15 - 25 years
Meters 20 - 40 years
Water Rights 40 years

8. Right to use assets

The Town has recorded right to use lease assets as a result of implementing GASB 87. The right to
use assets are initially measured at an amount equal to the initial measurement of the related lease
liability plus any lease payments made prior to the lease term, less lease incentives, and plus
ancillary charges necessary to place the lease into service. The right to use assets are amortized on
a straight-line basis over the life of the related lease.

9, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows of
Resources, represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a fiture period and so will not be
recognized as an expense or expenditure until then. The Town has two items that meets this
criterion, pension and OPEB deferrals in the 2022 fiscal year. In addition to liabilities, the
statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an
acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as revenue until
then. The Town has several items that meet the criterion for this category- license receivable,
property taxes receivable, and deferrals of pension and OPEB deferrals.
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10. Long-Term Obligations

In the governmeni-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as Habilities in the
apphicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of
net position.

In fund financial statements, governmental fond types recognize the face amount of debt issued as
other financing sources.

11. Compensated Absences

The overtime compensation policies of the Town allow for overtime compensation to be provided
in the form of compensatory time off earned at time and one half (for hours worked over 40 hours
per week) which can be accumulated up to a total of 240 howrs. Accumulated overtime
compensation in excess of 240 hours is paid (certain exceptions allow for 480 hours).

The vacation policies of the Town ailow regular employees to earn vacation leave from the
beginning of employment at the rate of one day per month (12 days per year). Regular employees
with five or more years but less than 10 years of service earn vacation leave at the rate of one and
one quarter days per month (15 days per year); with 10 or more years but less than 15 years of
service at the rate of one and one half days per month (18 days per year); with 15 or more years but
less than 20 years of service at the rate of | and three quarters days per month {21 days per year);
with 20 years or more of service at the rate of 2 days per menth (24 days per year). The vacation
policy of the Town provides for the accumutation of up to thirty days earned vacation leave with
such leave being fully vested when eammed. For the Town's government-wide and proprietary funds,
an expense and a liability for compensated absences and the salary-related payments are recorded
as the leave is earned. The Town has assumed a first-in, first-out method of using accumulated
compensated time. The portion of that time that is estimated to be used in the next fiscal year has
been designated as a current liability in the government-wide financial statements.

The Town's sick leave policy provides for an unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick
leave does not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in
the determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes, Since the Town does not
have any obligation for the accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for sick leave
has been made.

12. Retmbursements for Pandemic-related Expenditures

In FY 2020/21, the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) established the Coronavirus State and Local
Fiscal Recovery Funds to support urgent COVID-19 response efforts and replace lost revenue for
the eligible state, local, territorial, and tribal governments. The Town was allocated $2,337,008 of
fiscal recovery funds to be paid in two equal installments. The first installment of $1,168,504 was
received in August 2021, The second installment will be received in August 2022. The Town elected
the standard allowance and will be using the funds as revenue replacement to cover law enforcement
salaries in FY 2022-23.

13. Net Position/Fund Balances

Net Position

Net position in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements is classified as net
investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net position represents
constraints on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or
laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through state statute.
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Fund Balances

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications
designed to disclose thehierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance canbe spent.

The governmental fundty pes classify fundbalances as follows:

Non-spendable Fund Balance —~This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because
they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact.

Inventories — portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents the
year-end balance of ending inventories, which are not spendabie resources.

Prepaid items - portion of fund balancethatis notan available resource because it represents the
year-end balance ofending prepaiditems, which are not spendable resources.

Restricted Fund Balance — This classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific
purposes externally imposed by creditors orimposed by law.

Restricted for Stabilization by State statute — portion of fund balance that is restricted by State
Statute [N.C.G.S. 159-8(a)]. North Carolina G.S. 159-8 prohibits units of government from
budgeting orspending a portion oftheir fund balance. This is one ofseveral statutes enacted by
the North Carolina State Legislature in the 1930’s that were designed to improve and maintain
the fiscathealth oflocalgovermment units. Restricted by State statute (RSS), is caiculated at the
end ofeach fiscal year forallannually budgeted funds. Thecalcutation in G.S. 159-8(a) provides
a formula for determining what portion offund balanceis available for appropriation. The anount
of fund balance not available for appropriation is what is known as “restricted by State statute”.
Appropriated fimd balance in any fund shallnot exceed the sumofcash and investments mimus
the sumof liabilities, encumbrances, and deferred revenues arising fromcash receipfs, as those
figures stand at theclose ofthe fiscal yearnext preceding the budget. Per GA SB gnidance, RSS
is considered a resource upon which a restriction is “imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legisfation.” RSS is reduced by inventories and prepaids as they awe
classified as nonspendable. Outstanding Encumbrances are included within RSS. RSS is included
as a componentofRestricted Net positionand Restricted fund balance onthe face ofthe baknce
sheet.

Restricted for Public Safety — portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source for
Police from drug forfeiture funds.

Restricted for Streets - Powel Bill — portion offund balancethat is restricted by revenuesource
for street construction and maintenance expenditures. This amount represents the balanceofthe
total unexpended Powell Bill Funds.

Resiricted for Capital Reserve Fund — portion of fund balance that is restricted by State Statute
[N.C.GS. 159-18] fora legally adopted capital reserve fund which has been consolidated with
the General Fund due to GASB 54. This amount represents capital reserve funds for use for
recreation, street, and shoreline projects.
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Restricted for ARP Funds — portion of fund balance that is restricted by the Coronavirus State
and Local Fiscal Recovery program of the American Rescue Plan to aid local governments in
theirresponse to the COVID-19 public health emergency.

Restricted for Beach Nourishment — portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source
for completion ofthe 2022 Beach Nourishment project.

Committed Fund Balance — portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific purposes as
imposed by a resolutionadopted by a majority vote of the Town of Kill Devil Hills* governing
board. Any changes or removal of specific purposes requires a resolution adopted by a majority
action by the govemning bedy. The goveming body can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the
end ofthe fiscalyear, commit fund balance. Onceadopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance
remains in place until a similar action is taken {the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or
revise the limitation.

Assigned fund balance— portionoffund balancethatthe Town of Kill Devil Hills intends to use for
specific purposes as determined by the Town of Kill Devil Hills* Board of Commissioners.

Subsequent year’s expenditures — portionof fund balance that is appropriated in the next year’s
budget that is not already classified in restricted or committed. The Board of Commissioneis
approves the appropriation.

Unassigned fund balance — the residual classification for the Town’s General Fund includes all
spendable amounts that have not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes or
other funds. In other funds, the unassigned classification is used only to report a deficit baknce
resulting fiom overspending for specific purposes for which amounts had been restricted,
committed, orassigned.

The Town of Kill Devil Hills has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for progans
with multiple revenue sources. The Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy:
lease purchase proceeds, federal funds, state funds, localnon-town funds, town funds. For putposes
of fund balance classification, expendifures are to be spent fiom restricted fund balance first,
followed in-order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund
balance, The Finance Officer has theauthority to deviate fromthis policy ifit is the best interest of
the Town.

Each year during budget preparation the Board of Commis sioners provides verbal guidance onthe
Town’s minimum fund balance policy forthe general fund which ins fructs management to conduct
the business ofthe Townin sucha mannerthatavailable fund balance is at least equalto or greater
than 35% ofbudgeted expenditures. The minimum fund balanceamount may changeeachyearat
the discretion ofthe Board depending onbudget projections.
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14. Pension and OPEB Plans

For purposes of measuring the net pension lability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS) and additions
to/deductions from LGERS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by LGERS. For this purpose, plan member confributions are recognized in the period
in which the contributions are due. The Town of Kill Devil Hills’ employer contributions are
recognized when due and the Town of Kill Devil Hills has a legal requirement to provide the
confributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
terms of LGERS. For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows and inflows
of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of
the Town’s Post-employment Healthcare Benefit Plan (HCB) and additions to/deductions from the
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the HCB. For this
purpose, the HCB recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with benefit
terms. Investments for both plans are reported at fair value.

15, Estimates

The Town of Kill Devil Hills’ management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial
statements. Those estimates and assumptions affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and reported revenues and expenses. Actual results
could differ from those estimates,
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F. Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

1. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheetand the
government-wide statement of net position.

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance - total governmental
funds and net position —governmentalactivities as reported in the government-widestatement of net position.
The net adjustment of$11,147,938 consists of several elements as follows:

Description Amount

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and are
therefore notreportedin the funds (total capital assets on government-wide

statement in governmental activities column) $ 62,335,298

Less accumulated depreciation (28.891.050)
Net capitalassets $33,444,248
Right to use assets used in governmental activities are notfinancial resources
and thereforeare not reported in the funds 42,533

Less accumulated amortization (3.023)
Net right to use assets 39,510
Deferred outflows ofresources related to pensions/OPEB are not reported in the funds 3,671,565

Liabilities for earned revenues considered deferred inflows
onresources in fund statements 61,758

Liabilities that, becausethey are not due and payable in the current period,
do notrequire current resources to pay and are therefore not reported in the fund

statements:
Installment financings payable and leases $ (11,026,820)
Compensatedabsences (932,972)
Net Pension Liability (1,303,421}
Net other post-employment benefits Hability (8.295,650)
TotaiPensionLiability  (LEO) (1.536.899)
{23,095,762)
Deferred inflows ofresources related to pension/OPEB are not reported in the funds (2,895,509
Other long-termliabilities (accrued interest) are notdue
and payable in current period and, are deferred in the funds. (771.872)

Net adjustment $.11,147.938
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2, Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,

expenditures, and changes in fund balance and the government-wide sfatement of
activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and changes in net position
of govermnmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. There are several
elements ofthat total adjustiment of$2,572,402 as follows:

Description Amount

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities thecostofthoseassets is allocated overtheirestimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense, This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
depreciationin the current period.

Capital outlay expenditures recorded in the fund statements
capitalized as assets in the statementofactivities. $ 6,570,956

Depreciation expense, the allocation ofthose assets overtheiruseful lives,
that is recorded on the statement ofactivities butnotin the fundstatements. (4.092,563)

$2,478,393
Right to use leased asset capital outlay expenditures which were capitalized 47,860
Depreciation expense for governmental assets {5,687
Transferofleased asset to proprietary fund (2.663)
39,510
Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal yearare not included
on the Statementof Activities.
LGERS 832,396
LEOSSA 48,707
881,103
Revenues in the statement ofactivities that do notprovide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.
Change in taxrevenue (12,647)
Net effect ofsales involving capital assets (2,207,792)

The issuance of long-termdebt (e.g., direct borrowing, direct placement) provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repaymentofthe principal of long-termdebt consumes the current financil
resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also,
governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debtis
first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement ofactivities. This amount &
the net effect of these differences in the treatment o flong-termdebt and related items.
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Debt issued or incurred:

New debtissued $  (5879,856)
Accrued interest payable 12,335
{5,867,301)
Debt trans ferred to proprietary find 2,668
Principal payments 3,135.937
(2,728,696)
Some expenses reported in the statement ofactivities donotrequire theuse of current
financialresources and, therefore, are notreported as expenditures in governmental
funds.
Compensatedabsences (62,737)
Pension expense - LEOSSA (177,233)
Pension expense— LGERS (583,750}
OPEB expense (198.553)
(1.022.273)
Net adjustment $2.572,402

G. Comparative Data

Comparative total data for the prior year has been presented in the accompanying financial s tatemenis n
orderto provide an understanding ofchanges in the Town's financial positionand operations,

NOTE 2. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A.

Assets
1. Deposits

Al the deposits of the Town are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods. Under
the Dedicated Method, all deposits thatexceed the Federal Depository Inswance Coverage (FDIC)
level are collateralized with securities held by the Town's agent in the Town's name. Under the
Pooling Method, which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities
held by the State Treasurer’s agent in the name ofthe State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer
acting as a fiduciary forthe Town, these deposits are considered to be held by the Town's agent in
the Town’s name. The amount ofthe pledged collateralis based on an approved averaging method
for non-interest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest bearing deposits,
Depositories using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their poolkd
collateral covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirmthis information with
the Town orthe escrowagent. Because ofthe inability to measure the exact amounts ofcollateral
pledged for the Town under the Pooling Method, the potential exists forunder-collateralization, and
this risk may increase in periods ofhighcash flows.

However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces sfrict standards of financial stability for
each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method. The Town has no
formal policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits, butrelies onthe State Treasurer to enforce
standards of minimum capitalization forall pooling method financial institutions and to monitor
themforcompliance. The Towncomplies with the provisions of N.C.G.S. 159-31 when designating
official depositories and verifying that deposits are properly secured.
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At June 30, 2022, the Town’s deposits had a carrying amount of $6,355,795 and a bank balance of
$6,962,237. Of the bank balance, $1,014,065 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance and
$5,948,172 was covered by collateral held under the pooling method. The Town had petty cash on
hand at June 30, 2022, totaling $2,000.

2. Investments

At June 30, 2022, the Town had the following investments and maturities. This schedule assumes
that callable investments will nof be called.

Investment Maturities in Years

Invastment Type Fair Value <=,75 >75t03 >3to5 >5t010  >10te 15
LL5. Government Agencies $ 19,468,768 S - $9,496,692 S 7,147,293 S 2,824,783 § -
Commercial Paper 9,586,904 9,586,904
NC Capital Management Trust
Government Portfolio 5,582,848 5,582,848
investment Totals $ 34,638,520 § 15,069,752 5 9,496,692 § 7,147,293 S 2,824,783 5 -
Actual % of portfolio 43.79%| 27.42% 20.63% 8.16% 0.00%
Actual cumulative % of portfolio 71.21% 91.84% 100.00%]  100.00%
Minimum cumulative per policy 50.00% 70% 0% 100%

All investments are measured using the market approach: using prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or a group of
assets.

Level of fair value hierarchy: Level 1: Debt securities valued using directly observable, quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets. Level 2: Debt securities are valued using
a matrix pricing technique. Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities’
benchmark quoted prices.

! The NC Capital Management Trust Term Portfolio had a duration of . 5 years and is therefore presented as an investment

with a maturity of less than 6 months.
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Interest Rafe Risk. Asameans oflimiting its exposure to fair value losses arising fromris ing interest
rates, the Town’s Investment Policy states that 40% should mature in 9 months but requies
maturities ofat least 50%in less than 3 years, at least 70% in less than Syears, at least 90% in less
than 10 years, and 100% in less than fifteen years. The Town’s Internal Management Policy ako
reguires purchases of securities to be laddered with staggered maturity dates. During the year no
investments were sold fora realized gain orloss.

Credit Risk. The Townlinits investments tothe provisions of G.S. 159-30 and restricts the purchase
of securities to the highest possible ratings whenever particular ty pes of securities are rated. State
law and the Town’s Investment Policy require that commercial paper bear the highest rating of at
least one nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. The Town’s investments in US
agencies, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal National Mortgage A ssociation, Federal Farm Credit
Banks, and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation were rated A AA by Standardand Poor’s and
AAA byMoody’s Investors Services. The Town’s investmentin the NC Capital Management Tiust
Government Portfolio, carried a credit rating of AAA by Standard & Poor’s and AA Am-nf by
Moody’s Investors Service as of June 30,2022,

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the
failure of the counterparty, the Town will not be able to recover the value of ifs investmens or
collateralsecwities thatare in the possessionofanoutside patty. TheTown’s formal policy requires
that the Town utilize a third party custodial agent forbook entry transactions, allof which are to be
atrust departiment authorized to do trust work in North Carolina and has anaccount with the Federal
Reserve. Cetified securities are to be in the custody ofthe Finance Director.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The Town’s investment policy limits the amount that the Townay
invest in any one issuer, except for U.S. Treasury securities and the North Carolina Capital
Management Trust, to 30% of total investments. Investments which are restricted further are
commercial paper, limited to no more than 25% oftotalinvestments and no more than $3,000,000
in a single issuer. More than 5% of the Town’s investments are in Federal Home Loan Moitgage
Corporation (10.39%), Federal Home Loan Bank (15.23%), and Federal Farm Credit Banks
{13.84%), and Federal National Mortgage Association (10.89%).
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3. Receivables - Allowance for doubtful Accounts

Taxes and
Related Accrued Pue from
Accounts Accrued Interest Other
Receivable Interest Receivable  Governments Total

Governmental activities:

General hy 10446 § 62,045 § 5231  § 5265497 § 5,343,219
Other govemnmentals - - 529 67,296 67,825
Total receivables 10,446 62,045 5,760 5,332,793 5,411,044

Allowance for doubtful accounts - (287) - - (287)
Total governmental activities $ 10446 § 61,758 § 5760  $ 5332793 § 5,410,757
Business-type activities:

Water 3 994,265 % - b 2076 $ - $ 996,341

Wastewater 50,987 - 20 - 51,007

Total receivables 1,045,252 - 2,096 - 1,047,348
Allowance for doubtful accounts (7,184) - - - (7,184)
Total business-type activities $ 1038068 $ - $ 2006 § - $ 1,040,164
Amounts due from governmental agencies consist of the following:

Other
Government State Total

Governmental activities:

Sales and use tax distribution $ - $ 708,681 § 708,681

Officer court fees 239 - 239

Solid waste fees - 1,339 1,339

Land transfer tax distribution 455,807 - 455,807

Sales taxrefund - 163,734 163,734

Occupancy taxes 1,194,823 - 1,194,823

Property taxes 63,324 - 63,324

CAMA permits - 300 300

FEMA beach nourishment grant 2,605,907 - 2,605,907

Reimbursement from Dare County 67,296 - 67,296
NCDEQ Moor Shores grant - 63,320 63,320

ABC profits 8,023 - 8,023
Total governmental activities $ 4395419 § 937374 § 5,332,793

55



56

TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

4. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Primary Government

Governmental activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings

Other improvements

Machinery and equipment

Vehicles

Office furniture and equipment
Animals

Streets

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings

Other improvements

Machinery and equipment
Vehicles

Office fumiture and equipment
Animals

Streets

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Govemmental activities capital assets, net

June 30, 2021 Increases Decreases June 30, 2022
$ 2,904,521 $ - $ 2,207,792 $ 756,729
1,884,335 3,553,298 1,311,214 6,126,419
4,848,856 5,553,298 3,519,006 6,883,148
14,490,549 142,235 - 14,632,784
14,669,316 244,275 22,064 14,891,527
2,535,670 109,769 5,348 2,640,121
8,938,427 186,362 206,444 8,918,345
630,829 247,510 - 878,339
21,274 - - 21,274
12,071,069 1,398,691 - 13,469,760
53,357,134 2,328,872 233,856 55,452,150
4,143,848 351,521 . 4,495,369
8,652,664 2,028,060 22,064 10,658,660
2,182,481 105,388 5,348 2,282,521
5,935,145 929,992 206,444 6,658,693
457,085 27,260 - 484,345
13,828 4,255 - 18,083
3,647,291 646,088 - 4,293,379
25,032,342 4,092,564 233,856 28,891,050
28,324,792 (1,763,692) - 26,561,100

$ 33,173,648 $ 3,789,606 3 3,519,006 $ 33,444 248
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Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land

Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated/amortized:

Water rights
Buildings
Plant

Other improverments
Machinery and equipment

Vehicles

Office furniture and equipment

Meters

Total capital assets, being depreciated/amortized

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization for:

Water rights
Buildings
Plant

Other improvements
Machinery and equipment

Vehicles

Office furniture and equipment

Meters

Total accunulated depreciation/amortization
Total capital assets, being depreciated/amortized

Business-type activities capital assets, net

June 30, 2021 Increases Decreases June 30, 2022
5 224 814 $ - $ - $ 224,814
108,112 1,347,959 107,094 1,348,977
332,926 1,347,959 107,094 1,573,791
3,610,620 - - 3,610,620
412,781 19,542 - 432,323
6,892,628 42,424 - 6,935,052
17,202,448 186,141 - 17,388,589
915,107 - - 915,107
318,675 - - 318,675
135,510 19,000 - 154,510
1,830,590 - - 1,830,590
31,318,359 267,107 - 31,585,466
2,806,469 90,266 - 2,896,735
391,971 1,867 - 393,838
1,766,729 152,248 - 1,918,977
9,236,254 311,941 - 9,548,195
724,113 47,395 - 771,508
265,598 19,019 - 284,617
95,515 14,861 - 110,376
823,238 73,080 - 896,318
16,109,887 710,677 - 16,820,564
15,208,472 {443,570) - 14,764,902

$ 15,541,397 b 904,389 $ 107,094 $ 16,338,692
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Depreciation and amortization expenses were charged to functions/programs of the primary government
as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 2,421,320
Public safety 371,316
Transportation 766,963
Public works 14,677
Environmental protection 518,288
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 4,092,564

Business-type activities:

Water $ 616,410
Wastewater 4,001
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities 620,411

Business-type activities:

Water 90,266
Total amortization expense - business-type activities 90,266
Total depreciation and amortization expenses - business-type activities 5 710,677

Breakdown of capital outlay increases for Governmental activities:

Capital outlay expenditures b 6,570,956
CIP completed projects 1,311,214
Total increases in capital assets being depreciated and not being depreciated 7,882,170
Depreciation 4,092,564
Total increases in Governmental activity capital assets, net % 3,789,606
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5. Construction commitments

The Town has active construction projects as of June 30, 2022. At year-end, the Town’s

commitments with contractors are as follows:

Remaining
Project Spent-to-date Commitment
Meekins Field Improvements $ 930,098 297,893
Aviation Park Pavilion 51,509 6,484
Seminole, Indian and 158 drainage 71,085 11,315
improvements
W Third St engineering, water main 2,793,711 50,374
and sidewalk improvements
KDH Water Master Plan 111,966 12,434
2022 Beach Nourishment Project 3,517,027 3,410,796
$ 7,475,396 3,778,296

6. Right to Use Leased Assets

The Town has recorded three right to use leased assets. The assets are right to use assets for leased
equipment, The related leases are discussed in the Leases subsection of the Liabilities section of
this note. The right to use lease assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the

related leases.

Right to use asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows:

June 30, 2021 Increases Decreases June 30, 2022
Governmental Activities:
Right to use assels
Leased equipment 3 - $ 47,860 5,327 b 42,533
‘Fotal right to use assets - 47,860 5,327 42,533
Less accumulated amortization for;
Leased equipment - 5,687 2,604 3,023
Total accemulated amortization - 5,687 2,604 3,023
Right to use assets, net $ - 8 42,173 2,663 3 39,510
June 30, 2021 Increases Decreases June 30, 2022
Busincss-type Activities:
Right to use assets
Leased equipment $ - 3 2,664 - $ 2,604
Total right to use assets - 2,664 - 2,664
Less accumulated amortization for:
Leased equipment - 533 - 533
Total accumulated amortization - 533 - 533
Right to use assets, net $ - $ 2,131 - $ 2,131
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B. Liabilities
1. Accrued liabilities

Accrued liabilities reported by governmental funds at June 30, 2022, were as follows:

General Fund
Salary and employee benefits $ 390,371
Other 201,049
Total accrued liabilities $ 591,420

2.  Pension Plan and Post-Employment Obligations
a. North Carolina Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System.

Plan Description. The Town of Kill Devil Hills is a participating employer in the statewide Local
Governmental Employees” Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of North Carolina. LGERS membership is
comprised of general employees and local law enforcement officers (LEOs) of participating local
governmental entities. Article 3 of N.C.G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and
amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. Management of the plan is
vested in the LGERS Board of Trustees, which consists of 13 members — nine appointed by the
Governor, one appointed by the State Senate, one appointed by the State House of Representatives,
and the State Treasurer and State Superintendent, who serve as ex-officio members. The Local
Governmental Employees’ Retirement System is included in the Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report (ACFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State’s ACFR includes the financial
statements and required supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by
writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina
27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454, or at www.osc.nc.gov.

Benefits Provided. LGERS provides retirement and survivor benefits. Retirement benefits are
determined as 1.85% of the member’s average final compensation times the member’s years of
creditable service. A member’s average final compensation is calculated as the average of a
member’s four highest consecutive years of compensation. Plan members are eligible to retire
with full retirement benefits at age 65 with five years of creditable service, at age 60 with 25 years
of creditable service, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service. Plan members are eligible
to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 20 years of creditable service or at age 60
with five years of creditable service (age 55 for firefighters). Survivor benefits are available to
eligible beneficiaries of members who die while in active service or within 180 days of their last
day of service and who have either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age (15
years of creditable service for firefighters and rescue squad members who are killed in the line of
duty) or have completed five years of service and have reached age 60. Eligible beneficiaries
may elect to receive a monthly Survivor’s Alternate Benefit for life or a return of the member’s
contributions. The plan does not provide for automatic post-retirement benefit increases.
Increases are contingent upon actuarial gains of the plan.
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L.GERS plan members who are LEQOs are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 55
with five years of creditable service as an officer, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service.
LEQ plan members are eligible to retive with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 15 years
of creditable service as an officer. Survivor benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of LEO
members who die while in active service or within 180 days of their last day of service and who
also have either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age, or have completed 15
years of service as a LEQ and have reached age 50, or have completed five years of creditable
service as a LEO and have reached age 53, or have completed 15 years of creditable service as a
LEO ifkilled in the line of duty. Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor’s
Alternate Benefit for life or a refurn of the member’s contributions.

Contributions. Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 128-30 and may be
amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly. Town of Kill Devil Hills employees are
required to coniribute 6% of their compensation. Employer contributions are actuarily determined
and set annually by the LGERS Board of Trustees. The Town of Kill Devil Hills’ contractually
required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2022, was 12.10% of compensation for law
enforcement officers and 11.35% for general employees and firefighters, actuarially determined
as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs
of benefits earned by employees during the year, Contributions to the pension plan from the Town
of Kill Devil Hills were $943,546 for the year ended June 30, 2022,

Refunds of Contributions — Town employees who have terminated service as a contributing
member of LGERS, may file an application for a refund of their contributions. By state law,
refunds to members with at least five years of service include 4% interest. State law requires a
60 day waiting period after service termination before the refund may be paid. The acceptance of
a refund payment cancels the individual’s right to employer contributions or any other benefit
provided by LGERS.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resourees and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2022, the Town reported a liability of $1,477,466 for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, The total
pension liability wsed to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of December 31, 2020. The total pension liability was then rolled forward to the
measurement date of June 30, 2021 utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial
assumptions. The Town’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
Town’s long-term share of future payroll covered by the pension plan, relative to the projected
future payroll covered by the pension plan of all participating LGERS employers, actuarialty
determined. At June 30, 2021, the Town’s proportion was 0.09634%, which is a decrease of
0.00277% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized pension expense of $661,698. At June
30, 2022, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferved OQutflows  Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 470,035 % -
Changes of assumplions 928,226 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments - 2,110,856
Changes in proportion and differences between Town
conlributions and proportionate share of confributions 43,843 -
Town contributions subsequent {o the measurement date 943,546 -

Total b 2,385,650 § 2,110,856

$943,546 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Town
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease of the nel
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2023, Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

2023 ¥ 159,714
2024 {26,019)
2025 (156,512)
2026 {645,935)
2027 -
Thereafter -

5 {668,752)
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Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liabilily in the December 31, 2020 actuarial valuation
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the

measurement:

[nflation 3.0 percent

Salary increases 3.50 to 8.10 percent, including inflation and productivity
factor

Investment rate of return 7.0 percent, net of pension plan investment expense,

including inflation

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. general,
law enforcement officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The current mortality rates
are based on published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of the U.S.
population. The healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality
improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2020 valuation were based on the results of
an actuarial experience study for the period Janvary 1, 2010 through December 31, 2014.

Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively antomatic and are therefore
not included in the measurement.

The projected long-term investment retumms and inflation assumptions are developed through
review of current and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consuliant
whitepapers, and historical performance of investment strategies. Fixed income return projections
reflect curent yields across the U.S. Treasury yield curve and market expectations of forward
yields projected and interpolated for muitiple tenors and over multiple year horizons. Global
public equity return projections are established through analysis of the equity risk premium and
the fixed income return projections. Other asset categories and strategies’ return projections
reflect the foregoing and historical data analysis. These projections are combined to produce the
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class as of June 30, 2021 are
surnmarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected Real

Asset Class Target Allocation Rate of Return

Fixed Income 29.0% 1.4%
Global Equity 42.0% 5.3%
Real Estate 8.0% 4.3%
Altematives 8.0% 8.9%
Credit 7.0% 6.0%
Inflation Protection 6.0% 4.0%

Total 100%

The information above is based on 30 year expectations developed with the consulting actuary
for the 2020 asset liability and investment polcy study for the North Carolina Retirement
Systems, including LGERS. The long-term nominal rates of return underlying the real rates of
return are arithmetic annualized figures. The real rates of return are calculated from nominal rates
by multiplicatively subtracting a long-termn inflation assumption of 3.00%. All rates of return and
inflation are annualized. '
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Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension Hability was 6.50%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will
be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on these assumptions, the
pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of the current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of retum
on pension plan investments was applied o all periods of projected benefit payments to determine
the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Town'’s proportionate share of the net pension asset to changes in the discount
rate. The following presents the Town’s proportionate share of the net pension asset calculated
using the discount rate of 6.50 percent, as well as what the Town’s proportionate share of the net
pension asset or net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
one percentage point lower (5.50 percent) or one percentage point higher (7.50 percent) than the
current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(5.50%) (6.50%) (7.50%)

Town's proportionate share of the net
pension liability {asset) § 5,735,402 $ 1,477,466 $ {2,026,567)

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for
the State of North Carolina.

b. Law Enforcement Officers Special Separation Allowance,
1. Plan Description:

The Town of Kill Devil Hills administers a public employee retivement systemn (the
“Separation Allowance™), a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides
retirement benefits to the Town’s qualified sworn law enforcement officers under the age of
62 who have completed at least 30 years of creditable service or have attained 55 years of age
and have completed five or more years of creditable service. The Separation Allowance is
equal to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of the base rate of compensation most recently
applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service. The retirement benefits are not
subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be authorized by the
General Assembly. Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to establish and
amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.

All full-time law enforcement officers of the Town are covered by the Separation Allowance.
At December 31, 2020 (the valuation date), the Separation Allowance’s membership consisted

of:
Retirees receiving benefits 3
Perminated plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits -
Active plan membeis 28

Total . 31
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of Accounting. The Town has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay as you
go basis, Pension expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Benefits are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with terms of the plan,

The Separation Allowance has no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria which
are outlined in GASB Statement 73,

3. Actuarial Assumptions
The entry age actuarial cost method was used in the December 31, 2020 valuationr. The total

pension liability in the December 31, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.50 percent

Salary increases 325 to 7.75 percent, including inflation and
productivity factor

Discount rate 2.25 percent

The discount rate is the S & P Municipal Bond 20-year High Grade Rate Index.

Mortality rates use Pub-2010 amount weighted tables and are projected from 2010 using
generational improvement with Scale MP-2019.

4. Contribufions.

The Town is required by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits
and has chosen to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits earned on a pay as you go
basis through appropriations in the General Fund operating budget. There were no
contributions made by employees, The Town’s obligation to contribute to this plan s
established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. The Town paid
$46,791 as benefits came due for the reporting period.
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Pension Liubilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2022, the Town reported a total pension liability of $ 1,536,899. The total pension
liability was measured as of December 31, 2021 based on a December 31, 2020 actuarial
valuation. The total pension liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of
December 31, 2021 utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. For
the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized pension expense of $177,233.

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual § 126,922 $ 116,367
expcerience
Changes of assumptions 305,600 52,065
Town benefit payments subsequent to the
measurement date 23,971 -
Teatal 3 456,493 $ 168,432

$23,971 reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pension resulting from benefits
payments made and administrative expenses incurred subsequent to the measurement date will
be recognized as a decrease of the total pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2023, Other
amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2023 $ 67273
2024 69,951
2025 74,407
2026 42,248
2027 10,116
Thereafter 95

Sensitivity of the Town’s total pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following
presents the Town’s total pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 2.25 percent,
as well as what the Town’s proportionate share of the net pension asset or net pension liability
waould be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (1.25
percent) or one percentage point higher (3.25 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(1.25%) (2.25%) (3.25%)
Town’s pension liability $1,678,203 $1,536,899 $1,408,616
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Schedule of Changes in Total Pension Liability
Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance

Total pension liability December 31, 2020 ) $ 1,470,254
Changes for the year:
Service cost at end of year 84,172
Interest 27,907
Change in benefit terms -
Differences between expecied and actuarial experience 46,956
Changes of assumptions and other inputs (43,759)
Benefit payments (48,631)
Other changes -
Net changes 66,645
Total Pension liability December 31, 2021 $ 1,536,899

Total Expense, Liabilities, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources of Related to
Pensions

Following is information related to the proportionate share and pension expense for all pension

plans:
LGERS LEOSSA Total

Pension Expense $ 661,698 § 177,233 § 838,931
Pension Liability 1,477,460 1,536,899 3,014,365
Proportionate share of the net pension Lability 0.09634% n/a -
Deferred of Outflows of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 470,035 126,922 596,957

Changes of assumptions 928,226 305,600 1,233,826

Net difference between projected and actual eamings on plan

invesiments - - -

Changes in proportion and differences between contributions and

proportionate share of contributions 43,843 - 43,843

Benefit payments and administrative costs paid subsequent to the

measurement date 943,546 23,971 967,517

Deferred of Inflows of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience 2,110,856 116,367 2,227,223
Changes of assumptions - 52,005 52,065
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¢. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (457-B) for Law Enforcement and Non-Law
Enforcement Officers.

The Town adopted a Supplemental Retirement Income Plan, a defined contribution plan, for all
employees beginning May 13, 2013, The Town does not, and has no requirement or obligation
under North Carolina General Statutes to contribute to the Plan. All contributions are voluntarily
made by employees. Total contributions for the year ended June 30, 2022, were $21,110 that
consisted of $21,110 from the non-law enforcement officers and $0 from law enforcement
officers.

d. Other Post - Employment Benefits — Health Benefils

Cobra Benefits. Under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA), the
Town provides health care benefits to eligible former employees and eligible dependents, The
federal government outlines certain requirements for this coverage. The premium plus a 2%
administration fee is paid in full by the insured. This program is offered for a duration of up to
three years depending on specific circumstances.

¢. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (401-K) for Law Enforcement Officers.

Plan Description. The Town contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a
defined contribution pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board
of Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the
Town. Article 5 of N.C.G.S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and amend bencfit to
the North Carolina General Assembly. The Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law
Enforcement Officers is included in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the
State of North Carolina. The State’s ACFR includes the pension trust fund financial statements
for the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k) plan that includes the Supplemental Retirement
Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office
of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699-1410, or by calling
(919)981-5454,

Funding Policy. Article 12E of N.C.G. S. Chapter 143 requires the Town to contribute each
month an amount equal to 5% of each officer’s salary, and all amounts contributed are vested
immediately. Also, the law enforcement officers may make voluntary contributions to the Plan.
Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2022 were $150,366 which consisted of $97,314 from
the Town and $53,052 from law enforcement officers. The contributions made by the Town
equaled the required contributions for each year.

f. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (401-K) for Non-Law Enforcement Officers.

The Town adopted a Suppiemental Retirement Income Plan, a defined contribution plan, for
employees, other than law enforcement, beginning January 31, 1991, The Town contributes an
amount equal to 3% of each employee’s salary plus an additional 2% matching contribution
{excluding law enforcement officers), and alt amounts contributed are vested immediately. The
Town has no requirement or obligation under North Carolina General Statutes to contribute to the
Plan. Employees may also make voluntary contributions to the plan. Total contributions for the
year ended June 30, 2022, were $558,002 that consisted of $299,626 from the Town and $258,376
from employees.
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g. Other Post Employment Benefits - Health Care Benefifs,

Plan Description: Underthe terms ofa Town resolutionas of July 1, 2007, the Town administers
a single-employer defined benefit Healthcare Benefits Plan (the HCB Plan). The Town
administers the HCB Plan through a master iirevocable trust agreement dated July 10, 2019, A
Board resolution ofthe same date appointed the Town Manager, the Finance Ditector, and the
FHuman Resources Director as (rustees and granted the trustees the authority necessary to perfom
all the duties and obligations related to the trust. Management of the HCB is vesied in the trust
trustees. The Town does not issue separate HCB Plan financial statements, and all required
statements and disclosures have been included within this report with the HCB Plan and
irevocable trust accounted for as a Pension Trust Fund. The significant accounting policies of
the HCB are disclosed in Note 1.B.

Benefits Provided: The HCB Plan provides post-retirement health care benefits to those retited
under the Local Government Employee’s Retirement System(LGERS) and have at least twenty
years of creditable service to the Town. Priorto July 1, 2007, employees qualified for similar
level benefits afterat least five years of creditable service with the Town. The same benefits ae
provided for eligible dependents and spouses. This insurance terminates when the retired
employee becomes eligible for Medicare; however, supplemental non-group insurance is made
available. The governing board may amend the benefit provisions.

Membership of the HCB Plan consisted of the following at June 30, 2021 the date of the htest

actuarial valuation:
Inactive Members or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits 47
Inactive Members Entitled To, But Not Yet Receiving Benefits -
Active Members 113
Total Membership 160

Contributions: The Town contributes based on projected pay as you go financing requirements
with an additional amount to prefund the benefits as determined annually during the budget
process. There are no contractualterms requiring a s pecific funding level. Forthe cutrent year,
the Town contributed $ 478,676 of pay as you go funding and additional §$18,000 for a total of
$4906,676.

Investments: The Town Board established and may amend the HCB Plan’s policy forallocation
of investedassets, Investments are valuedat fair value. (Note 2)

The following was the Town’s asset allocation policy and estimates ofthe rates of return for each
major assei class as ofJune 30,2021 and June 30, 2022:

Long-Term Expected Real
Target Allocation Rate of Refurn
Asset Class 2022 2021 2022 2021
Equity Index Fund 100% 100% 7.10% 6.75%
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Total OPEB Liability

The Town’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total OPEB Hability
used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation of June 30,
2021,

The components of the net OPEB Hability of the Town at June 30, 2021 were as follows;

Total OPEB liability $9,679,018
Plan Fiduciary net position 275,652
Town’s net OPEB liability 9,403,366

Plan fiduciary net position as a
Percentage of the total OPEBR
Liability 2.85%

Actuarial assumptions and other inputs. The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2021 valuation
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement unless otherwise specified:

Inflation 2.5 percent

Salary increases 3.25 percent, average, including inflation
Discount rate 3.54 percent

Healthcare cost trend rates Medical — 7%

Prescription — 7%
Admin Expenses — 3.00%

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 mortality tables with adjustments for LGERS
experience and generational mortality improvements using Scale MP-2019

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was based upon the Single Equivalent
Interest Rate.
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Change in Net OPEB Liability

Total OPEB
Liability (a}

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position (b)

Net OPEB
Liabifity (a)-(b)

Balance as of June 30, 2021 $ 10,137,767 $ 305,117 $ 9,832,650
Changes for the yean:
Service Cost 476,750 - 476,750
Interest 213,834 - 213,834
Difference between expected and actual -
experience 319,331 319,331
Changes in assumptions or other inputs (989,984) - {989,984)
Contributions - employer - 496,680 (496,680)
Net investment income - (47,465) 47,465
Net Benefit payments {478,680) (478,080) -
Net changes (458,749) (29,465) {429,284)
Balance as of June 30, 2022 hY 9,679,018 $ 275,652 $ 9,403,366

Changes of Assumptions. The demographic actuarial assumptions for retirement, disability
incidence, withdrawal, and salary increases used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2015 - December 31, 2019,
adopted by LGERS.

The remaining actuarial assumptions (e.g. initial per capita costs, health care cost trends, rate of
plan participation, rates of plan election, etc.) used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on
a review of recent plan experience done concurrently with the June 30, 2021 valuation.

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the
Town’s net OPEB liability calculated using the discount rate of 3.54 percent, as well as what the
Town's net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one
percentage point lower (2.54 percent) or one percentage point higher (4.54 percent) than the
current rate:

1% Increase
3459474

Discount Rafe (3.54%)
9,403,366 3

1% Decrease
10,503,226 $

Net OPEB liability $

Sensitivity of the net OPER Hability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following
presents the net OPEB Hability of the Town, as well as what the Town’s net OPEB liability would
be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are |-percentage-point lower or 1-
percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

1% Increase
10,746,127

1% Decrease Current
8,295,651 §

Net OPEB liability $ 9,403,366 $

Vi
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OPLB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resourees and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized OPEB expense of $721,746. At June 30,
2022, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to OPEB from the following sources:

Peferred Owtflows  Deferred Inflows of

of Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience § 589,996 $ -
Changes of assumptions 651,283 980,367
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan investments 17451 -
Total $ 1,258,730 § 980,367

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

2023 $ 54,544
2024 108,254
2025 132,459
2026 115,253
2027 (108,426)
Thereafter (23,721}

3. Other Employment Benefits

The Town has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for
members of the Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a
multiple-employer state-administered cost-sharing plan funded on a one year term cost basis. The
beneficiaries ol those employees who die in active service after one year of contributing membership
in the System, or who die within 180 days after retirement or termination of service and have at least
one year of contributing membership service in the System at the time of death are eligible for death
benefits. Lump sum death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee's 12 highest
months salary in a row during the 24 months prior to his/her death, but the benefit may not exceed
$50,000 or be less than $25,000. All death benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan.
The Town has no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. The contributions to the
Death Benefit Plan cannot be separated between the post-employment benefit amount and other
benefit amount. The Town considers these contributions to be immaterial. Contributions are
determined as a percentage of monthly payrolls, based upon rates established annually by the State.
Separate rates are st for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement
officers, Because the benefit payments are made by the Death Benefit Plan and not by the Town,
the Town does not determine the number of eligible participants. For the fiscal year ended June 30,
2022, the Town made coniributions to the State for death benefits of $7,092. The Town’s required
contributions for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers
represented .07% and .14% of covered payroll respectively.

The Town has also elected to provide additional death benefits to all active employees through a
commercial carrier, Benefits are equal to one times an employee’s salary, based on their annual
salary at July 1. Retirees are covered for a benefit amount of $25,000 until they reach Medicare
age.
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4. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources at year-end is comprised of the following:
Statement of

Net Position
Contributions to pension plan in the current fiscal year LGERS 3 943,547
Benefit payments made for LEGSSA subsequent to measurement date 23,971
Benefit payments made for OPEB subsequent to measurement date -
Differences between expected and actual experience 1,186,953
Changes of agsumptions 1,885,109
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan investments 17,451
Changes in proportion and difference between contributions and proportionate share
of contributions 43,843
Total $ 4,160,874

Deferred inflows ofresources at year-end is comprised ofthe following:
Statement of  General Fund
Net Position Balance Sheet

Taxes receivable (General Fund) $ - 8 61,758
Privilege licenses receivable (General Fund) - 6,555
Differences between expected and actual experience 116,368 -
Changes in assunmptions 1,032,433 -
Net difference between projected and actual earning on plan

investments 2,119,856 -

Changes in praportion and difference between contributions and
proportionate share of contributions - -

Total $ 3,259,657 § 68,313

5., Commitments

As disclosed under lease agreements, the Town has subordinated financial claims for the Outer
Banks Chamber of Commerce lease from the Town. Under the lease agreement, the Town has the
right to cure should the Chamber of Commerce default on its obligation relating to improvements
on the leased property. The Town has the right to assume the obligation and has full recourse against
the Chamber of Commerce.

The Town was committed under various open purchase orders and contracts as of June 30, 2022 for
$2.096,088. Those amounts which relate to the General Fund, and are included in the stabilization
by state statute in the fund balance section of the Combined Balance Sheet (Exhibit 3), are primarily
for improvements to Meekins Field, zoning ordinance updates, roof replacements at the recycle
center and Town Hall, new radios for the Fire Department, a dump truck, and 5 garbage trucks.

Commitments relating to capital project funds included contracts for construction services for the
2022 Beach Nourishment project of $3,410,797.

The outstanding contracts that relate to the Water Fund total $90,340 and are primarily for the KDH
water master plan project, W Third St water main improvement, meters and materials for meter
installation.
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6. Risk Management

The Town is exposedto various risks ofloss related to torts; theftof, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Town participates in
three self-funded risk-financing pools adminis tered by the North Carolina League of Municipalities.
Throughthese pools, the Town obtains general liability and auto liability coverage of $3 million per
occurrence, property coverage up to the total insurance vatues of the property policy and workers’
compensation coverage up to statutory limits, and employee health coverage up to a $2 miilion
lifetime limit. The liability and property exposures are reinsured through commercial carriers for
claims inexcess ofretentions as selected by the Board of Trustees eachyear. Stop loss insurance is
purchased by the Board of Trustees to protect against large medical claims thatexceed certain dollar
cost levels. Specific information on the limits of reinsurance, excess and stop loss policies
purchased by the Board of Trustees can be obtained by contacting the Risk Management Services
Department of the NC League of Municipalities. Thepools are audited annually by certified public
accountants, and the audited financial statements are avaifable to the Town upon request.

The Town carries commercial insurance forall otherrisks ofloss. Settled claims resulting from
theserisks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any ofthe past three fiscal years.

The Town carties flood insurance through the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP). Because
the Town is in ornearan area designated as a Flood Hazard Zone dueto ocean orsound waters by
the Federal Emergency Management A gency, the Town s eligible to purchasecoverage of$500,000
perstructure throughthe NFIP.

The Town carrics a bond on its finance officer in the amount of $150,000, and on its tax collector
in the amount of $10,000. Blanket coverage for all other employees is equivalent to $50,000 per
occurrence,

7. Claims, Judgments and Confingent Liabilitics

At June 30, 2022, in the opinion of the Town’s management and the Town A ttorney, the Town
was not involved in any claims, judgments orcontingent liabilities.

8. Long-Term Obligations
a. Leases

The Town has entered into agreements to lease certain equipment. The lease agreements
qualify as otherthan short-termleases under GASB 87 and, therefore, have been recorded at
the present value of the future minimumlease payments as ofthe date oftheir inception.

On October5,2021, the Town entered intoa 60-month lease as Lessee for the use ofa Pitney
Bowes postagemeter in the A dministrationdepartment. Aninitial lease liability was reconded
in the amount of$17,356. As ofJune 30,2022, the value ofthe leaseliability is $14,804. The
Town is required to make quatterly fixed payments of$895. The lease has an implicit interest
rate of 1.2480%. The equipment estimated useful life was 60 months as ofthe contract
commencement. The value of the right to use assetas of June 30, 2022 of §17,356 with
accumulated amortization of$2,603 is discussed in more detail ins the right to use asset section
ofthis note.
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On June 1, 2022, the Town entered into a 60 month leaseas Lessee forthe use ofan HP plotter
in the Planning department. An initial lease lability was recorded in the amount of $25,177.
As of June 30, 2022, the value ofthe lease liability is $24,745. Town of Kill Devil Hills is
required to make monthly fixed payments of $450. The lease has an implicit interest rate of
2.8520%. The Equipment estimated useful life was 60 months as of the contract
commencement. The value of the right to use assetas of June 30, 2022 of $25,177 with
accumulated amortization of$420 is discussed in more detailin the right to use assetsection
of this note.

On July 1, 2021, Town ofKill Devil Hills, NC entered into a 20-month lease as Lesseefor the
us¢ ofan HP plotterin the Planning department. An initial lease liability was recordedin the
amount of $5,327. This equipment was used in the Planning department for 10 months and
accumulated amortization 0£$2,664 was recorded. On May 1,2022, the assetwas transfened
to the Water Administration department. At the time of the transfer the asset had a value of
$2,664. As ofJune30, 2022, the value ofthe lease liability is $2,131. The Town is required
to make monthly fixed payments 0f$267. The lease has an implicit interest rate 0£0.5930%.
The Equipment estimated useful life was 20 months as of the contract commencement. The
value ofthe right to use assetas of June 30,2022 of$2,664 with accumulated amortization of
$532 is discussed in more detail in the right to use assetsection ofthis note.

On July I, 2021, the Town entered into an 18-month lease as Lessee for the use of Systel
copiers. No lease asset or lease liability are recorded as there is no fixed amount of the
payment. Instead outflows of resouices are recognized monthly based on the number of pages
printed. Non-color pages are charged at a rate of .0495 cents for the first 30,000 pages and
030 for any pages over 30,000. Color pages are charged at .078 cents per page for the fist
13,500 and .069 for any pages over 13,500. A total 0f$23,695 was recognized as an outflow
ofresources for lease of the copiers for governmental activities and $2,131 was recognizd as
an outflow ofresources forlease ofthe copiers for business-type activities.

The future minimum fease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease
paymentsas of June 30,2022, were as follows:

Govemmental activities:

Year Ending Principal Interest
June 30 Payments Payments Total

2023 3 8,169 b 813 3 8,982
2024 8,349 632 8,981
2025 8,534 448 8,982
2026 8,724 258 8,982
2027 5,713 72 5,845

3 39,549 $ 2,223 $ 41,772

Business-type activities:

Year Ending Principal Interest
June 30 Payments Payments Total
2023 $ 2,131 by 5 3 2,136

$ 2,131 b 5 3 2,136
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b. Direct Borrowing and Direct Placement Installment Purchase Contracts

In April 2014, the Town entered into a $1,048,175 direct borrowing installment purchase
confract to finance a fire fruck. The interest rate was 2.12% per annum fixed. The financing
contract requires twenty semi-annual payments of $57,824 each. In January 2018, due to the
corporate tax yield maintenance provision, the interest rate increased to 2.58%. A UCC
security agreement i the acquired equipment serves as collateral to secure the required
payment. Effective October 2018, the remaining eleven semi-annual payments are $58,659
each.

In February 2016, the Town entered into a $511,617 direct borrowing installment purchase
contract to finance a fire pumper. A UCC security agreement in the acquired equipiment serves
as collateral to secure the required payment. The interest rate is 1.87% per annum fixed. The
financing contract requires fourteen semi-annual payments of $38,796 each.

In February 2019, the Town entered into a $828,481 direct borrowing installment purchase
contract to finance various vehicles for general government, public safety, streets, a Mack roll
off and garbage truck for solid waste. A UCC security agreement in the acquired equipment
serves as collateral to secure the required payment. The interest rate is 2.71% per annum fixed.
The money was placed in an interest-bearing account until related assets were acquired. The
financing contract requires eight semi-annual payments of $108,504 each.

In May 2020, the Town entered into a $1,235,727 direct borrowing installment purchase
contract to finance a variety of vehicles and equipment including two garbage trucks and police
equipment. A UCC security agreement in the acquired equipment serves as collateral to secure
the required payment. The interest rate is 2.43% per annum fixed. The money was placed in
an interest-bearing account until related assets were acquired, The financing contract requires
eight semi-annuat payments of $161,074 each.

In May 2021, the Town entered into a $505,613 direct borrowing installment purchase contract
to finance a variety of vehicles and equipment including two garbage trucks and police
equipment. A UCC security agreement in the acquired equipment serves as colfateral to secure
the required payment. The interest rate is .92% per annum fixed. The money was placed in
an interest-bearing account untii related assets were acquired. Unexpended proceeds at June
30, 2022, equaled $14,065. The financing confract requires eight semi-annual payments of
$64,221 each,

In April 2022, the Town entered into a $1,367,448 direct borrowing installment purchase
contract to finance various vehicles and equipment including police vehicles, a backhoe, dump
truck, and 3 garbage trucks. A UCC security agreement in the acquired equipment serves as
collateral to secure the required payment. The interest rate is 2.41% per annum fixed. The
money was placed in an interest-bearing account until related assets were acquired.
Unexpended proceeds at June 30, 2022, equaled $1,257,673. The financing contract requires
eight semi-annual payments of $178,182 each.

in October 20135, the Town entered into a direct borrowing installment purchase contract with
a financial institution for $2,337,660 over 15 years at a fixed rate of 2.68%. The agreement
provided financing for Phase 11 improvements of the Town’s Public Works Complex.  This
property is pledged as collateral for the debt while the debt is ocutstanding,
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In January 2019, the Town entered into a direct borrowing installment purchase contract with
a financial institution for $4,564,956 over 15 years at a fixed rate of 4.07%. The agreement
provided financing for Phase Il improvements of the Town’s Public Works Complex. This
propertyis pledged as collateral forthe debt while the debtis outstanding,

In July 2021, the Town entered into a contract for a financed purchase for $233,155 over 5
years at an implicit rate of 1.25%. The agreement provides forinstaliment financing ofbody
cameras for the police department, requiring an initial payment of $5,815 and five annual
payments of$45,468.

In December 2021, the Town issued direct placement special obligation bonds in the amount
0f $593,224 under a five-year installment financing agreement with PNC Bank to fund a
portion of beach nourishiment costs. The financing contract requires semi-annual interest
payments beginning in June 2022, and annual principal payments beginning in December 2022
with fised interestrate of 1.92% for 5 years. Thedebtl is secured by that portion of the 1%
Land Transfer Taxauthorized by HouseBill 882 distributed fromDare County tothe Town.

In December 2021, the Town issued variable rate special obligation bonds in the amount of
$3,638,169 undera one year financing agreement with PNCBank to fund a portion ofbeach
nourishment costs. The financing contract requires quarterly interest payments beginning in
January 2022 and one principal payment in December 2022 using proceeds received fromthe
US Department of Homeland Security’s Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)
grant. If proceeds fromthe FEMA grant are not received by this date the bond maturity date
will be extended. The debt is secured by amounts received by the Town from the State of
North Carolina as approved pursuant to a FEMA federal grant associated with Hurricane
Dorian and amounts ondeposit in the Kill Devil Hills FEMA Beach Nourishment2021B loan
fund and Kill Devil Hills FEM A Beach Nourishiment 2021B sinking fund.

Annual debt service payments on these installment purchases ofJune 30,2022 including
principaland interest are as follows (Governmental Activities):

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest
2023 $5,287,326 $240,098

2024 1,304,220 168,603

2025 1,032,850 137,178

2026 808,362 109,105

2027 578,819 87,473
2028-2032 1,975,693 189,493
$10,987,270 $931,949

In March 2010, the Town entered inte a direct borrowing instaliment purchase contract with
The Notth Carolina Departiment of Environment and Natural Resources fora waterproject in
the principal sumof $112,522. As part of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009 (ARRA), the unpaid principal sum was immediately reduced by one half of the loan
amount as principal forgiveness. Interest on the balance of $56,261 accrues at 0% overa
period oftwenty years.
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Annual debt service requirements for Purchase Contracts as of June 30, 2022, are as follows

(Business-ty pe Activities):

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest
2023 $ 2,813 $-

2024 2,813 -

2025 2,813 -

2026 2,813 -

2027 2,813 -
2028-2030 8,439 -
$22,504 $-

c. Legal Debt Margin

North Carolina General Statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of governnent
can issueto 8% ofthe total assessed value of taxable property located within the Town’s boundaries.
The legal debt margin for the Town of Kill Devil Hills is $230,024,306. The Town had no

outstanding bonded debt subject tothe limitation at June 30,2022.

d. Changes in General Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of changes in general long-termdebt forthe yearended June 30, 2022:

Current
Potion of
June 30, 202} Increases Decreases  June 30, 2022 Balance
Government activities:
Direct Borrowing Installment Purchase $ 7,278,230 $ 1,600,603 $ 2,122956 $ 6,755,877 § 1,48735]
Direct Placement Installment Purchase 1,007,339 4,231,393 1,607,339 4,231,393 3,756,814
Compensated absences-net 870,236 772,597 709,860 932,973 600,300
Lease Liability - 47,860 8,311 39,549 8,169
Net Pension Liability (LGERS) 3,124,420 - 1,820,999 1,303,421 -
Total Pension Liability (LEQ) 1,470,254 66,645 - 1,536,899 -
Net OPEB Liability 8,674,364 - 378,714 8,295,650 -
Total $ 22424843 $ 6,719,098 $ 6,048,179 § 23095762 & 5852334
Business-type activities:
Direct Borrowing Instalknent Purchase $ 25318 § - % 2813 § 22,504 % 2,813
Compensated absences-net 94,646 105,272 102,709 97,209 70,000
Lease Liability - 2,664 533 2,131 2,131
Net Pension Liability (LGERS) 417,203 - 243,158 174,045 -
Net OPEB Liability 1,158,286 - 50,570 1,107,716 -
Total § 1695453 § 107936 § 399783 $ 1,403,605 $ 74,944
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Compensated absences for governmental and business-type activities have typically been liguidated in
the General Fund and Water Fund respectively, and are accounted for on a LIFO basis, assuming that
employees are taking leave time as it is earned. For governmental activities, the net pension liability and
net OPEB liability are liquidated by the General Fund.

9. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

Interfund
Receivable/Payable:
Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
Water Fund Wastewater Fund $ 450,543

The Town was forced into receivership of the Ocean Acres Wastewater Treatment System (OCAWWTS)
in 1985 as it was severely out of compliance with its permit and company finances were in arrears.
Following was a long and complicated history that in 2005 finally resulted in the Town’s ability to
eliminate the OAWWTS in favor of connecting all customers to the privately-owned Kill Devil Hills
Wastewater Treatment Plant, LLC, thus increasing the customer base which will eventually allow for
repayment of this loan.

Transfers to/from other funds at June 30, 2022, consist of the following:

From general fund to capital reserve fund (for capital projects) $216,136
From wastewater fund to water fund (to repay wastewater debt) $18,750
From capital project fund to general fund (to close capital project fund) $533,970

10, Oun-Behalf Payments for Fringe Benefits and Salaries

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the Town has recognized on-behalf payments for pension
contributions made by the State as revenue and an expenditure of $14,325 for the 17 volunteer firefighters
and the 20 employed firefighters who perform firefighting duties for the Town’s Fire Department. The
volunteers and employees elected to be members of the Firemen’s and Rescue Worker’s Pension Fund, a
cost sharing, multiple employer public employee retirement system established and administered by the
State of North Carolina. The Pension Fund is funded by a $10 monthly contribution paid by each member,
investment income, and a State appropriation.

11. Net Investment in Capital Assets

Governmental Business-type
Capital assets $ 33,444,248 3 16,338,692
(less): long-term debt (5,482,399 (22,504)

net of unexpended debt proceeds
Net investment in capital asset g 27,961,849 $ 16,316,188
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12. Fund Balance

The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of General
fund balance that is available for appropriation:

Total fund balance-General Fund $ 29,116,423
Less:

Inventories 203,164
Prepaid ilems 1,037
Stabilization by State statute 7,370,707
Public Safety 15,359
Streets-Powell Bill 80,977
Capital Reserve Fund 3,022,673
Appropriated Fund Balance in 2022 budget 2,254,309
Working Capital/Fund Balance Policy 9,718,583
Remaining Fund Balance $ 6,449,614

Each year during budget preparation the Board of Commissioners provides verbal guidance on the
Town’s minimum fund balance policy for the general fund which instructs inanagement to conduct
the business of the Town in such a manner that available fund balance is at least equal to or greater
than 35% of budgeted expenditures. The minimum fund balance amount may change each year at
the discretion of the Board depending on budget projections.

The outstanding encumbrances are amounts needed to pay any commitments related to purchase orders
and contracts that remain unperformed at year-end.

Encumbrances General Fund  Other Major Funds Enterprise Funds
3 2,096,088 $ 3,410,797 3 90,340
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NOTE 3. LEASE AGREEMENT

The Town entered into a lease agreement to rent land on the Baum Tract to the Quter Banks Chamber of
Commerce (lessee) in April 1986. The term of the lease was for ten consecutive years and the Town
received rent from the lessee of $100 per month for the term of the lease. The lease has a renewal option
of ten additional years that can be exercised for five successive terms. This lease was renewed in April
1996 for an additional ten years, renewed again in March 2006 for a second renewal of ten years, and
renewed in February 2016 for the third renewal of ten years,  The lessee has constructed real property
on the land, and the Town will subordinate financial claims to the mortgage holder for an amount net to
exceed 80% of the value of such real property. At the termination of the lease the property and
improvements thereon shall become the sole property of the Town. This lease was amended in March
1995 and provided that in addition to the cash rent, the lessee shall provide to the Town of Kill Devil
Hills the highest type of benefit membership to the Outer Banks Chamber of Commerce without costs.

NOTE 4, WATER PURCHASE CONTRACT

A revised water agreement with Dare County and the Town of Nags Head was signed on October 4, 1996,
Water is purchased from Dare County based on the Dare County wholesale water rate. The wholesale
water rate paid during the June 30, 2022 fiscal year was $2.152 and $1.970 per thousand gallons.

NOTE 5. INTANGIBLE WATER RIGHTS

On October 4, 1996, the Town approved a revised water agreement with Dare County and the Town of
Nags Head which allocates 3 million pallons per day of water from the system capacity, inclusive of
expansions. The Town of Kill Devil Hills will bear all costs and expenses associated with expansions
requested or required by the Town. Prior to this agreement, the Town had paid $3,610,620 towards the
construction of the reverse osmosis water desalination plant,

The intangible water rights are being amortized over 40 years. This time period corresponds to the
estimated useful life of the reverse osmosis water desalination plant. On June 30, 2022, accumulated
amortization was $2,896,735.

NOTE 6. JOINTLY GOVERNED ENTITY

The Local Government Community Access Channel continues to be administered by Dare County, with
guidance and input by the participating municipalities inciuding, but not necessarily limited to,
establishing an annual budget for operation of the channel and adoption of policies on chammel
programming.



TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 7. SUMMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES

Federal and State Assisted Programs, The Town has received proceeds from several federal and state
grants. Periodic audits of these grants are required and costs may be questioned as not being appropriate
expenditures under the grant agreements. Such audits could result in the refond of grant monies to the
grantor agencies. No provision has been made in the accompanying financial statements for the refund
of grant monies, as management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial.

Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19), During the fiscal year 2020, the World Health Organization declared
the spread of Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) a worldwide pandemic. The COVID-19 pandemic has
had significant effects on global markets, supply chains, businesses, and communities. Specific to the
Town, COVID-19 is expected to impact various parts of its fiscal year 2022-23 operations and financial
results. Management believes the Town is taking appropriate actions to mitigate the negative impact.
However, the full impact of COVID-19 is unknown and cannot be reasonably estimated as events
associated with the pandemic continue to develop.

NOTE 8. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 17, 2022, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET)
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS*

L.ocal Government Employees' Retirement System

2022 2021
Kill Devil Hills' proportion of the net pension liability (asset) (%) 0.10% 0.16%
Kill Devil Hills' proportion of the net pension liability (asset) ($) § 1,477,446 $ 3,541,623

Kill Devil Hills' covered payroll* $ 7,732,141 $ 7281756

Kill Devil Hills' proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of its

coverad payroll 19.11% 48.64%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension kability 91.63% 94.18%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as ofthe prior fiscal year ending June 30,

These schedules are presented to ilustrate the requirement for specified information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year
trend is compiled, information is only presented for those years for which information is available.

34



2020

EXHIBIT A-1

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
0.10% 0.10% 0.10% 0.10% 0.10% 0.16% 0.10%
$ 2,687,500 $ 2372816 $ 1,518,557 £ 2,152,048 $ 439,863 3 (584200 % 1,209,000
$ 6,874,637 $ 6,503,627 $ 6,510,677 $ 6,100,672 $ 5954373 $ 5833247 $ 5,351,780
39.09% 36.15% 23.32% 3522% 7.39% ( 10.02%) 22.5%%
91.47% 98.09% 99.07% 102.64% 94.35% 96.45% 94.35%
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

CONTRIBUTIONS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS

405000004000

Local Government Employees' Retirement System

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution
Contribution deficiency (excess)

Kill Devil Hills' covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

2022 2021
3 943,546 $ 794975
943,546 794,975
3 - 8 -
$ 8,184,571 $ 7,732,141
11.53% 10.28%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30.

These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirement for specified information for 10 years. However,

until a full 10-year trend is compiled, information is only presented for those years for which information

is avatlable.



EXHIBIT A-2

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
$ 662,229 $ 542940 $ 502,297 $ 481,666 $ 418,284 $ 426,043 $ 415347
662,229 542,940 502,297 481,666 418,284 420,043 415,347
3 =3 - 3 - 3 — 3 ~ 3 - 3 -
$ 7281756 $ 6,874,637 $ 6,563,627 3 6,510,677 $ 6,100,672 $ 5954373 $ 5,833,247
9.09% 7.90% 7.65% 740% 6.85% 7.16% 7.12%
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY
LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE
LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS

2022 2021

Beginning Balance $ 1,470,254 $ 1,175,808
Service Cost 84,172 45,553
Interest on the total pension liability 27,907 37,539
Changes of benefit terms - -
Differences between expected and actual experience in the measurement

ofthe total pension liability 46,956 (144,889)
Changes of assumptions or other inputs (43.759) 404,874
Benefit payments (48,631) (48,631)
Other changes - -
Ending balance of the total pension liability 5 1,536,899 $ 1,470,254

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending December 31.

These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirement for specified information for 10 years.
However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, information is only presented for those years for
which information is available.



EXHIBIT A-3

2020 2019 2018 2017
$ 930,83 $ 940269 $ 002,881 $ 895,538
44,814 49,739 42,525 45,544
32,997 29,130 34,306 31,168
178,122 (10,444) (72,513) .
37,670 (40,984) 61,322 (24,417
(48,631) (36,874) (28,252) (44,952)
$ 1,175,808 $ 030,836 $ 040269 $ 902,88l
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA ‘
SCHEDULE OF TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY AS A PERCENTAGE OF COVERED EMPLOYEE PAYROLL
LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE

LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS
LR
2022 2021 2020 2019
Total pension liabilily $ 1,536,899 $ 1,470,254 $ 1,175,808 $ 930836
Covered- employee payroll 1,891,783 1,682,842 1,637,083 1,613,845
Total pension liability as a percentage of covered-enployee payroll 81.24% 87.37% 71.82% 57.68%

Notes to the schedules:

The Town of Kill Devil Hills has no assets accumulated in a trust that meets
paragraph 4 of GASB Statement 73 to pay related benefits.

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending December 31.
These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirement for specified information for 10 years.

However, untila full 10-year trend is compiled, information is only presented for those years for
which information is available.
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EXHIBIT A-4

2018 2017
$ 940,269 § 902,881
1,591,980 1,690,181
59.06% 53.42%
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

EXHIBIT A-5

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS
Total OPEB Liability 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Beginning Balance 510,137,767  § 9,879,097 8000456 5 7384841 5§ 754937
Service Cost 476,750 502,860 373213 343,907 374,355
Interest 213,834 213,413 272,503 255861 221,571
Changes of benefit terms - - - - -
Differences between expected and actual experience 319,331 9,636 509814 66,206 69,333
Changes of assumptions (989,984) (20,008) 1,156,153 (261,625) {450.541)
Benefit payments (478,680) (447,231} (433,042) (398,981) (379,253}
Net Change in tota]l OPEB liability (458,749) 258,670 1,878,641 5,368 (164,535)
Ending balance ofthe total pension liability S 9,679,018 $ 10,137,767 9,879,097 S 7390209 § 7384841
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contrbutions -employer 5 496,680 $ 447231 638,042 $ 398981 § 379253
Net mvestient income (47,465 86,383 (6,266} - -
Benefit payments (478,680) (447231} {433,042 (398,981) (379,253)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position (29,465 86,383 218,734 - -
Plan fiduciary net positon - begmning 305,117 218,734 - -
Plan fiduciary net position- ending S 21652 8 305117 218,734 'S - '8 -
Town's net OPEB Labiltly - ending S 9403366 § 9832650 0660363 S 7390209 5§ 7,384,841
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of the
total OPEB Liability 293% 3.10% 2.26% 0.00% 0.00%%6
Covered payroll $ 70660930 5 7,342,664 7342664 5 5824231 5 5824231
Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll 133.06% 133.91% 131.56% 126.89% 126.80%

Notes to Schedule

Changes of assumptions: Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes in the discount rate

ofeach period. The following are the discount rates used in each period.

These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirement for specified information for 10 years.
However, uniila full 10-year trend is compiled, infonmation is only presented for those years for

which information is available.
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MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The General Fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with
governments that are not required legally or by sound financial management to be
accounted for in another fund.

The Capital Reserve Fund is a legally adopted Capital Reserve Fund, which has been
consolidated with the General Fund in the basic financial statements, and accounts for
the accumulation of funds for recreation, street, and shoreline project uses.

The 2022 Beach Nourishment Capital Project Fund is used to account for beach
nourishment scheduled to take place in 2022.

The American Rescue Plan Special Revenue Fund is used to account for funds
received under the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (SLFRFE)
program.
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SCHEDULE1

TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page 1of 14
GENERAL FUND
SCHIEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021
-
2022 2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative) Actual
REVENUES
Ad Valorem Taxes:
Current year $ $ 0,623,298 § 3 9,491,968
Municipal service district 494,875 493,586
Prior years 37416 55,682
Less payments to other governments (5,303) (3,512}
Penalties and interest 24,336 25,010
9,961,049 10,174,622 213,573 10,062,734
Other Taxes and Licenses:
Privilege licenses:
Current 7,915 7,418
Penaltics 52 22
Local option sales tax 3,861,359 3,407,111
Local option sales tax MSD 224,735 208,615
Occupancy tax 4,587,045 4,228,903
Land transfer tax 1,778,083 1,638,790
Solid waste disposal tax 5,786 5,522
7,167,644 10,464,975 3,297,331 9,496,381
Unrestricted Intergovernmental Revenues:
Utilities sales tax 759,582 729,590
Piped natural gas sales tax 5,492 3,889
Sales tax- telecom services 35,070 44,090
Sales tax- video programming 146,133 142,828
PEG channel support 25,975 26,717
Wine and beer tax 30,457 30,815
ABCrevenue 30,779 23,341
Mixed beverage tax 53,637 32,227
1,055,123 1,087,125 32,002 1,033,497
Restricted Intergovernmental Revenues:
Federal and State:
FEMA 2,897,079 -
Powell Bill alfocation 275,526 228,370
Drug enforcement reimbursement 4,384 826
Grant - Shoreline Management 95,000 119,000
Grant - USDO!J Body Armor - 1,712
Grant - Gov't Access Channels 5,000 5,000
Grant - NCDEQ - Soundside 63,320 -
Grant - NCLM - Safety 2,274 -
CGrant - DCTB - Fireworks 16,2560 12,831
Grant - DCTB - Sidewalk Grant - 55,618
Grant - Crime Commission “ 30,463
Grant - NCLM Wellness 2,500 2,500
Dare County - COVID-19 - 61,298
782,078 3,361,333 2,579,255 517,618




_ SCHEDULE 1
TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page 2of 14
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021

2022 20621
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative) Actual
Permits and Fees:
Building permits $ $ 549917 § 3 356,311
Occupancy permit fees 4,250 4,000
Site plan review fees . 67,082 88,383
Other planning fees 8,062 7,229
payments 4,360 2,530
Homeowner recovery fees 80 82
Taxt ordinance fees 120 75
408,400 634,371 225,971 458,610
Sales and Services:
Animal Control fees:
Boarding and adoption 2,660 3,873
Dog licenses 630 607
Rabies vaccination 98 154
Court costs and fees 2,947 2,916
Finger print fees 390 70
Buy gold application fee 142 142
Rollout container sales 33,983 35,986
Dumpster sales 58,813 46,900
Cookbook sales 40 20
104,305 99,703 (4,602) 90,668
Investment Earnings:
Investment camings 67,815 66,547
Change in fair value of investments (755,179) (134,058)
Net investment earnings (loss) 100,000 (687,364) (787,364) (67,511)
Other revenues:
Miscellaneous 50,754 41,760
Discounts on purchases 2,230 2,307
Rental of governiment owned preperty 134,057 132,691
Contributions 1,332 8,720
Insurance Proceeds 14,028 38,503
170,549 202,401 31,852 223,981

TOTAL REVENUES 19,749,148 25,337,166 5,588,018 21,815,978




SCHEDULE 1

TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page 3 of 14

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE. - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021

96

2022 2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
EXPENDITURES
General Government:
Administration:
Administrative costs.:
Board of commissioner fees $ 48,691 47,000
Video taping 4,017 2,661
Legal services 44 976 37,960
Travel and training-board 175 4,074
Election costs 9,420 -
107,279 91,695
Salaries and benefits:
Salaries 548,920 601,880
FICA expense 42,763 46,150
Funding for healih plan 106,498 114,612
Retirement 62,636 61,763
401K retirement 27,362 29,571
788,179 853,976
Operating expenditures:
Professional services 23,510 9,347
Engineering services 21,638 6,235
Telephone 19,348 19,140
Travel and training 4,345 9,506
Insurance claims - 3,453
Outside maintenance 328 296
Fleet maintenance 612 446
Communications 1,006 986
Maintenance contracts - 5,441
Printing 475 5,712
Equipment rental 1,013 4053
Equipnment lease 2,686 -
Copier lease 5,287 4,193
Partnerships 30,000 30,000
Tuition reimbursement 1,856 886
Advertising 15,861 12,147
Vehicle fuel 349 106
Supplies and materials 19,974 12,643
Contracted services 41,629 36,646
Dues and subscriptions 13,751 12,117
Worker's compensation 2,753 2,865
Miscellaneous - 4
Miscellaneous-special events 56,772 52,604
Miscellaneous-wellness program 1,330 3,336
Miscellaneous-Board of Commissioners 28 186
264,551 232,348




TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Exded June 30, 2022

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021

SCHEDULE {
Page 4 of 14

2022 2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Administration (continued):
Capital outlay:
Lease asset h 17,356 § $ -
17,356 (116,554)
Reimbursement.
Reimbursement - Proprietary fund (126,649 {116,554)
(126,649) (116,554)
Total 1,297,855 1,050,716 247,139 1,061,465
Finance and Tax
Salaries and benefits:
Salaries 518,810 525,919
FICA expense 38,761 39,169
Funding for health plan 90,714 90,189
Retirement 59,381 533,925
401K retirement 25,940 26,296
733,606 735,498
Operating expenditures:
Audit 28,390 28,150
Tax collection fee 154,396 155,261
Postage 3,159 3,523
Travel and training 5,651 5,436
Communications 154 138
Printing - 989
Copier lease 5,277 6,041
Supplies and materials 4,079 5,533
Contracted services 16,305 16,364
Departmental supplies 3,623 4,039
Departmental charges {(3,623) (4,039)
Dues and subscriptions 1,537 757
General insurance 169,038 154,913
Retiree health insurance 420,264 391,126
OPEB Iirevocable trust 18,000 -
Worker's compensation 833 865
Unemployment insurance 1,566 2,016
828,649 778,112
Reimbursement:
Reimbursement - Proprietary fund (101,589) (94,498)
(101,589) (94,498)
Total 1,580,012 1,460,666 119,346 1,412,112
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SCHEDULE1

TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page 5 of 14
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021
2022 2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Management Information Services
Salaries and benefits:
Salaries 3 107,704 % 3 103,670
FICA expense 7,927 7,632
Funding for health plan 23,744 22,690
Retirement 12,327 10,631
401K retirement 5,385 5,184
157,087 149,307
Operating expendiiures:
Qutside maintenance and repairs 4,452 6,992
Maintenance confracts 144,753 132,068
Supplies and materials 47,493 37,853
Contracted services 20,412 14,956
Worker's compensation 177 169
BDues and subscriptions 7,069 11,896
Installtvent note payments - 13,564
224,356 217,598
Capital outlay:
Office furniture and equipment 5,405 -
5,405 -
Reimbursement:
Reimbursement - Proprietary fund (47,395) (47,234)
(47,395) (47,234)
Total 398,690 339,453 59,237 320,171
Planning and Development:
Salaries and benefits:
Salaries 571,766 530,510
FICA expense 42383 39,499
Funding for health plan 116,964 104,978
Retirement 65,447 53,846
401K retirement 27,171 24,931
823,731 753,764
Operating expendifires:
Planning and zoning board fees 10,180 10,210
Travel and training 8,429 4,164
OQutside maintenance and repairs 59 98
Fleet maintenance 678 875
Communications 1,828 1,962



SCHEDULE1

TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page 6 of 14

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021

2022 2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual Negative) Actual
Planning and Development (continued):
Operating expenditures (comtinued):
Printing h) $ 100 3% 3 -
Equipment rental - 3,279
Equipment lease 3,179 -
Copier lease 3,751 3,836
Historic Landmark 250 -
CRS Flood 412 -
Vehicle fuel 3,153 1,932
Supplies and materials 7,924 3,450
Land Use plan - 1,022
Recordation Fees 40 8
Dues and subscriptions 2,903 2,642
Worker's compensation 9,076 7,479
Miscellaneous 235 -
Installment note payments 19,346 13,547
71,543 54,504
Capital outlay:
Vehicle - 43,937
Lease asset 30,505 -
30,505 43,937
Reimbursement:
Reimbursement - Proprietary fund (75,551) (71,657)
(75,551} (71,657)
Total 981,607 850,228 131,379 780,548
Buildings and Grounds:
Salaries and benefils:
Salarics 343,045 271,954
FICA expense 24,976 19,309
Funding for health plan 110,362 98,109
Retirement 39,257 27.900
401K Retirement 15,276 12,469
532,916 429,741
Operating expenditures:
Professional Services 2,160 -
Travel and training 168 -
Utilities 61,220 65,252
Repairs and maintenance:
Buildings and grounds 39,920 41,385
HVAC 10,897 47,876
Sandfence - 24,000
Shoreline accesses 63,700 42,240

Recreational facilities 31,368 14,592



SCHEDULE |

TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page 7 of 14
GENERAL FUND
SCHEPULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021
oSO OO
2022 2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {(Negative) Actual
Buildings and Grounds (continued):
Operating expenditures (continued):
Landscaping 8463 §$ 6,801
Sign maintenance - 675
Special Event displays 8,292 3,564
Qutside maintenance and repairs 2,375 4,177
Insurance claims - 2,945
Fleet maintenance 2,272 4,100
Eguipment maintenance 1,689 999
Communications 1,863 1,369
Copier Lease 129 162
Vehicle fuel 7,218 3,014
Supplies and materials 49,387 39,918
Uniforms 2,127 1,349
Contracted services 43,543 41,012
W orker's compensation 9,846 7480
Installment note payments 1,147,073 694,817
1,493,650 1,048,627
Capital outlay:
Buildings 141,025 6,085
Other improvments 130,599 34,021
Meekins Field 778,597 149,801
Beach access 29,050 -
Soundside Access 68,686 15,940
Aviation Park 51,510 -
Vehicles - 37,676
1,199467 243,523
Reimbursement:
Reimbursement - Proprietary fund {61,060) {284,829)
{61,060) (284,829)
Total 4,168,452 3,164,973 1,003,479 1,437,062
Beach Nourishment:
Operating expenditures:
Legal Services 1,295 150
Tax collection fee 7.450 4,891
Audit 2,885 2,885
Advertising 2,025 -
Beach Noutishment 15,523 66,219
Instaliment note payment 1,051,855 1,032,119
1,081,033 1,106,264
Total 1,223,636 1,081,033 142,603 1,106,264
Total Gexteral Government 9,650,252 7,947,069 1,703,183 6,117,622




TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended Jane 30, 2022

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Public Safety:

Police:

Salaries and benefits:
Salaries
FICA expense
Funding for health plan
Retirement
5% 401K retirement
3% 401K retirement
Seperation Allowance

Operating expenditures:
Professional services
Travel and training
Firing range
Insurance claims

Outside maintenance and repairs

Fleet maintenance
Communications

Copier lease

Vehicle fuel

Supplies and materials:
General

Criminal

Radar

AEDs

Car Radios

Handheld Radios
Uniforms

Crime prevention
Controlled substances
Contracted Services

Dues and subscriptions
Worker's compensation
Miscellaneous
Installment note payments
Financed purchase payment

Capital outlay:

Body cameras
Vehicles

Total

SCHEDULE1
Page 8 of 14

2022 2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
5 2,176,252 & $ 2,044,679
163,789 153,979
492,199 487,396
261,564 221,226
103,222 97,292
3,354 2,966
46,791 48,818
3,247,171 3,056,356
175 178
14,665 5,473
2,600 2,600
4,181 20,949
3,702 7,537
14,794 10,663
27,057 28,004
6,173 5,246
73,231 47,040
32,702 62,830
1,790 1,769
11,794 -
- 5,294
11,149 10,756
19,246 11,424
18,373 18,020
2,221 1,575
2,000 2,000
- 110
3,918 1,688
41,295 38,567
135 12
218,304 216,736
51,283 -
560,788 498 471
242,105 -
186,362 248,297
428,467 248,297
4,503,381 4,236,426 266,955 3,803,124
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SCHEDULE1

TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page Yof 14

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021

102

2022 2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Animal Control:
Salaries and benefits:
Salaries h 103,502 % $ 106,195
FICA expense 7,551 8,005
Funding for health plan 30,788 19,973
Retirement 11,848 10,876
401K retirement 5,130 5,310
158,819 150,449
Operating expenditures:
Professional services 458 -
Travel and training 20 0
Qutside maintenance and repairs 45 26
Fleet maintenance 1,490 1,251
Communications 480 470
Vehicle fuel 2,800 1,927
Supplies and materials 2,455 2,168
Uniforms 842 695
Dues and subscriptions 76 -
Worker's compensation 1,816 1,377
Installment note payments 4,521 13,343
15,003 21,257
Total 181,228 173,822 7,406 171,706
Fire:
Salaries and benefits:
Salaries 1,495,777 1,394,522
FICA expense 108,338 101,675
Funding for health plan 400,844 367,115
Retirement 169,686 141,453
401K retirement 72,282 67,377
2,246,927 2,072,142
Operating expenditures:
Professional services 10,835 10,975
Travel and training 15,953 6,625
Insurance claims 3,158 1,000
Qutside maintenance and repairs 11,146 20,356
Fleei maintenance 19,465 23,538
Communications 6,642 6,944
Printing 28 115
Copier lease 2,162 2,696




TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Fire (continued):

Operating expenditures (continued):

Vehicle fuel

Supplies and materials
SCBA equipment

Uniforms

Contracted Services

Dues and subscriptions

Worker's compensation

Firemen's pension

Instaliment note payments

Total

Ocean Rescue:

Salaries and benefits:
Salaries
FICA expense
Funding for health plan
Retirement
401K retirement

Operating expenditures:
Professional services
Travel and training
Insurance claims

Outside maintenance and repairs

Fleet naintenance
Communications
Printing

Equipment rental
Copier lease

Vehicle fuel

Supplies and materials
Uniforms

Dues and subscriptions
Worker's compensation

SCHEDULE1
Page 10 of 14

2022 2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative) Actual
$ 18,668 §$ $ i1,073
25,057 35,444
4,875 4,350
7,954 31,358
- 1,200
4,350 4,150
46,759 37,676
3,970 3,960
198,703 221,458
379,725 422,318
3,015,976 2,626,652 389,324 2,494 460
485,761 511,690
37,174 39,156
14,831 15,807
13,236 10,976
4,126 3,805
555,128 581,434
1,680 2,255
190 150
- 1,000
3,931 4,457
1,206 1,166
419 456
1,012 983
8,800 8,300
181 197
5,000 3,140
11,138 22,794
14,091 7,459
560 60
13,827 13,412
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021

SCHEDULE1
Page 11 of 14

Ocean Rescue (continued):
Installment note payments

Capital outlay:
Vehicle

Total
Total Public Safety

Trans portation

Streets:

Salaries and benefits:
Salaries
FICA expense
Funding for health plan
Retirement
401K retirernent

Operating expenditures:
Utilities
Travel and training
Street maintenance
Sidewalks
Multi-use path

Outside maintenance and repairs

Fleet maintenance
Communications
Equipment rental
Copier lease

Vehicle fuel

Supplies and materials
Uniforms

Contracted services
Dues and subscriptions
Worker's compensation
Instaliment note payments

2022 2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
$ 13,668 3 3 13,668
75,709 79,497
- 53,769
- 53,769
741,596 630,837 110,759 714,700
8,442,181 7,667,737 774,444 7,183,990
415,444 358,462
30,568 26,043
106,151 103,563
47,552 36,777
20,772 17,923
620,487 542,768
101,732 104,549
542 418
103,451 18,551
23,700 30,700
- 84,840
1,240 5,036
16,281 8,986
2,050 2,141
196 1,789
298 334
19,455 11,270
16,915 13,281
4,174 3,850
12,250 9,800
63 325
15,537 11,160
102,581 114,484
420,465 521,514



TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021

SCHEDULE 1
Page 12 of 14

Streets {continued):
Capital outlay
Machinery and equipment
Street constiuction
Sidewalks

Total

Powell Bill:

Operating expenditures;
Professional services
Supplies and matetials

Capital outlay:
Street construction

Total
Total Transportation

Public Works:

Fleet Mamtenance:

Salaries and benefits:
Salaries
FICA expense
Funding for health plan
Retirement
401K retirement

Operating expenditures:

Outside maintenance and repairs

Fleet maintenance
Communications
Maintenance contracts
Printing

Copier lease

Vehicle fuel

Supplies and materials
Uniforns

2022 2021
Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
$ 109,79 8 ¥ 65,225
1,149,980 1,166,709
280,781 160,084
1,540,560 1,392,018
2,944,635 2,581,512 363,123 2,456,300
677 175
17,592 17,601
18,269 17,776
216,757 218,000
216,757 218,000
240,000 235,026 4,974 235,776
3,184,034 2,816,538 368,097 2,692,076
302,154 278,913
22,567 20,798
65,929 63,402
34,587 28,610
15,108 13,946
440,345 405,669
4,387 4,291
406 441
480 480
1,175 L175
718 1,141
139 238
1,447 1,332
13,149 15,128
2,679 2417
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page 13 0f 14

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2622

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021
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2022 2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative) Actual
Fleet Maintenance (continued):
Operating expenditures (continned):
Fleet maintenance supplies $ 137,130 § 3 132,426
Fuel 252,506 152,626
Dues and subscriptions 920 1,000
Worker's compensation 5,601 6,949
Installment note payments 11,264 14,772
Deparimental charges {390,345) (284,609)
41,656 49,807
Capital outlay:
Machinery and equipment - 6,199
Vehicle - 44,505
- 50,704
Reimbursement - Proprietary fund (54,832) {53,158)
(54,832) (53,158)
Total Public Works 521,158 427,169 93,989 453,022
Emvirenmental Protection:
Solid Waste:
Salaries and benefits:
Salaries 658,193 617,930
FICA expense 47,944 44,783
Funding for health plan 199,585 191,066
Retirement 75,334 62,686
401K retirement 32,200 30,448
1,013,256 946,913
Operating expenditures:
Travel and training - 12
Outside maintenance and repairs 5,233 45,974
Fleet maintenance 83,085 77,304
Communications 4,107 3,843
Printing 656 1,052
Copier lease 298 334
Vehicle fuel 108,330 63,645
Supplies and materials 41,307 26,716
Unifornms 7,999 7,268
Contracted services 32,975 34,675
Contracted services - tipping fees 939,077 923,706
Purchases for resale:
Dampsters 69,744 47493
Rollout carts 28411 36,595
Household hazardous waste 4,074 3,063
Dues and subscriptions 142 235
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page 140f 14

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021

2022 2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Solid Waste (continued):
Operating expenditures (continued):
Worker's compensation $ $ 26,980 § $ 21,956
Instaliment note payments 584,225 594,642
1,937,243 1,888,513
Capital outlay:
Machinery and equipnment - 7,195
Vehicles - 1,004,091
- 1,011,286
Total Environmental Protection 3,931,065 2,950,499 980,566 3,846,712
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 25,729,290 21,809,012 3,920,279 20,293,422
REVENUES (UNDER) OVER
EXPENDITURES (5,980,142) 3,528,154 9,508,297 1,522,556
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)
Direct borrowing 1,367,448 1,367,448 - 505,613
Sale of capital assets 20,000 1,524,446 1,504,446 191,218
(GASB 87 lease financing 47,856 47,860 4
Body camera financing 233,155 233,155 -
Transfer from capital reserve fund 147,373 - (147,373) 421,383
Transfer to capital reserve fund (332,980) (216,130) 116,844 -
Transfer from capital project fund 533,970 533,970 - (368,217)
Appropriated fund balance 3,031,607 - (3,031,607) -
Appropriated fund balance - encumbrances 922,763 - (922,763) -
Appropriated fund balance - drug forfeiture 8,950 . (8,950} -
5,980,142 3,490,743 {2,489,399) 749,997
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER USES 3 - 7,018,897 § 7,018,897 2,272,553
FUND BALANCE
Fund balance, beginning 19,074,853 16,802,300
Fund balance, end of year $ 26,093,750 $ 19,074,853
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SCHEDULE2

TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021

2022 2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
REVENUES
Investment earnings:
Investment earnings $ - $ 16,671 § 16,671 § 26,342
Change in fair value of investments - (123,327) (123,327) (24,804)
Net investment earnings (loss) - (106,656) (106,656) 1,538
TOTAL REVENUES - {106,656} (106,656) 1,538
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES - {106,656) (106,656) 1,538
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {UJSES)
Transfer to general fund - - - {(421,383)
Transfer fiom general fund 185,605 216,136 30,531 -
Transfer fiom capital project fand - - - 372,071
Future Reserves (185,605) - 185,605 -
- 216,136 216,136 (49,312)
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER (UNDER) OTHER USES $ - 109,480 § 109,480 (47,774)
FUND BALANCE
Beginning of Year - July 1 2,913,193 2,960,967

End of Year - June 30 $ 3,022,673 $ 2,913,193



SCHEDULE3

TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

2022 BEACH NOURISHMENT CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENULS, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

P00

Actual .
Variance
Project Prior Current Total Positive
Authorization Years Year to Date {Negative)
REVENUES
Restricted Infergovernmental Revenues:
Grant - NCDEQ $ 1,456,879 % 368,686 $ 1,088,190 §$ 1,456,876 § (3)
Contribution from Dare County 1,840,294 - 72,559 72,559 (1,767,735)
Investment eainings:
Interest eamnings - 1,801 5,482 7,283 7,283
Change in fair value of investments - (3,191) (49,888) {53,079 (53,079
3,297,173 367,296 1,116,343 1,483,639 (1,813,534)
TOTAL REVENUES 3,297,173 367,296 1,116,343 1,483,639 {1,813,534)
EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay:
Beach nourishment 11,204,975 329,321 3,179,090 3,508,411 7,696,564
11,204,975 329,321 3,179,000 3,508,411 7,696,564
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 11,204,975 329,321 3,179,090 3,508,411 7,696,564
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (7,907,802) 37,975 {2,062,747) (2,024,772) 5,883,030
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Special Obligation Bond - FEMA 4,148,371 “ 3,638,169 3,638,169 (510,202)
Direct borrowing 3,391,214 - 593,224 593,224 (2,797,990)
Contribution from Capital Reserve Fund 368,217 368,217 - 368,217 -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES 7,907,802 368,217 4,231,393 4,599,610 (3,308,192)
NET CHANGE
IN FUND BALANCE 3 - $ 406,192 2,168,646 % 2,574,838 § 2,574,838
FUND BALANCE,
Beginning of Year- July | 406,192

End of Year - June 30 $ 2,574,838
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SCHEDULE 4

TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENULES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total Positive
Authorization Years Year to Date {Negative)
REVENUES
Restricted Intergovernmental Revenues:
Grant - ARP 5 2,337,008 § - % 1,168,504 § 1,168,504 §  (1,168,504)
Investment eamings:
Interest earnings - - 4,648 4,648 4,648
Change in fair value of investments - - (46,776) (46,776) (46,776)
2,337,008 - 1,126,376 1,126,376 (1,210,632)
TOTAL REVENUES 2,337,008 - 1,126,376 1,126,376 (1,210,632)
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 2,337,008 - 1,126,376 1,126,376 (1,210,632)
OTHER FINANCINGUSE
Transfer to general fund (2,337,008) - - - 2,337,008
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SQURCES (2,337,008) - - - 2,337,008
NET CHANGE
IN FUND BALANCE b - 3 - 1,126,376 $ 1,126,376 $ 1,126,376
FUND BALANCE

Beginning of Year - July 1 -

End of Year - June 30 $ 1,126,376
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The Public Works Final Phase Capital Project Fund is used to account for the final
construction of Public Works Complex additions to include a new solid waste building
and renovation of the existing animal control facility.
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SCHEDULE S

TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2022

Public Works Final
Phase CPF

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ -
Restricted cash and cash equivalents -
Accrued Interest Receivable -

Total assets $ -

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities: b
Total liabilities -

Fund balances:

Assigned -
Beach Nourishment -
Total fund balances -

Total liabilities and fund balances $ -
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

SCHEDULE 6

REVENUES
Investment eamings:
Interest earnings
Net investiment earnings (loss)

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Operating expenditures:
General government

Capital outlay:
General government
TOTALEXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES}
Transfer to General Fund

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balances-beginning

Fund balances-ending

PW Final Total
Phase Capital Non-Major
Project Fund Governmental Fund

$ 26 3 26

26 26

26 26

1,210 1,210
1,210 1,210
(1,184) (1,184)
(533,970) (533,970)
(533,970) (533,970)
{535,154) (535,154)
535,154 535,154
- $ -
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SCHEDULE Y

TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

PUBLIC WORKS FINAL PHASE CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Actual
Variance
Project Prior Cutrent Total Positive
Authorization Years Year to Date (Negative)
REVENUES
Investment earnings:

Interest earnings 3 - 3 613 $ 26 $ 639 $ 639
TOTAL REVENUES - 613 26 639 639
EXPENDITURES:

Capital outlay:

General Government 4,564,956 4030415 1,210 4,031,625 533,331
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,564,956 4,030,415 1,210 4,031,625 533,331
REVENUES (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES {4,564,956) (4,029,802) (1,184) {4,030,986) 533,970
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (UUSES)

Direct borrowing 4,564,956 4,564,956 - 4,564,956 -

Transfer to general fund - - (533,970) (533,970) {533,970
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES 4,564,956 4,564,956 (533,970) 4,030,986 {533,970}
NET CHANGE

IN FUND BALANCE b3 - % 535,154 (535,154) § - 3 -
FUND BALANCE

Beginning of Year - July 1 535,154

End of Year - June 30 $ .
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises — where the intent of the government’s
council is that the costs of providing goods and services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or where the
government’s council has decided that periodic determination of net income is
appropriate for accountability purposes.

Water Fund. This fund is used to account for activities of the Water Department.

Water Capital Reserve Fund. This fund is a statutorily required fund to account for
system development fees restricted in use to system extension and replacement.

Wastewater Fund. This fund is used to account for the activities of the Wastewater
Department.

Wastewater Capital Reserve Fund. This fund is a statutorily required fund to
account for system development fees restricted in use to system extension and
replacement.
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SCHEDULES
TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page | of 4
WATER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021

2022 2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
REVENUES
Operating revenues:
Water sales $ $ 4,731,694 % $ 4455878
Water connection fees 129,825 65,417
Late payment penalties 35,435 13,170
Miscellaneous 25,458 36,650
Restricted intergovernmental - 326,188
Total operating revenues 4,341,494 4922412 580,918 4,897,303
Non-operating revenues:
Investiment earnings 30,583 38,987
Change in fair value on investments {322,995) (68,467)
Total non-operating revenues 40,000 (292,412) (332,412) (29.480)
TOTAL REYENUES 4,381,494 4,630,000 248,506 4,867,823
EXPENDITURES
Water Administration:
Administrative costs:
Legal services 9,235 7,725
9,235 7,725
Salaries and benefits:
Salaries 412,275 395,987
FICA expense 30,519 29,156
Funding for healih plan 86,074 94,137
Retirement 47,191 40,582
401K retirement 20,564 18,790
596,623 578,652
Operating expenditures:
Engineering services 220 680
Audit 8,470 8,470
Postage 13,201 13,008
Telephone 6,425 6,332
Utilities 2,673 2,729
Travel and training 1,057 -
Maintenance and repairs:
Buildings and grounds 3,117 6,331
Qutside 151 241
Fleet maintenance 2,297 724
Comniunications 1,721 1,018
Maintenance contracts - 1,814
Printing 1,837 3,786
Equipiment lease 535 -
Copier lease 1,758 1,565
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SCHEDULE 8

TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page2of4

WATER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021

2022 2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative) Actual
Water Administration {continued):
Operating expenditures (continned):
Advertising b 814 $ 563
Vehicie fuel 6,150 3,747
Supplies and materials 4,557 4,797
Uniforms 1,970 1,272
Contracted services 7,388 21,7117
Contracted services:
Water billing 5,219 5172
Dues and subscriptions 3,542 3,554
General insurance 66,399 60,638
Retiree health insurance 58,412 56,105
Worker's compensation 4,702 4,104
Miscellaneous - special events 726 698
Reimbursement to General Fund 467,076 667,931
670417 876,996
Total 1,364,132 1,276,275 87,857 1,463,373
Water Treatment Plant:
Salaries and benefits:
Salaries 235,659 215,912
FICA expense 17,690 16,318
Funding for health plan 52,304 35,478
Retirement 26,970 22,144
401K retirement 11,783 10,798
344,406 300,710
Operating expenditures:
Professional services 341 737
Utilities 40,791 41,605
Travel and trainting 1,452 173
Plant repairs and maintenance 29,700 20,389
Qutside repairs and naintenance 2,023 7,133
Fleet maintenance 217 926
Communications 653 642
Maintenance contracts 34,494 33,385
Equipiment Rental 45 -
Copier lease 76 61
Vehicle fuel 2,704 1,799
Supplies and materials 2,444 4,509
Chemicals 8,009 8,201
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SCHEDULES
TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page 3 of4

WATER FUND

SCHEDULY, OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021

2022 2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Water Treatment Plant:
Operating expenditures (continued).
Uniforms $ 5 2490 % 5 3,037
Contracted services 3,163 3,133
Treated water costs 969,237 1,027,798
Dues and subscriptions 2,245 2,325
Worker's compensation 4,913 4,536
1,104,997 1,160,389
Total 1,786,575 1,449,403 337,172 1,461,099
Water System:
Salaries and benefits:
Salaries 259,659 244,135
FICA expense 18,684 17,424
Funding for health plan 81,164 88,181
Retirement 29721 25,029
401K retirement 10,383 9,728
399,611 384,497
Operating expenditures:
Travel and training 341 220
Maintenance and repairs:
Buildings 2,115 2,443
Systems 91,127 55,447
Hydrants 2,816 4799
OQutside 12,456 9,463
Fleet maintenance 1,112 4,508
Communications 1,709 1,743
Copier lease 297 278
Vehicle fuel 7,804 5,348
Supplies and materials 2,806 3,778
Uniforms 2,418 2,545
Contracted services 1,296 1,385
Dues and subscriptions 150 150
Worker's compensation 5,692 5,081
132,139 97,188
Total 639,134 531,750 107,384 481,685
Debt Service:
Principal retirement 2,813 2,813 - 2,813

Total 2,813 2,813 - 2,813
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SCHEDULE$
TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page 4 of4

WATER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

With Comparative Acfual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021

2022 2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Capital ontiay:
Plant 8 32,390 § 32440 % 50 % 1,180,287
Building - 19,542 (19,542) -
Other improvements - capital 1,795,666 1,436,987 358,679 446,389
Office furnilure & equipment 20,000 19,000 1,000 17,488
Vehicle - - - 23,196
Total 1,848,056 1,507,969 340,087 1,667,360
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,640,710 4,768,210 872,500 5,076,330
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (1,259,216} (138,210} 1,121,006 (208,507)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
{USES)
Transfer fiom Wastewater Fund 18,750 18,750 - 18,750
Transfer from Capital Project Fund 972,300 972,300 - -
Fund equity appropriations 268,166 - (268,166} -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES 1,259,216 991,050 {268,166) 18,750
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES 3 - % 852,840 % 852,840 % {189,757)
RECONCILIA TION OF BUDGETARY
BASISTO GAAP:
Revenues over (under) expenditures and
other financing uses - Water Fund (above) $ 852,840 $ (189,757)
Revenues (under) expenditures - Water Capital Reserve Fund (96,416) 369,650
Principal retirement 2,813 2,813
Capitalized purchases 1,507,969 1,667,360
Loss on disposal of capital assets - {34,034)
{Increase) decrease in accrued
vacation payable {2,563) {8,498)
Decrease in lease liability 534 0
Increase in deferred outflows-pensions 38,703 48,270
Decrease in net pension Hability 243,158 {100,616)
Increase in deferred inflows-pensions (248,659) -
Depreciation and amortization {707,20%) (607,966)
Increase (decrease) in deferred outflows of resources - OPEB 2,587 (31,198)
{Increase) decrease in deferred inflows of resonices - OPEB {79,670} 4,288
{Increase} decrease in accrued OPEB Hability 50,570 (20,295)
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 3 1,564,657 b 1,100,017
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SCHEDULEY
TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page 1 of 1

WATER CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021

2022 2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
REVENUES
Operating revenues;
System development fees $ 324,000 $ 893,200 $ 569,200 $ 309,800
Total operating revenues 324,000 893,200 569,200 369,800
Non-operating revenues:
Interest Income - 3,421 3421 3,258
Change in fair value on investments - (20,737) (20,737) (3,408)
Net investment eamings (loss) - (17,316) (17,316) (150)
TOTAL REVENUES 324,000 875,884 551,884 369,650
EXPENDITURES
Water system development:
Extension and replacement - - - -
Total expenditures - - - -
REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES 324,000 875,884 551,884 369,650
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Fund Balance - Undesignated 648,300 - (648,300} -
Transfer to Water fund (972,300} (972,300) - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (324,000) (972,300) {648,300) -
REVENUES OVER DIER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES 3 - 5 {96416) $ (96,416 5 369,650




SCHEDULE 10

TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page L of 2

WASTEWATER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021

2022 2021
Varfance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
REVENUES
Operating revenues:
Wastewater sales $ $ 195,300 % $ 199,227
Wastewater connection fees 3,000 4,640
Late payment penalties 1,515 909
Total operating revenues 230,470 199,815 (30,655) 204,776
Non-operating revenues:
Invesiment earmnings 254 (72}
Change in fair market value on investments (2,078) -
Total non-operating revenues - (1,824) (1,824 {(72)
TOTAL REVENUES 230470 197,991 (32,479 204,704
EXPENDITURES
Administrative costs:
Legal services 150 535
Total administrative costs 150 535
Operating expenditures:
Engineering services 1,900 -
Audit 850 850
Telephone 2,220 1,119
Utilities 2,958 1,783
Maintenance and repair - system 30,984 36,741
Supplies & materials - 153
Contracted services 39,600 35,550
Treated wastewater costs 79419 88,569
Total operating expenditures 157,931 164,765
Total 214,868 158,081 56,787 165,300
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 214,868 158,081 56,787 165,300

REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES 15,602 39,910 24,308 39,404
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SCHEDULE 10
TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page 2 of 2
WASTEWATER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021

2022 2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
OTHER FINANCING (USES)
Transfer to Water Fund $ (18,750) § {18,750) $ - $ (18,750)
Fund equity appropriations 3,148 - (3,148) -
TOTAL OTHER
FINANCING (USES) (15,602) (18,750) (3,148) (18,750}
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES 3 - 3 21,160 § 21,160 20,654
RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY
BASIS TO GAAP:
Revenues over expenditures $ 21,160 $ 20,654
Revenues over expenditures - Wastewater Capital Reserve Fund 12,131 20,646
Depreciation (4,001) {105,983)

CHANGES IN NET POSITION $ 29,290 $ (64,683)




SCHEDULE 11
TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA Page 1 of 1

WASTEWATER CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENULES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP)

Yor the Fiscal Year Ended June 36, 2022

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 39, 2021

2022 2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {(Negative) Actual
REVENUES
Operating revenues:
System development fees 3 18,750 $ 13,295 $ (5,455) $ 20,681
Total operating revenues 18,750 13,295 (5,455) 20,681
Non-operating revenues:
Interest Income - 93 93 69
Change in fair value on investiments - {1,257) (1,257) (104)
Net investment earnings (loss) - (1,164) (1,164) (35)
TOTAL REVENUES 18,750 12,131 (6,619 20,646
EXPENDITURES
Water sysiem development:
Extension and replacement 18,750 - (18,750) -
Total expenditures 18,750 - {18,750} -
REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES 3 - $ 12,131 $ 12,131 $ 20,646
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SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable
Analysis of Current Tax Levy
Schedule of Municipal Service District Taxes Receivable

Analysis of Municipal Service District Tax Levy
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SCHEDULE 12
TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF AD VALOREM TAXES RECEIVABLE
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Uncollected Uncollected
Balance Collections Balance

Fiscal Year June 30, 2021 Additions and Credits June 30, 2022
2021-2022 $ - $ 9,644,196 $ (9,618,850 $ 25,346
2020-2021 25.954 - (16,429) 9,525
2019-2020 15,562 - (8,293) 7,269
2018-2019 7,229 - (2,423) 4,306
2017-2018 4,468 - {1,660) 2,808
2016-2017 2,397 - (1,020) 1,371
2015-2016 2,297 - (1,055 1,242
2014-2015 2,245 - (973) 1,272
2013-2014 5,530 - (913) 4,617
2012-2013 4,449 - {949) 3,500
2011-2012 3,602 - (3.549) 53
b3 73,733 § 9,644,196 $ (9,656,120  § 61,809

Reconcilement with revenues:

Ad Valorem taxes - general fund $ 9,678,735
Reconeiling items:
Interest collected (23,995)
Taxes written off or released 1,380
Subtotal (22,615)

Total collections and credits $ 9,656,120
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SCHEDULE 13

TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROILINA

ANALYSIS OF CURRENT TAXLEVY

Town-Wide Levy
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Town-Wide Total Levy
Property
Rate per excluding
Property $100 Total Registered Registered
Valuation Valuation Levy Motor Vehicles  Motor Vehicles
Qriginal levy:
Property taxed at
current year rate $  2,975,704,406 03200 $ 9520898 % 9,147,653 § 373,245
Penalties - 5,089 5,089 -
Total 2,975,704.406 9,525,987 9,152,742 373,245
Discoveries: ‘
Current year 38,961,309 0.3200 124,676 124,676 -
Abatenments (2,021,016) 0.3200 {6,467) (3,798) (2,669)
Total Property
Valuation $  3,012,644,699
Net levy 9,644,196 9,273,620 370,576
Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2022 {25,346} (25,3406) -
Current year taxes collected $§ 9618850 § 9,248,274 § 370,576
Current levy collection percentage 99.74% 99.73% 106.00%
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SCHEDULE 14
TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICT TAXES RECEIVABLE
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Uncoliected Uncollected
Balance Collections Balance

Fiscal Year June 30, 2021 Additions and Credits June 30, 2022
2021-2022 MSD $ - $ 404,875 b (494,875) $ -
2020-2021 MSD 671 - {67H) -
2019-2020 MSD - - - -
2018-2019 MSD - - - -
2017-2018 MSD - - - -
2016-2017 MSD - - “ -
2015-2016 MSD - - - .
$ 671 3 494,875 $ (495,546) % -

Reconcilement with revenues:

Ad Valorem taxes - general fund $ 495,887
Reconciling items:
Interest collected (34D)
Taxes written off or released -
Subtotal {341)

Total collections and credits $ 495 546




SCHEDULE 1S5
TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

ANALYSIS OF CURRENT TAX LEVY
MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICT LEVY
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Town-Wide Total Levy
Property
Rate per excluding
Property $100 Total Registered Registered
Valuation Valuation Levy Motor Vehicles  Motor Vehicles
Original levy:
Property taxed at
cuirent year rate $ 206,049,496 02400 § 494,519 § 493685 § 834
Penalties - 356 356 -
Total 206,049,496 494,875 494,041 834
Discoveries:
Cuirent year - 0.2400 - - -
Abatements - 0.2400 - - -
Total Property
Valuation $ 206,049,496
Net levy 494,875 494,041 834
Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2022 - - -
Current year taxes collected $ 494875 % 494,041 % 834
Current levy collection percentage 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Town of Kill Devil Hills comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the Town's overall financial health,
Contents Page
Financial Trends 132
These tables contain trend information to help the reader understand how the Town’s
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.
Revenue Capacity 143
These tables contain information to help the reader assess the Town’s most
significant local revenue source: property tax.
Debt Capacity 148
These schedules present information to help the reader access the affordability of the
Town’s current levels of outstanding debt and the government’s ability to issue
additional debt in the future.
Demographic and Economic Information 151
These tables offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the Town’s financial activities take place.
Operating Information 154
These tables contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand

how the information in the Town’s financial report refates to the services the Town
provides and the activities it performs,

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these tables is derived from the comprehensive annual financial reports for the
relevant year.
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT,
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(accrual basis ofaccounting)

Governmental activities

Net investment in capital assets 3
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental activites net assets b3

Business-type activitics

Net investment in capital assets $
Unrestricted
Total business-type activites net assets b

Primary government
Net investment in capital assets $
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total primary government activites net position $

2013 2014 2015 2016
14,170,973 14,567,560 15,440,923 16,330,419
2,815,004 3,298,044 3,226,059 4,761,304
4,813,121 4,822,194 5,528,334 6,646,476
21,799,098 22,687,798 24,195316 27,738,199
1,935,026 1,149,215 11,512,502 12,315,193
4,640,001 5431172 5,850,966 5,868,509
6,575,027 6,580,387 17,369,468 18,183,702
26,105,999 25,986,775 26,953,425 28,645,612
2,815,004 3,298,044 3,226,059 4,761,304
9,453,122 10,253,366 11,385,300 12,514,985
38,374,125 39,538,185 41,564,784 45,921,901




TABLE 1

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
18,305,271 22,873,133 24,623,812 24,985,284 26,206,869 27,961,849
6,803,628 5,400,659 5,221,050 6,277,666 6,462,727 14,190,930
6,006,515 4,610,656 4,895,344 2,426,895 3,980,136 1,812,796
31115414 32,584,448 34,740,206 33,689,845 36,649,732 43,965,575
12,593,967 12,468,714 13,219,145 14,593,891 15,516,079 16,316,188
6,399,233 7,028,749 7,653,992 7,339,325 7452471 8,246,309
18,993,200 19,497,463 20,873,137 21,933,216 22,968,550 24,562,497
30,899,238 35,341,847 37,842,957 39,579,175 41,722,948 44,278,037
6,803,628 5,400,659 5,221,050 6,277,666 6,462,727 14,160,930
12,405,748 11,639,405 12,549,336 9,766,220 11,432,607 10,059,105
50,108,614 52,381,911 55,613,343 55,623,061 59,618,282 68,528,072
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

CHANGES IN NET POSITION,
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(accrual basis of accounting)

2013 2014 2015 2016
Expenses
Govemimental activities:
General government $ 3,910,816 3 3,861,294 § 3,782,202 % 4,215,197
Public safety 5,093,132 5,163,045 5,025,231 5,367,196
Transportation 717,977 810,639 1,025,237 1,090,516
Public works 272,516 293,137 278,640 295,855
Environmental protection 1,747,391 1,843,938 1,741,871 1,944,282
Interest on long-term debt 60,725 56,229 67,364 112,604
Total Governmental activites expenses 11,802,557 12,028,282 11,920,545 13,025,650
Business-type activities:
Water Fund 3,106,836 3,303,040 3,124,575 3,087,792
Wastewater Fund 278,880 264,013 271 408 268,324
Total Business-type activites expenses 3,385,716 3,567,653 3,395,983 3,356,116
Total primary government activites expenses $ 15,188,273 § 15,595,935 § 15,316,528 § 16,381,766
Program revenues
Govemnmental activities:
Charges for services
General government $ 315442 $ 369,121 % 319,112 & 435,952
Public safety 10,592 9,090 8,061 9,736
Transportation - - - -
Environmental protection 28,119 36,928 36,567 53,850
Operating grants and contributions
General government 37,440 50,343 48,170 110,109
Public safety 35,414 27,181 15,101 I1,211
Transportation - 148,303 - -
Environmental protection - - - -
Capital grants and contributions
General Government - 205,288 128,916 351,292
Public safety - - - -
Transportation 258,372 243,695 246,011 245,017
Total Governmental activites programrevenues 685,379 1,089,949 801,938 1,217,167
Business-type activities
Charges for services:
Water Fund 3,082,265 3,293,340 3,399,553 3,560,155
Wastewater Fund 201,959 204,092 202,427 194,201
Operating grants and contributions
Water Fand - - - -
Capital grants and contributions:
Water Fund 166,000 217,000 271,000 293,000
Wastewater Fund 21,060 19,440 22,680 6,480
Total Business-type activites program revenues 3,471,284 3,733,872 3,895,660 4,053,836
Total primary government activites programrevenues 4,156,663 $ 4823821 % 4,697,598 $ 5,271,003
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TABLE2

Page 1 of 2

[ e
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

$ 4,295,980 $ 5,084,613 § 6,487420 § 7,483,506 § 7,182,255 § 6,855,333

5,503,249 5,750,230 6,020,479 6,398,627 7,043,759 7,309,069

1,244,348 1,317,258 1,557,859 1,594,774 1,735,100 1,724,607

353,600 362,927 345,423 360,238 407,423 431,126

2,137,778 2,167,078 2,372,400 2,438,992 2,738,733 2,878,474

196,681 190,857 257,907 315,068 274,957 260,147

13,791,636 14,872,963 17,041,488 18,591,205 19,382,227 19,458,756

3,155,456 3,332,754 3,437,230 3,632,777 4,156,206 3,959,977

261,108 272,205 265,718 267,655 271,283 162,082

3,416,564 3,604,959 3,702,948 3,900,432 4,427.489 4,122,059

$ 17,208,200 $ 18,477,922 % 20,744436 $ 22,491,637 § 23,809,716 § 23,580,815

b 491,739 § 467,760 $ 542,280 § 370,167 $ 458,630 $ 634,411

15,311 16,598 18,084 13,891 15,203 14,835

61,749 43,054 59,424 71,453 82,886 92,796

187,098 21,313 38,601 60,726 81,629 1,194,528

5,341 9,499 1,394 2,115 33,000 4,384

- 659,393 312,454 226,184 487,686 4,216,149

243,972 468,872 606,970 241,387 283,988 275,526

1,005,210 1,686,489 1,579,207 985,923 1,443,022 6,432,629

3,585,800 3,773,336 4,603,745 4,111,705 4,940,915 5,815,612

191,944 204,387 194,970 191,355 225,457 213,110

- - - . 6,369 -

422,000 622,000 579,100 - 319,819 -

19,440 35,640 7,386 - - -

4219184 4,635,363 4,785,201 4,903,060 5,492,560 6,028,722

$ 5,224,394 § 6,321,852 § 6,364,408 § 5,888,983 $ 6,935,582 § 12,461,351
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

CHANGES IN NET POSITION,
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

{accrual basis of accounting)

2013 2014 2015 2016

Net (Expense)Revenue

Governmental activities 3 (11,117,178} {10,938,333) $ (11,118,607) $ {11,808,483)
Business-type activities 85,568 166,219 499,677 697,720
Total primary govemiment net expense $ (11,031,6100 §  {(10,772,114) §  (10,618,930) $ (11,110,763)

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position
Governmental activities:

Taxes
Property taxes 3 6,320,155 § 6,556,573 % 7,199,585 § 8,468,389
Sales taxes 1,743,941 1,916,998 1,964,298 2,249479
QOccupancy taxes 2,007,056 2,144,664 2,197,414 2,352,908
Other taxes 1,120,245 1,174,464 558,306 592,072
Grants and contributions not restricted - - 958,530 1,081,808
Net unrestricted investment earnings (loss} (105,918) 208,674 202,338 241,678
Miscellaneous 120,808 166,276 245,847 354,713
Transfers - - - -
Total Governmental activities 11,206,287 12,167,649 13,326,318 15,341,047
Business-type activities
Unrestricted investment eamnings {63,693) 109,141 112,894 116,514
Miscelaneous - - - -
Transfers - - - -
Total Business-type activities (63,693) 109,141 112,894 116,514
Total primary government $ 11,142,594 § 11,142,594 % 13,439,212 $ 15,457,561
Change in Net Position
Governmental activities $ 89,109 % 1,229,316 $ 2,207,711 § 3,532,564
Prior period adjustment - Governmental activities - (340,616) (700,193} -
Business-type activities 21,875 275,360 612,571 814,234
Prior period adjustment - Business-type activities - - {93,490) -
Total primary government change in net position $ 110,984 § 1,164,060 % 2,026,599 § 4,346,798
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TABLE2

Page 2 of 2

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

(13,186,474) $ (13,186,474) § (15462,281) §  (17,605,282) $ (17,939,205) §  (13,026,127)
1,030,404 1,030,404 1,082,253 1,002,628 1,065,071 1,906,663

(12,156,070 $  (12,156,070) § (14,380,028) §  (16,602,654) $ (16,874,134 §  (11,119464)

8,545,173 § 8,662,987 § 8,859,629 § 9,372,751 § 10,029,663 $ 10,161,974

2,673,222 2,780,962 2,742,660 2,764,840 3,615,726 4,086,094
2,682,850 2,924,648 2,901,475 2,740,880 4,228,903 4,587,045
1,844,516 2,705,427 724,494 725,152 1,644,312 1,783,869
1,077,009 1,076,406 1,099,660 1,080,755 1,033,498 1,087,125
30,562 101,208 643,345 406,517 (67,286) (880,528)
218,361 499,392 346,776 273,568 414,276 (483,609)

- 375,334 - - - -
17,072,163 19,126,364 17,318,039 17,364,463 20,899,092 20,341,970
0,880 30,752 293,421 182,118 (29,737) (312,716)
6,830 30,792 293,421 182,118 {29,737) (312,716)

17,079,073 $ 19,376,017 § 17,611,460 §$ 17,546,581 § 20,869,355 § 20,029,254

3,532,564 $ 5,939,890 §$ 1,855,758 $ (240.819) $ 2,959,887 § 7,315,843
- (4,170,856} - (809,542) - ;

814,234 1,061,196 1,375,674 1,184,746 1,035,334 1,593,947
- (556,933) - (124,667)

4,346,798 § 2273297 § 3,231,432 % 9,718 $ 3,995221 § 8,909,790
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS,
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

General Fund

Non-Spendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned
Reserved

Unreseirved

Total General Fund

All Other Governmental Funds

T

L.

Restricted
Assigned
Reserved
Unreserved, reported in:
Capital Reserve Fund
Capital Projects Funds
otal all other governmental funds

2013 2014 2015 2016

108,285 % 116,275 % 124,969 141,784
2,805,459 3,296,763 3,223,261 4,121,998
251,499 320,156 44,756 159,709
5,690,541 6,002,140 7,772,394 9,004,063
8,855,784 % 9,795,334  $  11,165380 13,517,554
9545 8§ 1,281 8 2,798 639,306
483,150 501,564 601,583 6,031,270
492,735  § 502845 604,381 6,670,576

In July 2015, the Town created and taxed a municipal service district. Taxes are collected and funds are

held for future beach nourishment.

2. The beach nourishment project was underway in the summer of 2017 and completed in June 2018.
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TABLE3

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

$ 178,190 147,216 162,783 141,784 178,972 204,201
5,965,987 5,400,659 5,221,050 4,121,598 6,462,727 10,489,716
415,248 2,820,363 1,178,473 159,709 1,953,126 2,254,309
9,813,121 9,642,299 12,483,453 9,094,063 13,393,221 16,168,197

§ 16,372,546 18,010,537 19,045,759 13,517,554 21,988,046 29,116,423
$ 837,641 104,402 27,365 639,306 53,865 3,701,214
2,250,918 398,487 4,812,133 6,031,270 887,481 -

¥ 3,088,559 502,889 4,839,498 6,670,576 041,346 3,701,214

139



TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS,

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Revenues
Ad valorem taxes
Other taxes and licenses
Unrestricted intergovemnmental revenues
Restricted intergovernmental revenues
Permits and fees
Sales and services
Net investiment earmings
Other revenues
Total revenues

LExpenditures
General government
Public safety
Transportation
Public works
Envitomental protection
Capital cutlay
Right to use assets
Debt service

Principal

Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources
Instaliment purchase obligations issued
Lease liabilities issued
Sale of capital assets
Transfers fromother funds
Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balances

Debt service as a percentage of
non-capital expenditures

140

2013 2014 2015 2016
6333785 $ 6,571,750 7,202,742 8,486,724
4,208,347 4,565,104 4,749,641 5,196,512
742,783 757,693 958,530 1,081,808
331,226 669,490 438,199 717,628
235,394 287,690 289,289 435,792
38,871 46,098 44,828 61,694
(105,917) 208,673 202,338 241,678
107,708 157,634 128,639 184,443
11,892,197 13,264,132 14,014,206 16,406,279
3,111,261 3,751,197 3,851,383 5,587,853
4,935,745 5,994,729 5,371,506 5,771,540
1,718,457 1,418,280 1,375,385 1,451,655
262,303 288,160 295,786 302,969
1,555,505 2,203,769 1,615,425 2,733.216
640,984 746,993 877,883 1,245,343
69,115 49,620 69,461 88,330
12,293,370 14,452,748 13,456,829 17,180,906
(401,173) (1,188,616) 557,377 (774,627)
161,933 2,129,634 836,788 9,012,406
8,100 8,642 77,417 170,270
170,033 2,138,276 914,205 9,182,676
(23L,140)  $ 949,660 1,471,582 8,408,049
6.54% 7.00% 7.04% 7.76%



TABLE4

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

8,532,846 % 8,662,987 % 8,870,753 % 935,102 $ 10,062,733 § 10,174,622

6,011,675 6,435,741 6,377,054 6,239,043 9,496,381 10,464,975
1,077,000 1,076,406 1,099,660 1,080,755 1,033,497 1,087,125
1,632,377 3,157,710 959,419 530,412 886,304 5,690,586

491,719 467,640 542,200 370,047 458,610 634,371
70,027 50,990 69,164 77,293 90,668 99,703
30,561 101,209 643,345 406,517 (67,286) (880,528)

142,370 137,478 305,191 276,800 223,981 202,401
17,988,584 20,090,161 18,866,786 18,331,969 22,184,888 27,473,255
3,502,880 4,291,354 3,904,598 4,497,761 4,076,114 4,470,249
5,161,344 5,334,884 5,607,014 5,982,023 6,416,720 6,752,789
660,636 658,173 804,009 753,513 967,574 956,640
352,005 360,764 350,104 354,577 387,546 415,905
1,829,769 1,780,237 1,943,995 1,976,663 2,240,784 2,366,274
6,856,447 7,580,433 3,345,417 5,456,895 4,077,894 6,570,956
- - - - - 47,860
1,521,823 2,650,038 2,800,976 2,975,336 2,653,540 3,135,937

198,993 190,071 177,586 324,954 289,610 272,702

20,083,897 22,845,054 18,933,699 22,321,722 21,109,782 24,989,312

(2,095,313) (2,755,793) (66,913) (3,989,753) 1,075,106 2,483,943
1,279,031 1,083,447 5,393,437 1,235,727 505,613 5,831,996

. - - - . 47,860

89,257 174,667 45,307 26,224 191,218 1,524,446

- 550,000 . - - -
1,368,288 1,808,114 5,438,744 1,261,951 696,831 7,404,302

(727,025) % (947,679 § 5,371,831 % (2,727802) § 1,771,937 & 9,888,245

13.01% 18.60% # 19.11% 19.57% 8.37% 18.55%
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA.
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

TABLES

Fiscal Collected within the
Year Taxes Levied Fiscal Year ofthe Levy Collections Total Collections to Date
Ended forthe Percentage in Subsequent Percentage
June 30, Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy
2013 5 6320909 § 6,265,742 99.13% 51,419 3 6317161 99.94%
2014 (1] 6,552,229 6,502,619 99.24% 42,539 6,545,158 99.89%
2015 7,209,270 7,163,911 99.37% 42,851 7,206,762 99.97%
2016 7,603,318 7,566,290 99.51% 34,566 7,600,856 99.97%
2017 7,708,863 7,656,208 99.32% 51,364 7,707,572 99.98%
2018 7,823,759 7,787,631 99.54% 33,321 7,820,952 99.96%
2019 8,030,058 7,995,088 99.56% 29,051 8,024,139 99.93%
2020 8,506,598 8,452,932 99.37% 46,398 8,499,330 99.91%
2021 |1} 9,143,441 9,117,489 99.72% 16,429 9,133,918 99.90%
2022 9,273,620 9,248,274 99.73% i2] 9,248,274 99.73%

Source: Dare County Tax Department

[1] Revaluation of taxable property occured on January 1, 2013 and January 1, 2020.

Each year's tax levy is revised every year to reflect pick-ups and releases applicable to that year,

Subsequent year's tax collections include subsequent collections ofthe original levy and collections

ofpick-ups and releases applicable to each particular year.

[2} Not applicable.
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Personal Property

Ended Real Personal Public Service

June 30, Property {1} Property Motor Vehicles Companies [2]
2013 $ 2,564,450,614 3 40,111,904 § 57,085957 % 27,464,935
2014 1,885,454,363 42,814,370 82,815,517 28,200,352
2015 1,904,314,924 44,425,564 78,866,092 27,603,170
2016 1,923,525,862 44,590,516 81,180,033 27,214,962
2017 1,948,950,823 46,719,533 79,421,174 27,283,854
2018 1,972,811,341 47,368,616 82,041,312 32,951,844
2019 2,005,846,399 52,700,325 87,344,332 47,737,572
2020 2,035,044,064 56,535,635 88,798,188 33,810,994
2021 2,756,789,808 63,019,562 112,362,129 36,477,039
2022 2,797.308,277 61,763,939 116,381,436 37,191,048

Notes: The levy of property taxes each year is based on the assessed value of taxable property as of January 1,
before the beginning ofthe fiscal year on July 1. Revaluation ofreal property, was completed on January 1, 2013
as well as January 1, 2020. The assessed values reported are those adjusted amounts reported as of June 30

for each particular year. Subsequent year changes to the levy are not reflected in this table.

Source: Dare County Tax Department

[1] Residential and commercial real property breakdowns are not available.

[2] Public service companies valuations are provided to the Town by the NC Department of Revenue.

[3] Taxrates are expressed in doflars of tax per $100 of assessed value.

[4] The estimated market value is calculated by dividing the assessed value by a sales-to-assessment ratio
determined annually by the NC Department of Revenue. The ratio is based on samples of actual property
sales which took place during the fiscalyear.

These amounts include both real and personal property.



TABLEG

Total Sales to
Total Taxable Direct Tax ~ Assessment Estimated Actual
Assessed Value Rate [3] Ratio [4] Taxable Value

$ 2,689,113,410 0.2350 12312%  $ 2,184,140,197
2,039,284,602 0.3209 93.80% 2,174,077,401
2,055,209,750 (.3509 03.80% 2,191,055,171
2,076,511,373 0.3809 95.17% 2,181,896,998
2,102,375,384 0.3809 92.42% 2,274,805,652
2,135,173,113 0.3809 90.27% 2,365,318,614
2,193,628,628 0.3809 88.93% 2,466,691,362
2,214,188,881 0.4000 83.49% 2,652,040,820
2,968,618,538 0.3200 102.57% 2,804,265,905

3,012,644,700 0.3200 99.91% 3,015,358,523
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

PROPERTY TAX RATES OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING

GOVERNMENTAL JURISDICTIONS [1]
Last Ten Fiscal Years

TABLE?7

Year Ended Town of Kill Devil Hills [2] County of
June 30, Town Wide MSD [4] Dare [3]
2013 0.235 - 0.28
2014 0.3209 - 0.43
2015 0.3500 - 0.43
2016 0.3809 0.3300 0.43
2017 0.380% (.3300 0.43
2018 0.3809 0.3300 (.47
2019 0.3809 0.3300 0.47
2020 0.4000 0.3300 0.47
2021 0.3200 0.2400 0.4005
2022 0.3200 0.2400 0.4005

[1] Al taxrates are expressed in dollars oftax per $100 of assessed valuation.

[2] Town of Kill Devil Hills Taxand Finance Department.
[3] Dare County Tax Assessment Office.
{4] Municipal Service District in addition to the town wide rate



TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

June 30, 2022

June 30, 2013

TABLES§

Taxable
Assessed
Taxpayer Value
Dominion NC Power $ 32,191,108
Outer Banks Beach Club 21,757,200
First Flight Hotel, LLC 17,979,300
Run Hill Apartments, LLC 17,257,700
View, LLC 12,140,224
0. W. L. Neal Partnership 12,076,300
(Ramada Inn)
Morrison Farm Assoc 1L, LLP 11,467,700
ON Trading Corp 10,337,760
Sea Ranch Resort, LLC 9,895,672
Newman, Brian K 8,661,916
Croatan Surf Club
Dean, Clarence E Jr.
Wilber Wright Associates, Inc
Sutton Street Development
(Comfort Inn)

Osprey Management Group

$__153,764,820

Source: Dare County Tax Departiment

Rank

1

10

Percent of Taxable
Total Assessed Assessed
Valuation Value
1.11% $ 20,726,715
0.75% 25,887,000
0.62%
0.60%
0.42%
0.42% 13,143,500
0.40% 12,017,600
0.36%
0.34%
0.30% 10,587,864
23,614,200
16,740,565
11,688,950
10,415,500
9,590,000
5.31% $ 154,811,894

Rank

3

Percent of
Total Assessed
Valuation

0.79%

0.98%

0.50%

0.46%

0.40%

0.90%

0.64%

0.44%

0.40%

0.38%

5.8%%
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Outstanding Debt

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Total
Fiscal Instaliment Capital GASB-87 Installiment GASB-87 Primary
Year Financings Leases leases Note Leases Government
2013 § 1,663,851 § 617,568 § - 47,822 § - 5 2329241
2014 1,424,961 2,239,099 - 45,009 - 3,709,069
2015 1,186,071 2,436,894 - 42,196 - 3,665,161
2016 8,167,293 3,222,737 - 39,383 - 11,429,413
2017 7,774,252 3,372,984 - 36,570 - 11,183,800
2018 6,373,873 3,206,773 - 33,757 - 9,614,403
2019 12,173,105 - - 30,944 - 12,204,049
2020 10,433,496 “ - 28,131 - 10,461,627
2021 8,285,569 - - 25,318 - 8,310,887
2022 10,987,270 - 39,549 22,504 2,131 11,051,454

Notes: Details regarding the Town's outstanding debt can be found in the notes
to the financial statements.

[1] See Table 6 - Assessed value and estimated actual value
of taxable property for estimated actual taxable property value.

[2] See Table 11 - Demographic and Economic Statistics for
personal income and population data.

* Information Unavailable



Percent of Estimated Actual Taxable

TABLE9

Property Value [1]
Percent of
Governmental Per Capita Personal Incone
Activities Total i2] i2]
0.08% 0.09% 339 0.80%
6.18% 0.18% 531 *
0.18% 0.18% 523 *
0.55% 0.55% 1,601 *
0.53% 0.53% 1,554 *
0.41% 0.41% 1,333 *
0.49% 0.50% 1,680 *
0.39% 0.39% L8 *
0.29% 0.2%% 1,083 *
0.37% 0.37% 1,421 *
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TABLE 10
TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
As of June 30, 2022

Estimated
Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Unit Outstanding Applicable [1] Debt
Dare County 5 124,439,321 23.45% $ 29,178,468
Town of Kill Devil Hills direct debt 11,026,819
Total direct and overlapping debt $ 40,205,287

Sources: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages and debt out standing data provided by Dare County.

Note: Overlapping govemments are those that coincide, at least in part, with geographic boundaries of the Town. This
schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the property
taxpayers of the Town of Kill Devil Hills, This process recognizes that, when considering the government's ability to issue and
repay long-ierm debt, the entire debt burden borne by the property taxpayers should be taken in to account. However, this
does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for, repaying the debt of each overlapping
government,

[1] The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values. Applicable percentages
were estimated by determining the portion of'the County's taxable assessed value that is within the government's boundaries
and dividing it by the County's total taxable assessed value.
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TABLE11
TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
Last Ten Fiscal Years

TOWN OF
KILL DEVIL
HILLS DARE COUNTY
Per Capita Unemployment
Fiscal Personal Personal School Percentage

Year Population [1] Incone [5] Income [4] Enrolment {3] Rate [2]
2012 6,880 $  201,994080 3 42,441 4,982 7.7%
2014 6,985 309,631,080 44,328 4,978 4.7%
2015 7,010 340,700,020 48,602 5,008 5.5%
2016 7,137 351,482,976 49,248 5,029 73%
2017 7,195 384,320,925 53,415 5,166 6.7%
2018 7,212 406,136,568 56,314 5,151 5.9%
2019 7,266 419,161,008 57,688 5,233 5.0%
2020 7,378 437,072,720 59,240 5,367 8.2%
2021 7,674 * * 5,131 6.9%
2022 1,777 *# * 5,140 4.3%

[1] North Carolina Demographer's Cffice.

[2] Employment Security Commission.

[3] Dare County Board of Education, as of the end of the school term.

{4] Bureau of Economic Analysis,

[5] Regional Economic Information System, Bureau of Economic Analysis, U.S. Department of Commerce,
* - Information unavailable
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS,

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Employers

TABLE 12

Dare County Schools
County of Dare
Food Lion

Haris Teeter Inc

Lowes Homme Centers, Inc.

Town of Kill Devil Hills

Kellogg Supply Co., Inc.
Sun Realty
Publix

Data unavailable

[1] Employment data is only available in ranges from the North Carolina Employment Security Commission.

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2013

Percent of Percent of

Total Town Total Town

Employees [1] Rank Employment Employees [1]Rank [2] Employment
500 - 999 I * 500 - 999 i *
500 - 999 2 * 500 - 999 2 *
100 - 249 3 * 250 - 499 3 *
100 - 249 4 * 100 - 249 5 *
100 - 249 5 * - - *
100 - 249 6 * 100 - 249 7 #
100 - 249 7 * - - *
100 - 249 8 * 100 - 249 3 *
50-99 9 * - . *
* 10 * " - #

[2] Employment data is only available in rank 1-8 from the North Carolina Employment Security Commission.
* Information unavailable for the Town of Kill Devil Hills
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

FULL-TIME-EQUIVALENT TOWN GOVERNMENT
EMPLOYLEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM,
Last Fen Fiscal Years

2013 2014 2015
Function/Program
Generat government
Administration 5 5 5
Finance and Tax 61/2 61/2 61/2
Management Information Services i I |
Planning and Development 8 8 g
Building and Grounds 43/4 43/4 43/4
Public Safety
Police 33 33 33
Animal Control 2 2 2
Fire 20 201/2 201/2
Ocean Rescue 25 24 1/2 24 1/2
Year-round 2 1172 P12
Seasonal Lifeguards 23 23 23
Transportation
Streets 5 5 5
Public Works
FFleet Maintenance 41/2 41/2 4172
Enviromental Protectoin
Solid Waste il 11 11
Water
Waier Administration 6 6 6
Water Treatment Plant 4 4 4
Water System 4 4 4

Source: Town of Kill Devil Hills Finance Department

Note: This schedule represents number of positions authorized

per the budget ordinance as of July 1 of each year. Vacant positions are
included in the above numbers.



TABLE13

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
6 6 6 6 6 6 6
6172 61/2 61/2 61/2 61/2 61/2 61/2
1 i ] 1 ] ] 1
7 7 7 7 7 7 7
43/4 43/4 43/4 51/4 51/4 514 63/4
33 33 33 33 33 33 33
2 2 2 2 2 2 2
20 1/2 20 1/2 20172 201/2 20 12 20172 20172
26 12 26 1/2 26 1/2 26172 27172 27172 27172
1i72 11/2 F1/2 1172 11/2 1172 1172
25 25 25 25 26 26 26
53/4 53/4 53/4 53/4 53/4 53/4 63/4
4172 41/2 41/2 41/2 41/2 41/2 41/2
10 3/4 103/4 10 3/4 10 3/4 113/4 113/4 12.1/4
6 6 6 6 6 6 6
4 4 4 4 4 4 4
4 1/4 41/4 41/4 41/4 41/4 41/4 41/4
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2013 2014 2015

Population 6,880 6,805 7,010
Police:
Crime Activity: Reported

Murder (includes attemipts): 1 1

Rape (includes attempts): 7 6 9

Robbery (includes attempts): 6 4 3

Assaults (felonious & misdemeanor): 173 144 142

Burglary(breaking/entering-structures ). 200 170 138

Larceny: 249 245 228

Auto Larceny: 18 i3 9

Arson/unlawiul burnings: 1 1 4

All other crimes (unspecified above): 1,302 1,009 1,103

Total Crime; 1,956 1,590 1,637
Traffic Activity:

Traffic Accidents 399 405 401

Driving while impaired airests 99 63 92

General traffic violations-citation 1,196 1,217 1,621

General traffic violations-waming 790 1,295 2,197

Parking violations-citation issued 125 92 109

Total Trafiic 2,609 3,072 4,420
General Calls for Service:

Police calls-emergency status,

non-energency, traffic control 13,827 15,622 23,775

Animal control calls

Total General Calls for Service 13,827 15,622 23,775
Total all Police/Animal Control Activity 18,392 20,284 29,832
Fire:

Number of volunteer firemen 25 21 24

Number of calls answered 1,648 1,366 1,428

Total dollar loss $ 2,457,400 $ 215,250 % 391,106
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2022

1,777
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67
145

918
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131
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1,151
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2,666

19,172
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23,112

17

1,744
204,950
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Planning:
Building permits;
One and Two Family Dwellings
Residential multi-family
Government
Non-residential
Additions/remodel
Sign/banners
Electrical
Mechanical
Plumbing
Demolition
Fine
Re-inspection
Re-instatement fee
Number of CAMA pemmits issued
Number of land disturbance permits issued
Number of occupancy permits issued
Number of site plan reviews
Number of zoning amendments
Number of variance applications
Number of exempt plats issued
Field inspections:
Number of code compliance
Number of zoning/planning
Total building permit fees
Total site plan review fees
Total occupancy permit fees
Total CAMA permit fees
Total construction valuation
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1,783
549,917
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4,250
4,995
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2013 2014 2013

Refuse collection:

Refuse collection {tons) 8,947.44 8,929.10 8,976.00
Water:

Number of new services 54 54 72

Number of new customers 290 266 437

Daily consumption (million gallons) 1.2 1.2 1.2

Maximum daily capacity of plant(million gallons) 7.4 74 74

Maximum contracted per day(million gallons) 30 3.0 3.0
Wastewater:

Number of customers 198 203 204

Production (million gallons) * * *

* #® E

Maximum daily capacity of plant ( million gallons)

* Information Unavailable
Source: Budget documents and individual Town departiments.
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TABLE 14
Page3o0f3

016 2017 018 2019 2020 2021 2022
9,436.00 9,852.00 9,693.00 9,665.60 9,615.00 10,958.00 10,684.00
60 84 59 74 72 96 127
333 363 333 357 357 519 535
1.2 12 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2
74 7.4 7.4 7.4 7.4 T4 74
3.0 3.0 3.0 30 30 30 3.0
203 208 217 219 218 218 221
* # * ® * % *
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2013 2014 2015
Function/Program
Police stations 1 i 1
Animal control facilities 1 i 1
Fire stations 1 | 1
Ccean rescue facilities 1 1 1
Refuse collection
Collection tiucks 12 12 12
Other public works
Paved stieets (miles) 59.4 59.17 59.17
Unpaved streets {miles) 3.18 3.18 3.18
Street lights 447 447 447
Parks and recreation
Number of parks 5 5 5
Number of tennis courts 6 6
Number of bath houses | 1 1
Number of piers
Ocean (private) | 1 |
Sound (public) | 1 i
Number of ocean beach accesses
Local (public) 10 10 10
Neighborhood (public) 18 18 18
Regional (public) 1 I 1
Number of sound accesses (public) 4 4 4
Bike path mileage 9.51 9.51 9.51
Water
Plants 1 i 1
Water mains (miles) 79.7 79.7 79.7
Fire hydrants 596 591 591
Water storage capacity:
Ground (million gallons) 1.2 1.2 1.2
Elevated (million gallons) 450 A50 450
Wastewater
Mains (miles) 311 311 3.11

Source: Budget documents and individual Town departments.
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The Compliance Section has been prepared in accordance with the Federal Single
Audit Act of 1984, the Federal Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, the Audit Manual for Governmental
Auditors in North Carolina and North Carolina General Statute 159-34 which
established audit requirements for local government units that receive Federal and
State financial assistance,
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Dl

POTTER&COMPANY, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Honorable Mayor and Town Council
Kill Devil Hills, North Carolina

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Kill Devil Hills,
North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprises the Town of Kill Devil Hills’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated November 17, 2022.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town of Kill Devil Hills’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Kill Devil Hills’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Revort on Compliance and Other Matfers

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Kill Devil Hills, North Carolina’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
result of that festing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Potter & Company, P.A.

November 17, 2022
Mooresville, North Carolina
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POTTER&COMPANY, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM;
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE;
WITH OMB UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND THE
STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Honorable Mayor and Town Council
Town of Kill Devil Hills, North Carolina

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Town of Kill Devil Hills, North Carolina, compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina,
issued by the Local Government Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Town of
Kill Devil Hills’ major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. The Town of Kill Devil Hills’ major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Town of Kill Devil Hills complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for
the year ended June 30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance) and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Our responsibilities under those standards and
the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of
our report. We are required to be independent of the Town of Kill Devil Hills and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance
for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Town of Kill Devil Hills’
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Town of Kill Devil Hills
federal programs.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on Town of Kill Devil
Hills’ compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards,
and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgety, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on
compliance about Town of Kill Devil Hills’ compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a
whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Govermment Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we
o exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or etror, and design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding Town of Kill Devil Hills’ compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

¢ obtain an understanding of Town of Kill Devil Hills’ internal control over compliance relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Town of Kill Devil Hills internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over
compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in infernal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a confrol over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section and above and was not designed to identity all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies or material weaknesses
in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.



Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivencss of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal

control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Potter & Company, P.A.

November 17, 2022
Mooresville, North Carolina
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POTTER&COMPANY, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR STATE PROGRAM;
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE;
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB UNIFORM GUIDANCE;
AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Honorable Mayor and Town Council

Town of Kill Devil Hills, North Carolina

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program

Opinion on Each Major State Program

We have audited the Town of Kill Devil Hills, North Carolina, compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina,
issued by the Local Government Commission that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major State
programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. The Town of Kill Devil Hills’s major State programs are identified in
the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Town of Kill Devil Hills complied, in all material respects, with the types compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major State programs for the year ended
June 30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major State Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance) and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Our responsibilities under those standards and
the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of
our report. We are required to be independent of Town of Kill Devil Hills and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance
for each major State program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Town of Kill Devil Hills’
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Town of Kill Devil Hills
State programs.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on Town of Kill Devil
Hills’ compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards,
and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on
compliance about Town of Kill Devil Hills* compliance with the requirements of each major State program as a
whole,

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we
¢ exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ identify and assess the risks of materiai noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding
Town of Kill Devil Hills’ compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e obtain an understanding of Town of Kill Devil Hills’ internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on infernal control
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of Town of Kill Devil Hills’ internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opindon is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over
compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in infernal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a State program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a tfype of compliance requirement of a State program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governarce.

Owr consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in Auditors®
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section and above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies or material weaknesses
in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal conirol over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
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Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal

control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Potter & Company, P.A.

November 17, 2022
Mooresville, North Carolina
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Section I. Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued on whether the financial statements
Audited were prepared in accordance to GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

s Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
» Sipnificant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses. yes _ X none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted. yes X _no
Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

« Material weakness {es) identified? yves _X no
» Significant Deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses. yes _ X  nonereported
Noncompliance material to federal awards. yes _X _no

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major federal programs:  Unmodified, for all federal programs.

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes _X 1o

Identification of major federal programs:

Assistance Listing No. Names of Federal Programs or Cluster
97.036 Disaster Grants — Disaster Assistance

Dollar threshoid used to distinguish between Type A and Type B Programs. $ 750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditec? X . yes no
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TOWN O KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

State Awards

Internal control over major State Programs:

e Material weakness(es) identified? yes

e Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses, yes
Noncompliance material to State awards. yes

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major State programs: Unmuodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in

accordance with the State Single Audit Implementation Act. yes
Identification of major State programs:

Program Name

Federal Emergency Management Agency

1o

no

no

no



TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Section I1. Financial Statement Findings

None Reported

Section ITI. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported,

Section IV. State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.

177



TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

II. Financial Statement Findings

None reported

III. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.

1V, State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.
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None

TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
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TOWN OF KILL DEVIL HILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2022

SCHEDULE 16

State/ Federal
Grantor Agency/Major Subdivision Federal Pass-through {Direct and
Pass-through Grantor(s) Assistance Listing Grantor's Pass-through) State
Program Title Number Number Expenditures Expenditures
Federal Grants:
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed-through N.C. Department of Public Safely
Division of Fmergency Management
Disaster Grants - Disaster Assistance 97.036 4465-DR-NC $ 2,172,809 $ 724269
Total Assistance - Federal Programs 2,172,809 724,269
Stafe Grants:
N.C. Departiment of Transportation
Powell Bill N/A DOT-4 - 235,026
Totat N.C. Department of Transporation - 235,026
N.C. Department of Environmentat Qualily
Division of Water Quality - Shore Protection Project N/A CW 19035 - 282,012
Parks and Recreation Trust Fund (CAMA-PARTF) N/A CW17529 - 47,380
Totai N.C. Departiment of Environnental Quality - 329,392
Total Assistance - State Programs - 564,418
Total Federal and State awards $ 2,172,809 $ 1,288,687

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Financial Awards;

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The acconmpanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards (SEFSA) includes the federal and State grant activity of the Town of Kill
Devil Hills under the programs of the federal governiment and the State of North Carolina for the year ended June 30, 2022. The information in this
SEFSA is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 US Code of Tederal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Prineiples, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Because the Schedule presents only
a selected portion of the operations of the Town of Kill Devil Hills, it is not infended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net

position of cash flows of The Town of Kill Devil Hiils.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported in SEFSA are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost
principles contained in Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement,

The FTown of Kill Devil Hifls has elected nol to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Geidance.
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